
 

 

 
 

Members: Lee Baker (Chair), Ed Firmin (Vice-Chair), Simon Coles, 
Hugh Davies, Dawn Johnson, Janet Lloyd, Andy Milne, 
Martin Peters, Steven Pugsley, Terry Venner and 
Sarah Wakefield 

 
 

Agenda 

1. Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive and note any declarations of disclosable 
pecuniary or prejudicial or personal interests in respect of 
any matters included on the agenda for consideration at this 
meeting. 
(The personal interests of Councillors and Clerks of 
Somerset County Council, Town or Parish Councils and 
other Local Authorities will automatically be recorded in the 
minutes.) 
 

 

3. Public Participation   

 The Chair to advise the Committee of any items on which 
members of the public have requested to speak and advise 
those members of the public present of the details of the 
Council’s public participation scheme. 
For those members of the public who have submitted any 
questions or statements, please note, a three minute time 
limit applies to each speaker and you will be asked to speak 
before Councillors debate the issue. 
We are now live webcasting most of our committee meetings 
and you are welcome to view and listen to the discussion. 
The link to each webcast will be available on the meeting 
webpage, but you can also access them on the Somerset 
West and Taunton webcasting website. 

 

SWT Special Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 
Tuesday, 22nd March, 2022, 
6.15 pm 
 
The John Meikle Room - The Deane 
House 
 
SWT MEETING WEBCAST LINK 
 
 

 

https://somersetwestandtaunton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://somersetwestandtaunton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://somersetwestandtaunton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 

 

4. Audit and Governance Committee Forward Plan  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 To receive items and review the Forward Plan. 
 

 

5. Health and Safety Management System – Performance 
framework and Improvement Programme  

(Pages 7 - 20) 

 The purpose of this report is to provide the Audit and 
Governance committee with: 
A)  a progress update on the Health & Safety Performance 
Framework  
B)  a progress update against delivery of the H & S 
Management System (HSMS) Improvement Programme.  
 

 

6. Local Code of Corporate Governance  (Pages 21 - 40) 

 To present the Committee with the updated Local Code of 
Corporate Governance for the 2022/2023 financial year. 

 

 

7. Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Update  (Pages 41 - 52) 

 To present the Committee with an update of progress against 
the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan for 2020/21 
(Appendix A). 
 

 

8. Updated Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy for 
2022-2023  

(Pages 53 - 74) 

 To present the Committee with the updated Risk and 
Opportunity Management Strategy for approval. 
 

 

9. Fraud Update  (Pages 75 - 94) 

 To present the Committee with an update on progress 
following the SWAP baseline maturity assessment in 
relation to Fraud which came before the Committee in 
September 2021. 

 

 

 
 

 
ANDREW PRITCHARD 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 



 

 

Please note that this meeting will be recorded. At the start of the meeting the Chair 
will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded and webcast. You should be 
aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 2018. Data 
collected during the recording will be retained in accordance with the Council’s 
policy. Therefore unless you are advised otherwise, by entering the Council 
Chamber and speaking during Public Participation you are consenting to being 
recorded and to the possible use of the sound recording for access via the website 
or for training purposes. If you have any queries regarding this please contact the 
officer as detailed above.  
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and listen to the 
discussions. There is time set aside at the beginning of most meetings to allow the 
public to ask questions. Speaking under “Public Question Time” is limited to 3 
minutes per person in an overall period of 15 minutes and you can only speak to the 
Committee once. If there are a group of people attending to speak about a particular 
item then a representative should be chosen to speak on behalf of the group. These 
arrangements do not apply to exempt (confidential) items on the agenda where any 
members of the press or public present will be asked to leave the Committee Room.  
 
If you would like to ask a question or speak at a meeting, you will need to submit 
your request to a member of the Governance Team in advance of the meeting. You 
can request to speak at a Council meeting by emailing your full name, the agenda 
item and your question to the Governance Team using 
governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 
 
Any requests need to be received by 4pm on the day that provides 1 clear working 
day before the meeting (excluding the day of the meeting itself). For example, if the 
meeting is due to take place on a Tuesday, requests need to be received by 4pm on 
the Friday prior to the meeting. 
 
We are now live webcasting most of our committee meetings and you are welcome 
to view and listen to the discussion. The link to each webcast will be available on the 
meeting webpage, but you can also access them on the Somerset West and 
Taunton webcasting website. 
 
The meeting rooms, including the Council Chamber at The Deane House, are on the 
first floor and are fully accessible. Lift access to The John Meikle Room (Council 
Chamber), is available from the main ground floor entrance at The Deane House. 
The Council Chamber at West Somerset House is on the ground floor and is fully 
accessible via a public entrance door. Toilet facilities, with wheelchair access, are 
available across both locations. An induction loop operates at both The Deane 
House and West Somerset House to enhance sound for anyone wearing a hearing 
aid or using a transmitter.  
 
Full Council, Executive, and Committee agendas, reports and minutes are available 
on our website: www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk   
For further information about the meeting, please contact the Governance and 
Democracy Team via email: governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  
If you would like an agenda, a report or the minutes of a meeting translated into 
another language or into Braille, large print, audio tape or CD, please email: 
governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  

mailto:governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk
https://somersetwestandtaunton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://somersetwestandtaunton.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
http://www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk/
mailto:governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk
mailto:governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk




AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Meeting Date Draft Agenda Items Lead Officer
13 June 2022 External Audit - Progress Report Grant Thornton LLP (Jackson Murray)
Report Deadline External Audit Plan for 2021/22 Accounts Grant Thornton LLP (Jackson Murray)
30 May 2022 External Audit Fees 2022/23 Paul Fitzgerald

Internal Audit - Audit Plan 2021/22 Outturn SWAP (Alastair Woodland)
Internal Audit - Annual Audit Opinion 2021/22 SWAP (Alastair Woodland)
Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 (Draft) Amy Tregellas
Fraud Outturn and Annual Plan for 2022/23 Amy Tregellas
Summary of Level 1 and 2 Audit Actions Progress Malcolm Riches
Landlord Compliance update Ian Candlish

12 September 2022 External Audit - Progress Report Grant Thornton LLP (Jackson Murray)
Report Deadline Internal Audit - Progress Report 2022-23 SWAP (Alastair Woodland)
31 August 2022 Summary of Level 1 and 2 Audit Actions Progress Malcolm Riches

Treasury Management 2021/22 Annual Report and Q1 2022/23 John Dyson
Fraud Update Amy Tregellas
Local Government Ombudsman Summary of Complaints Amy Tregellas
Landlord Compliance Update Ian Candlish

TBC - September 2022 External Audit Findings Report 2021/22 Grant Thornton LLP (Jackson Murray)
SOA Special Meeting External Audit Auditor's Annual Report 2021/22 Grant Thornton LLP (Jackson Murray)
Report Deadline Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 (Final) Amy Tregellas

Assessment of Going Concern Status John Dyson
Approval of Statement of Accounts 2021/22 John Dyson

12 December 2022 External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update Grant Thornton LLP (Jackson Murray)
Report Deadline Internal Audit - Progress Report 2022/23 SWAP (Alastair Woodland)
30 November 2022 Treasury Management 2022/23 Mid Year Review John Dyson

Counter-Fraud Update Report Amy Tregellas
Summary of Level 1 and 2 Audit Actions Progress Malcolm Riches
H&S Update James Barrah
Capital Investment and Treasury Strategy 2023/24 John Dyson

13 March 2023 External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update Grant Thornton LLP (Jackson Murray)

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4



Report Deadline External Audit Plan 2022/23 Accounts Grant Thornton LLP (Jackson Murray)
External Audit Informing the Risk Assessment 2022/23 Grant Thornton LLP (Jackson Murray)

01 March 2023 Internal Audit - Progress Report 2022/23 SWAP (Alastair Woodland)
Internal Audit - Audit Plan and Charter 2023/24 SWAP (Alastair Woodland)
Summary of Level 1 and 2 Audit Actions Progress Malcolm Riches
H&S Update James Barrah
Landlord Compliance Report Ian Candlish
Audit and Governance Chair’s Annual Report 2022/23 Chair of Committee
Annual Governance Statement 2022/23 Amy Tregellas
Local Code of Corporate Governance Amy Tregellas
Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy Amy Tregellas
Treasury Management Q3 2022/23 John Dyson

P
age 6



 
Report Number: SWT 48/22 

Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
Audit and Governance Committee – 22nd March 2022 

 
Health & Safety Management System – Performance framework and 
Improvement Programme  

 
This matter is the responsibility of Executive Councillor Ross Henley, Corporate 
Resources    
 
Report Authors:   

Kate Lusty – Health & Safety Specialist 
Dan Webb – Health & Safety Improvement Programme Manager (temp) 

 
 

1. Executive Summary / Purpose of the Report  
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Audit and Governance committee with: 
A)  a progress update on the Health & Safety Performance Framework  
B)  a progress update against delivery of the H & S Management System 
(HSMS) Improvement Programme.  

 
1.2 The HSMS Improvement Programme sets out the various workstreams within the 
programme, including the H & S Committee governance structure. All Improvement 
delivery activity will be tracked within a single consolidated action plan (implemented 
since November 2021) and through the established Corporate Programme 
Management Office (PMO) arrangements and processes (monthly reporting to the 
Internal Operations Directorate Board, and Senior Management Team - SMT). 

 
2. Recommendations  

 
2.1 The committee is asked to note and endorse: 

A) the H & S Performance Scorecard data, together with the 
observations/recommendations/conclusive summary (appendix A) 
B) the HSMS Improvement Programme progress update (detailed in section 
4.7.5 with further summary breakdown in appendix B) 
 

3. Risk Assessment  
 

3.1 An efficient and effective H & S Management System helps the council comply with 
its duties under the Health & Safety at Work Act (1974) and the Management of Health 
& Safety Regulations 1999. This will thereby mitigate the legal, financial, and 
reputational risks associated with non-compliance of these key legal requirements and 
associated legislation, based on operational activity. 

 
3.2 Subsequently, effective measurement of the performance of Health & Safety 
systems will galvanise the continuous improvement of risk mitigation controls. Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 
3.3 During Quarter 1 (2021/22) an audit on Health & Safety was carried out by SWAP 
– this was reported to the Audit & Governance committee 13th September 2021, with 
an audit opinion reported as ‘limited assurance’.   
 
3.3.1 A summary of the work completed and findings by SWAP is as follows: 

 “The Council has a statutory duty to keep its employees, members, customers, 
contractors and anyone else who uses its services safe from risks to their health 
and safety under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974. The failure to adhere 
to relevant health and safety legislation and regulations puts health and safety 
at risk and exposes the Council to legal, finance and reputational damage.  

 The Council had not received an audit of corporate health and safety since 2014 
and therefore assurance was sought by senior management that the Council 
was adhering to health and safety legislation and regulation and the risks in 
these areas were minimised. Despite the absence of a recent audit the Council 
has been developing its approach to health and safety and this continues to be 
work in progress. The audit scope was designed around the Health and Safety 
Executive’s HSG65 framework”. (please see para 4.2 for further details of 
HSG65) 

 The Council is currently at the ‘PLAN’ and ‘DO’ stages of HSG65 and therefore 
only limited testing could be done under ‘CHECK’ and ‘ACT’. Our audit focussed 
on the high priority areas the Council need to address and therefore contractors 
were only looked at briefly. When looking at accidents and incidents we relied 
upon second line of defence controls. Landlord Health and Safety was 
considered out of scope for this audit. This area has been covered by previous 
audit work.  

 There were three Priority 2 recommendations - “Important findings that need to 
be resolved by management” (and eight Priority 3 recommendations) made 
within this review. The three priority 2 recommendations raised in our report are 
detailed below. Health and Safety is on the Senior Management Issue log to 
monitor improvements. The recommendation made in this review will be 
followed up to ensure they have been implemented and reported back to the 
Audit Committee. 

 
 SWAP recommendation 1) Corporate Governance matters need to be 

strengthened, including raising the profile of health and safety through a 
Member Champion and reporting of health and safety work to Members. 
Sub-Committees would be advisable for all Directorates, as currently they 
only exist for Housing & Communities and External Operations. 

 SWAP recommendation 2) While the Risk Assessment Scoping 
sessions have been scheduled and are underway, they are not complete, 
therefore the Council does not have a complete record of the health and 
safety risks it needs to manage. To date the Audit Framework has not 
been developed. 

 SWAP recommendation 3) Health and Safety training is being carried 
out upon induction and refresher training is also being delivered, however 
Members have not received any. Reports can also be run from Learning 
Management System (LMS), but analysis in this area could be better and 
this would provide greater assurance that staff and Members know to 
manage health and safety. 

 
3.4 Subsequent to the SWAP audit (outlined above), together with an additional 
External Audit report (August 2021) - commissioned by the Director of Housing & 

Page 8



Communities - on some of our operational / trade services by the Building Safety 
Group (BSG), plus internal reviews by the H & S team, it was decided by SMT to 
include H & S on the Corporate Issues Register. 

 The summary Issue description is - “Low maturity health and safety 
management systems” 

 The key impacts of this issue are stated as - “To date we have seen the impact 
through personal injury and associated insurance claims. We have continued 
risk of further injury, financial and reputational damage". 

 
 
 

3.5 Actions in Response to Audit recommendations (SWAP & BSG) 
Further information detailing the recommendation response to date can be found in 4 

 
 

4. Background and Full details of the Report 
 

4.1 The Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 contains general and specific duties with 
which all workplace environments (public authorities such as the Council) must comply. 

 
4.2  The general duty requires a robust HSMS structure to deliver to the 
requirements of the Act, within a framework recommended by The Health & Safety 
Executive (this is known as the HSG65 framework). This constitutes implementing 
process controls for: 

 H & S Policy and Procedure 

 Risk Management and Risk Assessment 

 Safe Systems of Work/Safe Work Procedures 

 Audit Framework 

 Mechanisms for continuous improvement 
 

4.2.1  Progress Update – a risk scoping exercise has been completed for each  
 Directorate and risk assessments action plans are active and linked to Tier 3  
 Committee Groups.  

 
Risk Action Plans consist of a list of risk assessments associated with the team’s  

 activity, together with any generic risk assessments suites that need to be   
 implemented and communicated to the team. These will incorporate controls for  
 ensuring necessary training, supervision, instruction and the issue of relevant  
 equipment and PPE to be able to perform their tasks safely. It may also be necessary 
 to ensure safe systems or work (SSOW) are in  place as an extra layer of safety  
 procedure. 

 
 Supported by the H & S Partner for each Directorate, managers have responsibility to 

 ensure their action plans are progressed and reported at the Tier 3 H & S Committee.  
 H & S Partners present a risk assessment health check at each Directorate committee 
 meeting, to illustrate a statement of risk management within the Directorate. This is the 
 current position: - 

 
 
 
 
 

Directorate Risk Assessment 
Reviews 

% Complete 

Housing & Communities 699 21.3% 

Dev, Place & Planning 242 43.8% 

Internal Operations 311 19% 

External Operations 619 11.8% 

 

Page 9



 
 
 
 
4.2.2 Work continues to develop the risk assessment audit framework, to ensure 
sufficient review dates are scheduled, to ensure continuity of compliancy. Completion 
of this task is reliant on the risk assessment action plans begin delivered first. 
 

 
4.3 Under Section 2 (4-7) of The Health & Safety at Work Act (H&SaWA), law also 
stipulates a link to the Safety Committee and Safety Representatives Regulation 1977. 
This outlines the legal requirement to ensure that a suitable safety committee is in 
place (where necessary) and that key H & S Performance indicators are monitored, to 
measure the effectiveness and efficiency of the HSMS. There areas are namely:  

 Changes to workforce that could affect H & S 

 Accidents/Incidents/Near Miss 

 Risk Management & Risk Assessment 

 Occupational Health/Sickness/Wellbeing 

 H & S Training 

 Emergency Arrangements (Evacuation/First Aid/Emergency Response) 

 Audit/Inspection – conclusive reporting 
 
4.3.1 The Audit & Governance committee should note that the ‘Safety committee’ 
referred to above in 4.3 is what is in place through the ‘Tier 2’ H & S Committee 
(Officers) - which is specifically to comply with H&SaWA obligations.  As part of the 
‘Tier 1’ governance arrangements, however, Elected Members are involved through 
the Audit & Governance committee. 

 

4.4 As part of the response to the corporate risk and issue (as outlined in the Risk 
assessment – section 3 above), a new governance structure for H & S Committee was 
launched in November 2021, implementing a 3-tier approach:  

 

 Tier 1 – Senior Management Team  

 Tier 1 – Elected Members and Executive Portfolio Holder, Audit & Governance 
Committee  

 Tier 2 – H & S Committee (Consultative & Reporting) 

 Tier 2 – H & S Committee (Corporate Management Group) – steering and 
decision making 

 Tier 3 – Directorate Groups (x4) 
 
 
4.4.1 Progress Update – Since November Tier 2 and 3 groups have built up good  
 momentum and pace and are now in the rhythm of meeting every month and are  
 following a consistent and structured agenda. Improved communication routes have 
 been created (via TEAMS channels) and all committee actions are tracked and  
 reviewed at each meeting. Tier 3 groups are chaired by Assistant Directors and early 
 stages already indicate improvements in H & S ownership and accountability. 
 

In the last quarter we have held 18 H&S specific meetings driving 82 actions/ 
 recommendations through the associated action Plan. 
 

4.5 H & S Performance Framework  Page 10



 
4.5.1 Focusing on the key reporting requirements (4.3), Tiers 1 & 2 have reporting 
mechanisms to measure these categories of performance and future reporting will 
follow these categories. 

 
4.5.2 Scorecard – the content of the scorecard reporting categories is summarised in 
appendix A. Reporting will also include a summary of observation/recommendation 
and conclusive actions. Scorecard reporting is reflected from Tier 3 up to Tier 1. 

 
4.5.3  Progress Update – Directorate Scorecards are in place and deliver a statement 
of health, reporting on all key indicators identified in 4.3. Ahead of each monthly 
meeting, a committee pack is circulated containing links to scorecards, action plans, 
risk management plans and agenda. Committee groups are encouraged to analyse the 
data, observations and recommendations in preparation for discussion at the next 
meeting, with an objective to encourage engagement and improve the overall 
effectiveness of the committee. 

 
 
4.7 HSMS Improvement Programme 

 
Introduction and background 

 

4.7.1 In addition to the implementation of the new governance arrangements described 

in 4.4 above, the response to the corporate risk and issue (as outlined in the Risk 

assessment – section 3 above) has also been to implement a robust programme 

management approach.   

 

4.7.2 Several improvement activities have already been delivered, or are currently in 
progress, however, the new HSMS Improvement Programme has also been approved 
by SMT.  This programme has been formed to manage a series of projects and 
initiatives that will ensure the organisation transforms to a new improved operational 
state. A Programme Brief provides an overview, and can be found in Appendix B. 
 
4.7.3 Subsequent response to recommendations made within SWAP & BSG Audit 
All recommendations have been tracked in a centralised H & S Action Plan, progress 
to date includes:- 

 Development of Policy Catalogue – draft H & S Policy and Contractor 
Management Policy to be escalated via the next Tier 2 and SMT for 
approval on 6th April 

 Delivery of new corporate governance structure for H & S 
Committee, including new Directorate Groups and a new intranet 
page - now in place and building up pace and momentum 

 Improved Risk Management processes, risk action plans and 
progress statistics – all risk action plans in place and progress statistics 
monitored at Tier 3 Committee groups 

 Delivery of emergency training (mandatory compliance) - contract 
monitoring in place to ensure that compliancy training does not cease, 
Safety Action Notice (RED cards) issued where necessary, to postpone 
activities where compliancy training is required/awaiting delivery. L&D / 
People Team are working up a revised process and scorecard to ensure 
clarity of upcoming compliancy training for all directorates, which will be 
displayed during the Tier 2 H&S Management Meeting. 

Page 11



 Implementation of a new H & S Intranet page and links to bespoke 
Directorate areas for risk management and scorecard – new intranet 
page for H & S delivered with links into Directorate specific risk areas, 
containing action plans and completion statistics. 

 Statutory equipment checks and the development of PUWER 
(Provision and Use of Working Regulation 1998) Register – Work in 
Progress, this exercise spans 2 Directorates (Housing and External) and 
will eventually link into the risk assessment process, to ensure training for 
the use of equipment is formalised within the risk assessment control 
measures. The PUWER Register is already in place and the work 
required to link to the relevant risk assessments and training database, 
will form part of the risk actions plans (noted in 4.2.1). 

 Improved H & S Team structure with H & S Partners assigned to 
Directorates, to improve bespoke elements of HSMS – full team 
structure now in position (x5 in total), consisting of Team Lead Specialist, 
x2 H & S Partners (picking up x2 Directorates each), Case Manager (soft 
H & S) and admin support. The team gained full capacity structure at the 
end of January with training/coaching still underway. 

 
4.7.4 Progress Update – identified above against each action 
 

4.7.5 This document is a high-level summary, including: 

 The programme description and vision: a strong H & S culture is embedded, 

and effective management system is integrated across the organisation. 

 The work-streams, that make up the programme are (initially): 

o H & S Policy 

o Governance and control 

o People / HR 

o Contractor management 

o Construction Design management (CDM) 

o Risk management and audit framework 

o H & S support and systems 

o In addition - ‘Culture’ change / development, and communications & 

engagement will be treated as cross-cutting themes throughout the 

programme and all work-streams / projects & activities (rather than work-

streams in their own right) 

 Scope and dependencies 

 Key outcomes and benefits 

 Budget and resource 

 Programme governance 

 Issues and risks 

 

4.7.6 The Audit & Governance committee will receive high-level updates on progress 
of the HSMS Improvement programme as part of quarterly H & S reports. 
 
4.7.7 Progress Update – All workstream progress is reviewed at Tier 2 Committee 
meetings, actions are captured in the consolidated action plan and are filtered by 
specific workstream, with the workstream lead providing a progress update at the 

Page 12



meeting (work continues to develop completion statistics for each individual 
workstream). 
 
Significant progress has been made in relation to Contractor Management; with 
collaborative working between the H & S Team and Procurement, a centralised 
database has been developed. This is accompanied by a dedicated centralised 
SharePoint storage area, with automated links into the database, to ensure all 
necessary contractor documentation is accessible. Work continues to develop 
proformas for all types of engaging contractor/supplier, with annual reviews currently 
being completed for higher risk contractors (CIS – Construction Industry Scheme).  
 

5. Links to Corporate Strategy 
 

5.1 Paragraphs 4.1, 4.2 and 4.3 above outline legal and statutory responsibilities for 
Health and Safety, for which of course the Council must comply in the delivery of all its 
operations. 
 
5.2 In addition, the delivery of a robust H & S function – both internally, and externally 
(e.g. to contractors and partners), with transparent monitoring and reporting – relates 
to the corporate aim of being ‘a transparent and customer-focussed council’. 
 

 
6. Finance / Resource Implications 

 
6.1 There are no financial / resource implications directly because of this report. 
 
6.2 The Health & Safety Management System provides a vehicle for the avoidance of 
detrimental financial risks and may even present opportunities for cost savings (e.g., 
reductions in insurance premiums and claim payments). 
 
6.3 There are approved operational budgets in 2021/22 to enable the delivery and 
improvement of the H & S function (as referred to within the HSMS Improvement 
Programme brief – Appendix B 

 
 

7. Legal Implications 
 

7.1 There are no legal implications directly because of this report.   
 

7.2 The Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 places duties and obligations upon the 
Council. The Health & Safety Management System provides a vehicle to meet those 
obligations to ensure compliancy, and therefore for the avoidance of detrimental legal 
risks, and may even present opportunities for cost savings (e.g., reductions in 
insurance claim payments). 

 
 

8. Climate and Sustainability Implications  
 

8.1 There are no Climate and Sustainability implications directly as a result of this 
report. 

 
9. Safeguarding and/or Community Safety Implications  

 Page 13



9.1 There are no Safeguarding and/or Community Safety implications directly because 
of this report.  

 
9.2 Improved Health & Safety processes and effective risk management assist the 
mitigation of risk and promote the welfare of vulnerable children and adults. 
Operational procedure is strengthened by integrated Health & Safety and Safeguarding 
processes, in turn providing the necessary protection for vulnerable groups and 
individuals delivering the services. 

 
 

10. Equality and Diversity Implications  
 

10.1 There are no Equality and Diversity implications directly because of this report.   
 

10.2 The Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 places duties and obligations upon the 
Council. The Health & Safety Management System provides a vehicle to meet those 
obligations to ensure compliancy, and therefore for the avoidance of detrimental 
Equality and Diversity risks (e.g., disability / pregnancy & maternity risk assessments). 

 
11. Social Value Implications  

 
11.1 There are no Social Value implications directly because of this report.  

 
 

12. Partnership Implications  
 

12.1 There are no partnership implications directly because of this report.  
 

12.2 The HSMS Improvement Programme is made of actions that are deliverable 
within the H & S Committee Corporate Structure at all three ‘tiers.’ Various specialist 
Workstream Leads have been identified within the Committee Management Group 
(Tier 2) therefore all partnerships at the present time are associated to internal 
services. 

 
 

13. Health and Wellbeing Implications  
 

13.1 There are no Health and Wellbeing implications directly because of this report.  
 
13.2 The Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 places duties and obligations upon the 
Council. The Health & Safety Management System provides a vehicle to meet those 
obligations to ensure compliancy, and therefore for the avoidance of detrimental Health 
& Wellbeing risks, and may even present opportunities for improved Health and 
Wellbeing (e.g. reduced staff sickness levels).  

 
 

14. Asset Management Implications  
 

14.1 There are no Asset Management implications directly because of this report. 
 
14.2 The Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 places duties and obligations upon the 
Council. The Health & Safety Management System provides a vehicle to meet those 
obligations to ensure compliancy, and therefore for the avoidance of detrimental Asset Page 14



Management risks, and may even present opportunities for improved asset 
management (e.g., through robust 'FABRIC’ assessments – buildings / assets / 
locations / places)   

 
15. Data Protection Implications  

 
15.1 There are no Data Protection implications directly because of this report. 

 
16. Consultation Implications  

 
16.1 There are no Consultation implications directly because of this report. 
 
16.2 The introduction of the new 3-tier governance arrangement provides significant 
opportunities for consultation on Health & Safety matters with all levels and areas of 
the Council. 
 
 

17. Scrutiny/Executive Comments / Recommendation(s) - N/A 
 

 
 

 
Democratic Path:   
 

 Scrutiny / Corporate Governance or Audit Committees – Yes   
 

 Cabinet/Executive  – No  
 

 Full Council – No  
 
Reporting Frequency:     Quarterly 
 
                                           
 
List of Appendices  
 

Appendix A H & S Scorecard High Level Summary (with observations & recommendations) 

Appendix B HSMS Improvement Programme – progress update summary 

 
 
 
Contact Officers 
 

Name Kate Lusty Name Dan Webb 

Direct 
Dial 

01823 785590 Direct 
Dial 

01823 219457 

Email k.lusty@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk Email d.webb@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 15





Annex A - H & S Performance

open closed open closed Totals
Housing & Communities 1 7 2 5 15
External Operations 0 4 0 0 4
Internal Operations 0 0 0 0 0
Development, Place & Planning 0 0 0 0 0
Total 1 11 2 5 19

RED YELLOW

General Observations

• Accidents -43% (last 3 years)
• Incidents +71% (last 3 years)
• Near Miss +38% (last 3 years)
• Training/New Intranet/forms improved reporting
• Key Event reasons = slip/trip/fall (members of public), failed risk assessment, 

PPE
• SANs – failed risk assessments, PPE, training, Contractor Management
• Executor Risk Assessments (ETA) – not yet proactively capturing all 

requirements
• Contractor Management – addressing historic issues, still carrying risk
• Vehicle Events – Driver Training gap

• NO HSE INTERVENTION

• 135 H & S Inductions delivered (currently up to date)

• Mandatory e-learning completion rates increased (targets agreed)

Recommendations

• Workplace/Asset/Site Inspections(continue to galvanise risk management = 
reduce MOP events)

• ERA/Occupational Health – link to onboarding and return to work processes
• Access to risk assessment/SSOW – employee declarations (strengthen 

ownership)
• Stronger links between investigation and Insurance (conversion of accidents to 

claims)
• Improve pre-requisite procurement process for onboarding Contractors (already 

in action plan)
• Fleet and Pool Car license and driver checks to be improved (reduce vehicle 

incidents)

2021/2022
Employees Contractors MOP Totals

ACCIDENTS 22 0 12 34
(RIDDOR) 3 0 5 8
INCIDENT 15 0 11 26
(RIDDOR) 0 0 0 0

NEAR MISS 6 9 3 18
(RIDDOR) 1 0 0 1

Safety Action Notices Issued 2020/2021

P
age 17


Dash Board 2021 - 2022

		H & S DASHBOARD 2021 - 2022 (@01/03/2022)





		ACCIDENTS				Total for Month		1				INCIDENTS				Total for Month		1				NEAR MISS				Total for Month		1

						YTD		34								YTD		24								YTD		18



		ISSUED SAFETY NOTICES				Total for Month		3				H & S AUDITS				Total for Month		*				H & S INDUCTION				Total for Month		0

						YTD		19								YTD		0								YTD		135



		INS CLAIMS				Total for Month		1				RA REVIEW				Total for Month		o				HSE INTERVENTIONS				Total for Month		0

						YTD		9								YTD		o								YTD		0



		NON-CONFORMANCES				Total for Month		*				POLICY REVIEW				Total for Month		0				 WORKPLACE INSPECTIONS				Total for Month		4

						YTD		*								YTD		0								YTD		6



		H & S TRAINING EVENTS				Total for Month		0				OH ANNUAL REVIEWS				Total for Month		0

						YTD		0								YTD		0











Sheet1

		2021/2022

						Employees		Contractors		MOP		Totals

		ACCIDENTS				22		0		12		34

		(RIDDOR)				3		0		5		8

		INCIDENT				15		0		11		26

		(RIDDOR)				0		0		0		0

		NEAR MISS				6		9		3		18

		(RIDDOR)				1		0		0		1





Accident Data 2021 - 2022

		Accidents - April 2021- March 2022

		Accident Ref		Accident date		Time of accident		Date Received accident report with H&S team 		Location		Description of what was being carried out and what happened		Weather Conditions		Equipment Involved		Person who had the accident		Injured Person - Status		Details of Injury		Root Cause		Treatment Required		Directorate Responsibility		Service Unit		Specific Team		Accident Type		Number of days absent from work		RIDDOR		RIDDOR S2508 Sent to HSE		RIDDOR Reporting Reason		Investigation/Notes/Improvements Required		Conversion to Claim? Y/N		S.A.N Issued Y/N R or Y		Hyperlink to Accident Report/Investigation		Copy of report sent to HR (date)

		CT/02062021/MB		6/2/21		10:00am				Nursery		IP  injured his hand when he punched his van out of frustration.		fine dry				C Turner		Employee		Fracture to metcarpal of Right Hand		Other		Hospital		External Operations		Depot				Struck by stationary object				No - Employee						Treated as a welfare issue. IP has been spoken to by TM and PBP has been kept in the loop. Letter Of Concern issued. Welfare checks have highlighted some issues which are being supported by PBP and OH.								6/14/21

		BD/09062021/MB		6/9/21		14:00 hrs				Wellington Park		IP was knelt down, planting the last few plants. As he stood up his right knee dislocated.		Dry		none		Ben Dawe		Employee		Dislocated Knee, due to old injury.		Other		Hospital		External Operations		Depot				Other				No - Employee						IP was kneeling down to plant plants, when his knee gave way and temporarily dislocated. ERA to be completed.								9/23/21

		MOP/27072021/MB		7/27/21		?				Vivary Park, Taunton		IP tripped in pothole whilst jogging.						???		Member of Public		Sprained Right ankle.		Environment		???		External Operations						Slip/Trip/Fall		N/A		No						Reported via firmstep. H&S Team made aware on 26/08/2021. No name of IP on report, just a photo of the injury and a request for compensation. GW Gale are to be contracted to carry out repair work on potholes in Vivary Park starting Mid-September.

		MOP/02082021/MB		8/2/21		13:30				Vivary Golf and Adventure Centre		IP was descending from climbing structure after ascent, She landed awkwardly and fractured her ankle.				Using High Ropes course		J Perry		Member of Public		Fractured Ankle				Hospital		External Operations						Fall from Height				Yes - Member of Public				Fracture (other than fingers/thumbs/toes)

		MOP/08082021/MB		8/8/21		14:30				Wilton Lands Play area, Taunton		IP Tripped on edge of safety surface whilst walking to swing.		Good		Attending grand children at play area		B King		Member of Public		Fractured collar bone		Environment		Hospital		External Operations		MOP				Slip/Trip/Fall		n/a		Yes - Member of Public				Fracture (other than fingers/thumbs/toes)		Area cordoned off immediately with Heras fencing, and repairs organised. Survey of similar surfaces to be undertaken and results shared with H&S Team.

		MR/25082021/MB		8/25/21		10:30				Orchard Multi Storey Car Park		MOP allegedly tripped in car park while walking over a gulley that he didn't notice.				Using multi storey car park		Mr Reed		Member of Public				Environment				External Operations						Slip/Trip/Fall				No - Member of Public

		QS/31082021/MB		8/31/21		10:30am				Comeytrowe Open Space, Taunton		Ips Back went into spasm while using a silky saw to prune trees.		Cloudy		Pruning		Quentin Skeene		Employee		Aggravation of existing Condition		Other		Doctor		External Operations		Depot				Manual Handling		Ongoing		Yes - Employee				Over 7 day incapacity to work		IP suffered a back spasm whilst using a silky saw. Aggravation of old injury. Reffered to OH on return to work.								9/23/21

		JB/14082021/MB		9/14/21		14:20				Moorland Place, Taunton		IP suffered a puncture wound to the back of his left hand from a thorn from a rubinia tree.				Shrub bed maintenance		Jason Bowie		Employee		Puncture Wound		Negligence		None		External Operations						Laceration/Cut				No - Employee						No PPE worn. IP statement on accident form concerning. Entire team, including AD, emailed to state the importance of wearing PPE and recommended disciplinary action. Welding gauntlets sourced that provide a good level of puncture resistance.								9/23/21

		MM/15082021/MB		9/15/21						Geoff Farrant Way		IP suffered a puncture wound to palm of his right hand from a frayed brake cable on an SWT trailer.				Hitching Trailer		Max Maksimov		Employee		Puncture Wound		Negligence		None		External Operations						Laceration/Cut				No - Employee						Frayed hand brake cable on trailer. Trailer in for repair. No PPE worn. Entire team, including AD, emailed to state the importance of wearing PPE and recommended disciplinary action. Checklist for the trailer is not traceable as they are not specific to the particular plant. Cable has been replaced with a new one.								9/23/21

		BD/15082021/MB		9/15/21						Wilton Lands Play area, Taunton		IP suffered multiple wasp stings				Lawn mower		Ben Dawe		Employee		4 wasp stings to neck and abdomen		Other		First Aid		External Operations						Insect bite/Sting				No - Employee						Multiple Wasp Stings								9/23/21

		EP/16092021/MB		9/16/21		12:30/13:00				French Wier park, Taunton		Collision between two bicycles		n/a		Bicycles		Erica Polkinghorne		Member of Public		cuts and bruises		Other		First Aid		External Operations		MOP				Struck by moving object		n/a								Client was cycling past a Caffee in French weir when another cyclist collided with client knocking her off her bike causin her cuts and bruises. Signage in area to be checked. Extra signage placed on blind spots in area								9/30/21

		??/12102021/MB		10/12/21						Wood St Car park		MOP struck by car park barrier after seemingly walking under it as a car passed through.				Car park barrier				Member of Public		Cut to head?		Negligence				External Operations		MOP				Struck by moving object										Site Visit arranged for 15/10/2021 to assess.

		RY/26082021/MB		26/08/2021`		8:30				Crematorium,		IP suffered twisted/sprained ankle whilst operating a Bobcat step on mower.				Driving Step on mower		Russel Yard		Employee		Sprained Ankle		Other				External Operations						Machinery 				No - Employee						IP suffered a sprained ankle when drive lever on step on mower became stuck causing the machine to spin.								9/23/21

		ML/06062021/MB		6/6/21		12:15				7 Midford Road		10 year old boy recieved electrical shock from domestic supply socket in tenanted property.		n/a				Mstr Littlejohns		Member of Public		Electric shock, (no burns) taken to A+E as a precaution.				Hospital		Housing & Communities		Depot				Other		n/a		No - Member of Public						Tenant claims to have reported the damaged socket in December/January, (no record of this call can be found) and also claims that the socket was in the condition shown in the photographs at the time of the EICR inspection carried out by Dodds, a claim which they deny. The damaged socket was then reported to SWT immediately following the accident and repaired the following eveningYellow card issued as a conversion from the Red.. See SAN Notice.. 				Yes Red		http://https://swtcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/has/mon/HSMOAIR-HS1.1/Forms/AllItems.aspx?viewid=c67b2f8c%2D2f1b%2D4d3c%2D97a5%2D73118b87ac9a&id=%2Fsites%2Fhas%2Fmon%2FHSMOAIR%2DHS1%2E1%2FAll%20Events%20%2D%202021%20%2D%202022%2FAccidents%20%2D%20April%202021%20%2D%20March%202022%2FJune%202021%2F7%20Midford%20Road

		SM/09062021/MB		6/9/21		N/A				Hilly Park, Norton Fitzwarren		IP developed pain and discomfort in his shoulder whilst mixing concrete.		Dry Warm		Shovel, cement mixer		S Monnely		Employee		IP experienced severe pain in his shoulder during the night.		Other		Hospital		Housing & Communities		Depot		Depot		Manual Handling		ongoing		Yes - Employee				Over 7 day incapacity to work		IP suffered pain and discomfort in his shoulder following hand mixing concrete for 2 days. He attended hospital for x rays and is due to recieve an MRI scan. No single attributable event can be pinpointed as the cause, more likely an aggravation of an existing condition. Awaiting results. ERA to be completed on return to work.								9/9/21

		NB/14072021/MB		7/14/21						Depot, Wellington		IP rolled on his ankle after stepping from his van onto a 3" fence post.		Dry Warm				N Barsby		Employee		Sprained Ankle. 				None		Housing & Communities		Depot				Slip/Trip/Fall		n/a		No						IP had parked on a hatched area, and hurriedly stepped from his van without looking at what was beside it, rolling his ankle on the timber. Manager asked to create a risk assessment for Access/Egress vehicles. Fabric RA of yard to be created by H&S team.								9/23/21

		MOP/15082021/MB		8/15/21						32 Wellsprings Road, Taunton		IPs (Father and Daughter) allegedly tripped and fell in garden following work that had been carried out by SWT.				reinstated steps in back garden.		A Brooks and minor		Member of Public		Soft tissue injuries to both parties		Environment		None		Housing & Communities		Depot				Slip/Trip/Fall				No - Member of Public						First notified to H&S via a claim. No further action currently due to legal action.

		RGCB/31082021/MB		8/31/21						Gar 2, Lipe Lane, Ruishton, TA3 5HZ		SWT staff had confirmed exposure to asbestos cement in roof sheets.		cloudy		Removal of roof sheets.		Rob Grabham & Chris Bunce		Employee		Exposure to Asbestos Cement		SSOW Failure		None		Housing & Communities						Asbestos exposure				Yes - Employee				Asbestos Exposure		See file. Face fit testing sourced for the R+M and Compliance teams that use it. Roofing Ras to be reviewed and and additional one created for breaking up of roof sheets.								9/23/21

		RO/20092021/MB		9/20/21		14:25				8 A Bruford Close, Taunton		Needle stick injury		n/a				Rob Overall		Employee		Puncture wound to RH index finger		SSOW Failure		Hospital		Housing & Communities		Depot				Needlestick/sharps		n/a		No - Employee						IP was clearing ASB tiles from under a storage heater when his hand came into contact with a needle. Attended A&E for Hep B and Tetanus jabs. Follow up appointment in 1 month if required by A&E.. Needle type thought to be from an epipen (advised by A&E) and low risk. TBT sent to team and laminated to accompany their standard job sheets/RAMS for information. RA for the task has been updated and shared.								9/23/21

		PP/05102021/MB		10/5/21		17:115pm				10 Polkesfield, Stoke St. Gregory, Taunton		Loft Hatch in tenanted property opened unexpectedly, hitting tenant on the head.				Loft Hatch		P Preston		Tenant		Cut above left eye and bruising.				Hospital		Housing & Communities		Tenant				Struck by moving object		n/a								See file. 

		DH/05052021/MB		5/5/21		08:30am				Deane House		IP was exiting the building via the side door. His foot slipped and he rolled over on his ankle,causing a sprain injury.		Dry,cold		Entrance Steps to DH		T Everleigh		Employee		Sprained Ankle. Attended A+E as a precaution.		Other		Hospital		Internal Operations		SWT				Slip/Trip/Fall				No - Employee						No evidence from photos of any defect with the steps (see photos). IP states that new trainers were to blame, and that they were unfomfortable and poor fitting and has sent them back.								6/14/21

		LW/27082021/MB		8/27/21		14:30				Deane House		IP injured toe whilst opening door.		fine dry				Leah Wilson		Employee		Bruising of big toe on right foot		Other				Internal Operations		SWT				Struck by moving object				No - Employee						Ip stubbed big toe of right foot on a door whilst moving around Deane House. She was wearing open toed shoes. There is currently nothing in the dress code for the offices to say that this type of foot wear is not allowed.								9/23/21

		YS/22102021/MB		10/22/21		12:00				Crematorium,		IP suffered hand sanitiser being sprayed into both eyes.				Hand Sanitiser		Y Schock		Employee		Irritated eyes		SSOW Failure		First Aid		External Operations		Crematorium				Other				No - Employee						The sanitiser bottle nozzle had not been wiped for a number of days/weeks causing a build up and the product to spray randomly when used. TM has added this to the weekly checks to prevent recurrance, and is looking into a different type of gel that may reduce the likelihood of this happening. There is no COSHH RA for this product								10/27/21

		MG/08102021/WFH		10/8/21		9:00				Home address of staff		IP Suffered burns after coffee pot malfunctioned		N/A		Coffee Pot		M Greenslade		Employee		Severe burns to top of right foot.		Other		Hospital		External Operations		SWT				Burn/Scald										Not directly linked to work activity so not reportable under RIDDOR.. Reported November.

		MD/05112021/MB		11/5/21		AM				Fons George Play Area, Taunton		MOPs Slipped on safety matting in play area. Husband fell and bruised face on swing support, wife attended to him and slipped as well.		Dry		Safety Matting		Mr & Mrs Doble		Member of Public		Bruising to right cheek and jarred back		Environment		None		External Operations		MOP				Slip/Trip/Fall										playground inspector contacted immediately after report and asked to attend the area for assessment.

		EC/09112021/MB		11/9/21						Vivary Park, Taunton		IP was weeding rose beds when she was bitten by small dark insect (believed to be a midge)						Ella Carter		Employee		Insect bite/sting		Environment				External Operations						Insect bite/Sting										IP suffered a mild reaction to the bites resulting in swelling and a burning sensation.

		MR/08112021/MB		11/8/21						Stockwell Stream, Taunton.		IP was egressing stream, he twisted his knee whilst doing so as his foot was stuck in deep silt.						Mick Rafferty		Employee		Sprained/twisted knee		Environment				External Operations						Sprain/Strain										Risk assessment didn't cover the necessary aspects of working next to water. SAN Issued				Yes RED

		RP/08112021/TH		11/8/21						Croft Way Car Park, Wiveliscombe		IP tripped on brick pavement								Member Of the Public								External Operations						Fracture

		MOP/08112021/TH		11/8/21						Vivary Park Climbing frame										Member Of the Public								External Operations						Cut/Laceration

		MP/14122021/MB		12/14/21						Outer Circle		Dog bite at tenanted property.		n/a		Domestic dog		Mike Parsons		Employee		Bruising and lacerations to left thigh				Hospital		Housing & Communities				Voids		Animal/Dog bite										IP attended property and was bitten by tenant's dog. Dogs are not allowed under this tenancy. Customer added to the CLL.

		MOP/28/11/2021/MB		28/11/2022 Reported January						80 Lime Crescent, Taunton		IP (MOP) allegedly slipped on bottom step at rear of property.								Member of Public		Fractures and dislocation of Ankle		Environment		Hospital		Housing & Communities																Reported on 04/01/2021

		MOP/10012022/MB		1/10/22						Castle Green Toilets		IP (MOP) allegedly slipped on wet floor of public amenities.		Wet/Rain		Public Amenities		Brian Emmont (MOP)		Member of Public		Bruising to head		Environment		None		External Operations																There is a floor cleaning programme in place the disabled toilet was engaged at the time of the incident 

		BP/19012022/MB		1/19/22								IP bitten by dog on private property during planning visit.								Employee		Minor injuries to genital area.						Development & Place																all housing visitors have been reminded to ensure their own safety and have dogs and or otherharmful aimals locked away from them durind their visit 

		DMc/18/01/2022/AH		1/18/22		9.41		2/9/22		Biffa waste site Taunton		When lifting a bath on his own into waste bin twisted back cause sciatica pain 						David MCcullough		Employee		twisted back causing sciatica pain		Negligence		Doctor		Housing & Communities		Depot				Manual Handling				No - Employee						initially Roy Porter advised that this was the 4th occasion of this incident but unable to locate previous occurences  was previously referred to OHFeb 21 advisory to be careful  - Lynn Holden Business Partner Update: 16/2/22 Roy porter produced ERA   The ERA has ben produced and all Yellow card requirements meet and closed off 				Yes Yellow 14/2/22  - 28/2/2022		ACCIDENT REPORT FORM DAVE McCULOUGH_.docx

		E/212020/AH		2/21/22				2/22/22		Oxford place Taunton 		Child - parents claim child injured them self in area under control of SWT voids team 						Eli 		Member of Public		unknown 		Other		None		Housing & Communities																childs parents claimed child imjured themselves in area under SWT voids team control this is Oxford place regenerationa area 































































































http://https/swtcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/has/mon/HSMOAIR-HS1.1/Forms/AllItems.aspx?viewid=c67b2f8c%2D2f1b%2D4d3c%2D97a5%2D73118b87ac9a&id=%2Fsites%2Fhas%2Fmon%2FHSMOAIR%2DHS1%2E1%2FAll%20Events%20%2D%202021%20%2D%202022%2FAccidents%20%2D%20April%202021%20%2D%20March%202022%2FJune%202021%2F7%20Midford%20Roadfile:///C:/Users/andh/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/I5J9JREF/ACCIDENT%20REPORT%20FORM%20DAVE%20McCULOUGH_.docx

Accidents Analysis 2021 - 2022

		ACCIDENT ANALYSIS - 1st APRIL 2021 - 31st MARCH 2022



		Accidents by Month		2019/2020		2020/2021		2021/2022

		April		4		0		0

		May		6		0		1

		June		6		1		4

		July		9		6		2

		August		2		4		8

		September		7		5		5

		October		8		3		3

		November		5		3		5

		December		3		3		2

		January		3		2		3

		February		4		2		1

		March		3		4

				60		33		34



		Accidents by Month		Employees		Contractors		MOP's		2021/2022

		April		0		0		0		0

		May		1		0		0		1

		June		3		0		1		4

		July		1		0		1		2

		August		5		0		3		8

		September		4		0		1		5

		October		2		0		1		3

		November		2		0		3		5

		December		2		0		0		2

		January		1		0		2		3

		February		1						1

		March

		Total		22		0		12		34





				RIDDOR Reportable - 2021/2022																RIDDOR Reasons - 2021/2022

				Employees		Contractors		MOP's		Totals										Over 7 days		Fracture		Asbestos Exposure		MOP taken to A&E				Totals

		April		0		0		0		0				April						0		0		0		0		0		0

		May		0		0		0		0				May						0		0		0		0		0		0

		June		1		0		0		1				June						1		0		0		0		0		1

		July		0		0		0		0				July						0		0		0		0		0		0

		August		2		0		2		4				August						1		2		1		0		0		4

		September		0		0		0		0				September						0		0		0		0		0		0

		October		0		0		0		0				October						1		0		0		0		0		1

		November		0		0		2		2				November						0		1		0		0		0		1

		December		0		0		0		0				December						0		0		0		0		0		0

		January		0		0		1		1				January						0		0		0		1		0		1

		February								0				February																0

		March								0				March																0

				3		0		5		8										3		3		1		1		0		8





		Accident Type		2019/2020		2020/2021		2021/2022

		Slip, Trip and Fall		22		9		9

		Manual Handling		9		5		3

		Struck by Moving Object		4		6		4

		Struck by Stationary Object		2		1		1

		Attacked by animal/bite		0		0		2

		Insect bite/sting		3		2		2

		Fall from height		0		3		1

		Needlestick injury		1		0		1

		Burn/scald		3		0		1

		Assaulted/Conflict		2		0		0

		Asbestos Exposure		0		0		1

		Fracture		0		0		1

		Sprain/Strain		0		0		1

		Laceration/Cut		6		6		1

		Crush Injury		3		1		0

		Eye Injury		0		0		1

		Electric/Shock		0		0		1

		Machine related		0		0		0

		Other		5		0		4

				60		33		34







				Accidents By Directorates - 2021/2022

				Housing		External		Internal		D/P/P

		April		0		0		0		0

		May		0		0		1		0

		June		2		2		0		0

		July		1		1		0		0

		August		2		4		1		0

		September		1		4		0		0

		October		1		3		0		0

		November		0		5		0		0

		December		1		1		0		0

		January		1		1		0		1

		February		1		0		0		0

		March

				10		21		2		1		34







Accidents By Month - 2021/2022



2019/2020	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	4	6	6	9	2	7	8	5	3	3	4	3	2020/2021	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	1	6	4	5	3	3	3	2	2	4	2021/2022	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	1	4	2	8	5	3	5	2	3	1	







Accidents by Directorate - 2021/2022



#REF!	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	1	Housing	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	2	1	2	1	1	0	1	1	1	External	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	2	1	4	4	3	5	1	1	0	Internal	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	D/P/P	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	







Accident Split by Type 2021-2022



Employees	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	1	3	1	5	4	2	2	2	1	1	Contractors	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Members Of Public	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	1	1	3	1	1	3	0	2	







Accident  Split by Type



2019/2020	Slip, Trip and Fall	Manual Handling	Struck by Moving Object	Struck by Stationary Object	Attacked by animal/bite	Insect bite/sting	Fall from height	Needlestick injury	Burn/scald	Assaulted/Conflict	Asbestos Exposure	Fracture	Sprain/Strain	Laceration/Cut	Crush Injury	Eye Injury	Electric/Shock	Machine related	Other	22	9	4	2	0	3	0	1	3	2	0	0	0	6	3	0	0	0	5	2020/2021	Slip, Trip and Fall	Manual Handling	Struck by Moving Object	Struck by Stationary Object	Attacked by animal/bite	Insect bite/sting	Fall from height	Needlestick injury	Burn/scald	Assaulted/Conflict	Asbestos Exposure	Fracture	Sprain/Strain	Laceration/Cut	Crush Injury	Eye Injury	Electric/Shock	Machine related	Other	9	5	6	1	0	2	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	1	0	0	0	0	2021/2022	Slip, Trip and Fall	Manual Handling	Struck by Moving Object	Struck by Stationary Object	Attacked by animal/bite	Insect bite/sting	Fall from height	Needlestick injury	Burn/scald	Assaulted/Conflict	Asbestos Exposure	Fracture	Sprain/Strain	Laceration/Cut	Crush Injury	Eye Injury	Electric/Shock	Machine related	Other	9	3	4	1	2	2	1	1	1	0	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	0	4	









Incident Data 2021 - 2022

		Incidents - April 2021 - March 2022



		Incident Ref		Incident date		Time of event		Type of Event		Location				Description of what was being carried out and what happened		Weather Conditions		Equipment Involved		Person(s) involved in incident 		Status of person(s) involved		Directorate Responsibility		Service Unit		Root Cause		RIDDOR		RIDDOR Reason		Investigation/Notes/Improvements Required		S.A.N. Issued		Hyperlink to Incident Report/Investigation		Copy of report sent to HR (date)		Additional comments

		OS/ 18052021/MB		5/18/21		15:15 pm		Vehicle Incident		Esso Garage, Wellington Road, Taunton				Low speed collision, hire van colided with the rear of a trailer being towed by another council van.		n/a		Company Vehicles				Employee		External Operations		Depot		Negligence		No				Agency driver was driving the van at the rear which collided at no more than 5 MPH with another SWT vehicle that was in front and towing a trailer. The driver of the vehicle at the rear stated thet he thought the brakes were 'a bit spongey'. Vehicles were sent to Montaz engineering for assessment. No fault found with brakes in question. Damage to trailer only light and both were deemed roadworthy.

		os/19052021/MB		5/19/21				Vehicle Incident		Trinity Road				SWT Staff exited van, after allegedly engaging the handbrake, but the van still rolled into a parked van on the street.		n/a		Company Vehicles				Employee		External Operations		Depot		Negligence						2nd similar incident in 2 days. Enquiries made to AS to assess level of driver training for agencyworkers. BP sent email to team to highlight issue of vehicle safety.

		OS/08062021/MB		6/8/21		??		Other		Vivary Park				MOP Found in bush having fallen from mobility scooter.								Member of Public		External Operations		MOP		Other						No details for the IP can be found. No immediate reasons for the crash, other than excessive alchol intake can be found either. IP was known to the emergency services at the time of attendance.

		PS/10062021/MB		6/10/21		15:30		Other		Depot				SWT colleague collapsed at the depot		n/a		n/a		P Sloman		Employee		Housing & Communities		Depot				No				Recurrance of a medical condition. ERA had been put in place with the sourcing of a 'Buddi system' to alert his colleagues if PS was to collapse. During this event the system did not alert until 4 hrs after the event. MS Contacted to air this issue. PS did not have his phone on him at the time  of the incident rendering the system inoperational. PS has been off work since, expected return date early july ERA to be reviewed prior to return.

		NW/17062021/MB		6/17/21		Various		Verbal Abuse		2 Horts Cottages, Comytrowe, Taunton				Prospective tenant attended (uninvited) a property that he and his partner were bidding for and subjected the contractors on site to a torade of abuse. Demanding certain improvements. This was followed up a phone call to Lettings in which the prospective tenants were equally abusive.		2						Member of Public		Housing & Communities						No				Tenant expected to be placed on CLL. Telephone call with RB on 25/06, tenant had not yet been placed on list as had not yet been recommended by the housing team. OW to be updated when added to the list.

		DS/21062021/WC		6/21/21		1.00pm		Vehicle Incident		Venture Way, Taunton TA2 8DG				SWT Employee reversed a SWT pool car into the back of a MOP car causing a cracked bumper.  There were no injuries.  Insurance claim recorded in Ins Claims sheet and folder cretaed under the tha name of D Steel (employee)		N/A		Vehicles		David Steel		Employee		Housing & Communities				Other		No				SWT pool car reg: WR17 AEB reversed into MOP car reg: WFG8 0WG.  There were no injuries reported.

		DN/28062021/WC		6/28/21		1.15pm		Vehicle Incident		On the B3170 near the Wellington Monument				DN was driving in thick fog and applied hos brakes.  MOP vehicle then bumped into the back of DN's vehicle due to lack of attention.  There was a slight bump and no one was injured.  Insurance claim recorded in Ins calims sheet and folder created under the name of D Newberry (employee) 		Foggy		Vehicles		Dave Newberry		Employee		External Operations		Depot		Other		No				SWT pool vehicle ( reg WK63 FRF) driven by Dave Newberry was hit by a MOP vehicle (reg WP07 VFH) when DN braked in foggy conditions.  The MOP was't paying attention and knocked into the back of the SWT vehicle.  The SWT vehicle now has a slight dent on one of the rear doors.  DN was unable to assess the damage to the MOP vehicle due to the poor condition it was in.  There were no unjuries and the emergency services were not required to attend.

		NH/12/07/2021/MB		7/12/21		15.50 Hours		Vehicle and car park entrance barrier		Canon Street Car Park, Taunton (entry barrier)				IP's wife on behalf of her husband. She reported that as her husband was driving vehicle EA15 AZB Red Fiesta through the entrance barrier to Canon Street car park the barrier fell off and damaged the car bonnet. Mr Hay was not injured. NSL have re-fitted the barrier. Mr Hay will make an insurance claim.  CCTV to be requested		Not known		Vehicle and car park entrance barrier		Member of Public		No injury		External Operations		None				NO				Waiting on CCTV images from NSL supervisor.		N/A		Neil Hay 12072021

		DB/1008021/MB		8/10/21		3pm		Vehicle Incident		Porlock East				Slight marking to 3rd party vehicle as contact made inj busy street.		fine dry		Pool car HD66 UDW		D Bryant		Employee		External Operations

		TW/03092021/MB		9/3/21				Other - Public Concern		Tone Works, Tonedale				IR Cameras monitoring bats in the mill picked up intruder on site.								Member of Public		External Operations

		GG/17092021/MB		9/17/21		10:43		Vehicle Incident		Goodlands Gardens, Taunton				Vehicle was turning around when the vehicle came into contact with some low branches.				Fleet Vehicle		Zizi Baines		Employee		External Operations

				10/1/21				Other		Hamilton Skate Park				Trip hazards reported in car park.								member of public		External Operations

		AC/12102021/MB		10/12/21		1300		Vehicle/Public Concern		Canon Street Car Park, Taunton (entry barrier)				Barrier struck vehicle causing damage.						A Cheriton		Member of Public		External Operations

		NS/25102021/MB		10/25/21				Public Concern		North St Car Park, Wiveliscombe				Wall collapsed damaging car.								member of public		External Operations

		MH/04052021/MB		approx 05/04/2021		 		Other (Public Concern)		Quay St. Minehead				Youths reported throwing rocks from the park area behind Quay Street, causing damage to vehicles and buildings and a potential major hazard to general public.		n/a		 		Clive Williams		Member of Public		External Operations		MOP		Other		No		 		During a H&S walk around in Minehead MB was approached by a MOP and informed of an incident where youths had been throwing rocks from a small park area behind Quay Street, causing damage to property and vehicles. The park area located on the hill behind the cottages on north hill is a common gathering place for youths and others. Approached DHill to ask for benches to be taken out of use to discourage loitering by youths.		 		 		 

				12/10/21		AM		Verbal Abuse		Canonsgrove				Threats of violence and aggressive behavior 								Employee		Housing & Communities

		GRG/23122021/MB		12/23/21				Other (Public Concern)		Canon St CP				Barrier struck vehicle causing damage.								Member of Public		External Operations

				12/9/21				Vehicle Incident		Wellington Depot,				Reports of speeding in the depot								Employee		Housing & Communities

				1/11/22				Vehicle Incident						Wicks lorry caught edge						J Oglive		Employee		Housing & Communities

				1/19/22				Other		Deane House				SWT Staff member collapsed in Deane House								Employee		Development & Place

		AY/21102022/AH		1/21/22				Vehicle Incident		Depot				SWT staff caused damage to  vehicle and 5mph post in depot.						A Yarde		Employee		External Operations		Depot								https://swtcouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/c_poole_somersetwestandtaunton_gov_uk/EVmaPOX0SC1BnfRJng7sUjMBuDEeYbSHQLeOBYzRQa6vVQ?e=74sEbE

		KT21102022/AH		1/27/22				Verbal Abuse		RSI Beach Hotel, Minehead.				Kate Treadway contacted Jeremy Davis as Dean Asbury has been aggressive and threatening behaviour swearing and YMCA wanted to evict him from hostel						Kate Tradway Jeremy Davis Dean Astbury		Employee		Housing & Communities				Other						The aggressive person was calmed down  - no actual violence 

		WLC/222022/AH		1/29/22		11.42.00		Other		Wellsprings Leisure Centure				Member of leisure centre undertaking extereme exercise leading to cardiac arrest 				exercise equipment		Mike IP? Helen Brinicombe		Other		External Operations				Other		No				The General manager has completed a report and has come with and will implement a number of recomendations for the leisure centre and staff staff . Recommendations implemented 

				2/16/22				Other		Broomfield house, taunton.				SWT Roofing Team witnessed working unsafely						Roofing Team		Employee		Housing & Communities

		SA/2102222/AH		2/22/22				medical condition 		Taunton Crem				Sandra Oakley has en existing medical condition and whilst attending a funeral felt like fainting and had pain in shoulder. Paramedics called 								MOP		External Operations				Medical condition 		No				The Crem manager has looked at the heating  to ensure it is suitable

		B/25022022/AH		2/16/22		Unknown 		Alcohol abuse		Flock House Circle Belvedere Gardens 				MOP was drunk and fell on his face								MOP 		Internal Operations				Alcohol abuse						Steve Jones from Facilities and administered First Aid

		PH/1/3/2022/AH		3/1/22		Unknown 		Medical condition 		Deport 				Employee has suffeered heart attact or HA symptoms at work and has CPR and Defib and been air ambulance to hospital 						Paul Hadley		Employee						Medical condition 		Yes 		Employee Heart attack at work taken to hosital from work 		Mike Barter H&S team is on site with Employee . Further update to follow































file:///C:/:w:/s/has/mon/EZyG6WArW09PmUONwavHhG4BtMDW_LfSTPXkXgOvYgMSvAhttps://swtcouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/c_poole_somersetwestandtaunton_gov_uk/EVmaPOX0SC1BnfRJng7sUjMBuDEeYbSHQLeOBYzRQa6vVQ?e=74sEbE

Incidents Analysis 2021 - 2022

		INCIDENT ANALYSIS - 1st APRIL 2021 - 31st MARCH 2022



		Incidents By Month		2019/2020		2020/2021		2021/2022

		April		0		0		1

		May		2		1		2

		June		4		1		5

		July		0		2		1

		August		2		6		1

		September		0		7		2

		October		0		5		3

		November		0		3		0

		December		3		3		3

		January		3		0		5

		February		0		0		1

		March		0		0

				14		28		24



		Incidents By Month		Employees		Contractors		MOP's		2021/2022

		April		0		0		1		1

		May		2		0		0		2

		June		3		0		2		5

		July		0		0		1		1

		August		1		0		0		1

		September		1		0		1		2

		October		0		0		3		3

		November		0		0		0		0

		December		2		0		1		3

		January		5		0		0		5

		February		1				2		3

		March								0

		Total		15		0		11		26





				RIDDOR Reportable - 2021 - 2022																		RIDDOR Reasons - 2021/2022

		Incidents		Employees		Contractors		MOP's		Totals						Incidents						dangerous Gas fitting		enter types		enter types		enter types		enter types		Totals

		April								0						April																0

		May								0						May																0

		June								0						June																0

		July								0						July																0

		August								0						August																0

		September								0						September																0

		October								0						October																0

		November								0						November																0

		December								0						December																0

		January								0						January																0

		February								0						February																0

		March								0						March																0

				0		0		0		0												0		0		0		0		0		0







		Incident Type		2019/2020		2020/2021		2021/2022

		Vehicle Incident		8		8		9

		Working At Height		0		0		1

		Medical Condition		0		0		1

		Violence/Conflict		2		4		0

		Verbal Abuse		1		1		2

		Physical Abuse		0		1		0

		Needles/Sharps		0		0		0

		Public Concern		1		0		4

		Asbestos Incident		0		4		0

		Other		0		3		5

		Other (Public Concern)		2		7		4

				14		28		26		 









				Incidents By Directorates - 2021/2022

				Housing		External		Internal		D/P/P

		April		0		1		0		0

		May		0		2		0		0

		June		3		2		0		0

		July		0		1		0		0

		August		0		1		0		0

		September		0		2		0		0

		October		0		3		0		0

		November		0		0		0		0

		December		2		1		0		0

		January		2		2		0		1

		February		1		1		1

		March

				8		16		1		1		26















Incident by Month - 2021/2022



2019/2020	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	2	4	0	2	0	0	0	3	3	0	0	2020/2021	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	1	1	2	6	7	5	3	3	0	0	0	2021/2022	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	1	2	5	1	1	2	3	0	3	5	1	







Incident by Type - 2021/2022



2019/2020	Vehicle Incident	Working At Height	Medical Condition	Violence/Conflict	Verbal Abuse	Physical Abuse	Needles/Sharps	Public Concern	Asbestos Incident	Other	Other (Public Concern)	8	0	0	2	1	0	0	1	0	0	2	2020/2021	Vehicle Incident	Working At Height	Medical Condition	Violence/Conflict	Verbal Abuse	Physical Abuse	Needles/Sharps	Public Concern	Asbestos Incident	Other	Other (Public Concern)	8	0	0	4	1	1	0	0	4	3	7	2021/2022	Vehicle Incident	Working At Height	Medical Condition	Violence/Conflict	Verbal Abuse	Physical Abuse	Needles/Sharps	Public Concern	Asbestos Incident	Other	Other (Public Concern)	9	1	1	0	2	0	0	4	0	5	4	







Incidents By Directorate - 2021/2022



Housing	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	2	2	1	External	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	1	2	2	1	1	2	3	0	1	2	1	Internal	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	D/P/P	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	







Incident Split by Type 2021/2022



Employees	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	2	3	0	1	1	0	0	2	5	1	Contractors	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Members Of Public	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	1	0	2	1	0	1	3	0	1	0	2	









Near Miss Data 2021 - 2022

		Near Miss - April 2021 - March 2022

		Event Ref		Event Date		Time of event		Location		Description of what was being carried out and what happened		Weather Conditions		Equipment Involved		Person(s) involved in incident 		Status of Person(s) involved		Directorate Responsibility		Service Unit		Root Cause		RIDDOR		RIDDOR - Reason		Investigation/Notes/Improvements Required		S.A.N. Issued		Link to NM Card.		Copy of report sent to HR (date)

		NM/08042021/MB		4/8/21		 		Blenheim Gardens, Minehead		Shelter in gardens vandalised.		n/a		Public shelter		n/a		Member of Public		External Operations		 		MOP		Other		No		Reported to BP who promptly organised for the area to be made safe.				 		 		 

		NM/11052021		5/11/21		10:05 AM		Deane House		SWT Staff member was driving out of deane house car park, an oncoming police vehicle was on the wrong side of the road, causing her to swerve and hit a brick wall.				Vehicles		H Hill		Employee		External Operations				Negligence		No				Point of contact within the police contacted to notify of the event.

		NM/04062021		6/4/21		13:30 hrs		Minehead Harbour		MOP tripped on cover flap of locating hole for access bollard.		N/A		Harbour Bollard		MOP		Member of Public		External Operations				Negligence		No				Steel bollord on Minehead Harbour left out of position by boat user and cover flap was left up. Assistant Harbour Master has now changed lock to prevent unauthorised removal.

		NM/01062021/MB		6/1/21				Wood St Carpark. Taunton		Member of Public walked under parking exit barrier and was nearly hit.		n/a		Car Park barrier		MOP		Member of Public		External Operations				Negligence		No				Reported via a councillor. The carpark is wide and open with a multitude of options for pedestrians to access/egress,  lowered kerbs and bollards. There are no devices to pick up pedestrians in the path of the bollards. They are regularly serviced. Prompt NG to report back to counsellor.

		NM/06102021/MB		10/6/21				Farriers green, taunton		Flail tractor hit large branch on tree								Contractor		External Operations										Flail tractor hit large on tree, please note not with flail rotors, but with flail extension arm. goiing at very low speed at the time. Branch fell on tractor roof.

		NM/25052021		5/25/21				Alder Close		 Un -isolated electrical wire in tenants property.		n/a		Shower electrical supply.		A Watson		Employee		Housing & Communities				SSOW Failure		No				Live Cable Exposed following shower replacement works. On return to reinstall, live cable was discovered. When investigated, a piece of tape was used to denote 'isolation/lock off. Lock off Kit system with keys allocated to individual electricians procured by team. Written system requested by MB by end of play 11/06. SAN Yellow card issued.		Yes

		NM/25062021/MB		6/25/21				11 Trebourgh Close, Taunton		Electrician attended property and found that isolation lock kit had been cut off.		n/a								Housing & Communities				Connivance		No				Electrician attended property to find lock off device had been removed without authorisation. Comms sent out and investigation ongoing. Contractor contacted for a description. Comms sent through Housing Department to highlight the severity of such actions.

		NM/06072021		7/6/21						Operative drilled through electrical table										Housing & Communities

		NM/07092021/MB		9/7/21				Wordsworth Flats, Taunton		Concrete sampling operations in a block of flats caused concrete to dislodge in flat below.						MOP		Contractor		Housing & Communities										Investigation carried out by CJL surveyors. Report claims poor concrete in slab caused spalling to occur. Safety alert sent to teams across the organisation. Disruptive types of works involving vibratory equipment must now require the property below to be empty during the operation, and banksman placed in property below.

				10/29/21						Electrician attended a LL2 on his own, despite additional requirements.										Housing & Communities

				11/5/21				Wellington Depot		Table collapsed in depot meeting room. No injuries.								Employee		External Operations

				11/9/21				Boosington drive		Night storage heater was not isolated early enough to allow sufficient time to remove.										Housing & Communities

				11/22/21				Wellington Depot		Maintenance sub contractor was seen to be working under a suspended load. Mower had been lifted using chains, to allow access to sharpen the blades.										External Operations

				12/15/21				Deane House		Contractor found to be working in a hazardous manner										External Operations

				12/15/21						Flue pipe had unauthorized modification rendering it a hazard.										Housing & Communities

				12/15/21						H&S CM Witnessed Yew Tree Facias Opo stood on top of van roof whilst carrying out works on behalf of SWT										Housing & Communities

				1/13/21						Contractor left socket in tenanted property in a dangerous condition following EICR test.										Housing & Communities												Yes

		PH/14/2/2022/AH		2/8/22		12.05		Bottom of morland Rd 		Driver hit smalll concrete bollards 		Good		Vehicle		Paul Howe		Employee		Housing & Communities										Driver to be mor vigilant when reversing 





















































Near Miss Analysis 2021 - 2022

		NEAR MISS ANALYSIS - 1st APRIL 2021 - 31st MARCH 2022



		Near Miss By Month		2019/2020		2020/2021		2021/2022

		April		0		0		1

		May				1		2

		June		2		2		3

		July		5		4		1

		August		4		0		0

		September		2		1		1

		October		0		0		2

		November		0		0		3

		December		0		0		3

		January						1

		February						1

		March

				13		8		18



		Near Miss By Month		Employees		Contractors		MOP's		2021/2022

		April		0		0		1		1

		May		2		0		0		2

		June		1		1		1		3

		July		0		1		0		1

		August		0		0		0		0

		September		0		1		0		1

		October		0		2		0		2

		November		1		2		0		3

		December		1		1		1		3

		January		0		1		0		1

		February		1		0		0		1

		March								0

		Total		6		9		3		18





				RIDDOR Reportable - 2021 - 2022																		RIDDOR Reasons - 2021/2022

		Near Miss		Employees		Contractors		MOP's		Totals						Near Miss						dangerous Gas fitting		enter types		enter types		enter types		enter types		Totals

		April		0		0		0		0						April						0		0		0		0		0		0

		May		0		0		0		0						May						0		0		0		0		0		0

		June		0		0		0		0						June						0		0		0		0		0		0

		July		0		0		0		0						July						0		0		0		0		0		0

		August		0		0		0		0						August						0		0		0		0		0		0

		September		0		0		0		0						September						0		0		0		0		0		0

		October		0		0		0		0						October						0		0		0		0		0		0

		November		0		0		0		0						November						0		0		0		0		0		0

		December		1		0		0		1						December						1		0		0		0		0		1

		January		0		0		0		0						January						0		0		0		0		0		0

		February								0						February																0

		March								0						March																0

				1		0		0		1												1		0		0		0		0		1







		Near Miss Type		2019/2020		2020/2021		2021/2022

		Vehicle Incident		0		8		3

		Voilence/Conflict		0		4		0

		Verbal Abuse		2		1		0

		Physical Abuse		2		1		0

		Needles/Sharps		2		0		0

		Public Concern		0		0		5

		Asbestos Incident		0		4		0

		Other		0		3		7

		Other (Public Concern)		0		7		3

				6		28		18









				Near Miss By Directorates - 2021/2022

				Housing		External		Internal		D/P/P

		April		0		1		0		0

		May		1		1		0		0

		June		1		2		0		0

		July		1		0		0		0

		August		0		0		0		0

		September		1		0		0		0

		October		1		1		0		0

		November		1		2		0		0

		December		2		1		0		0

		January		1		0		0		0

		February		1

		March

				10		8		0		0		18















Near Miss By Month - 2021/2022



2019/2020	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	2	5	4	2	0	0	0	2020/2021	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	1	2	4	0	1	0	0	0	2021/2022	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	1	2	3	1	0	1	2	3	3	1	1	







Near Miss By Type - 2021/2022



2019/2020	Vehicle Incident	Voilence/Conflict	Verbal Abuse	Physical Abuse	Needles/Sharps	Public Concern	Asbestos Incident	Other	Other (Public Concern)	0	0	2	2	2	0	0	0	0	2020/2021	Vehicle Incident	Voilence/Conflict	Verbal Abuse	Physical Abuse	Needles/Sharps	Public Concern	Asbestos Incident	Other	Other (Public Concern)	8	4	1	1	0	0	4	3	7	2021/2022	Vehicle Incident	Voilence/Conflict	Verbal Abuse	Physical Abuse	Needles/Sharps	Public Concern	Asbestos Incident	Other	Other (Public Concern)	3	0	0	0	0	5	0	7	3	







Near Miss By Directorates - 2021/2022



Housing	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	1	1	1	0	1	1	1	2	1	1	External	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	1	1	2	0	0	0	1	2	1	0	Internal	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	D/P/P	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	







Near Miss Split by Type 2021/2022



Employees	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	2	1	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	1	Contractors	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	0	0	1	1	0	1	2	2	1	1	0	Members Of Public	April	May	June	July	August	September	October	November	December	January	February	March	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	









H & S Inductions 2021 - 2022

		H & S Inductions - April 2021 - March 2022

		Employee Name		Start Date		Manager		DSE		Induction Date		No Show (1st) - REFER TO HR		No Show (2nd) - RED CARD		Area of Work/Team  		Directorate		Completed By		Refresher Due Date		Actions/Comments		Training Registers

		Paul Von Stolberg		2/1/20		Mark Antonelli				7/12/21								Internal Operations		M Barter				Permanent

		Paul Bryan		7/26/20		Fiona Webb										Open Spaces		External Operations

		Ryan Matthews		4/6/21		Ben Parker		 		4/6/21				 		Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter		4/6/22		Temp/agency		 

		Kira Marsh		4/6/21		Ben Parker		 		4/6/21				 		Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter		4/6/22		Temp/agency		 

		Wayne Jones		4/6/21		Ben Parker		 		4/6/21				 		Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter		4/6/22		Temp/agency		 

		Luke Barrett		4/6/21		Ben Parker		 		4/6/21				 		Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter		4/6/22		Temp/agency		 

		Robert Blake		4/6/21		Hannah Cook				7/12/21						Private Sector Housing		Housing & Communities		M Barter				permanent

		Charlotte Savage-Gantor		4/6/21		Hannah Cook				7/12/21						Private Sector Housing		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Permanent

		Matt Nixon		4/19/21		Left		Left		4/19/21				 		Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter		 19/04/2022		Temp/agency		 

		James Evans		4/26/21		Left		Left		4/26/21						Nursery opo		External Operations		M Barter		4/26/22

		Yana Sedrati		4/26/21		Ben Parker				4/26/21						nursery opo		External Operations		M Barter		4/26/22

		David Woodberry		4/26/21		Ben Parker				4/26/21						Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter		4/26/22

		Mark McLennan		4/26/21		Ben Parker				4/26/21						Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter		4/26/22

		Alison Blom-Cooper		5/3/21		Chris Hall				6/21/21						Assistant Director - Dev & Place		Development & Place		M Barter				unable to attend 10/05 or 24/05 or 07/06

		Hailey Coombes		5/4/21		Left		Left		5/10/21						Case Manager - HR		Internal Operations		M Barter		5/4/22

		William Chalmers		5/4/21		Left		Left		5/4/21						H&S Team		Internal Operations		K Lusty		5/4/22

		Kevin Daly		5/4/21		Left		Left		5/10/21						Stock Condition Surveyor		Housing & Communities		M Barter		5/4/22

		Janice Stone		5/10/21		Louisa Hill				5/24/21						Case Manager Homefinder		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Temp/agency

		Alison Pennells		5/10/21		Rebecca Howat				5/24/21						Internal Communications Specialist		Internal Operations		M Barter				Permanent

		Nick Waterman		5/10/21		Kelly Sedgbeer				11/4/20						Localities Champion - Fencing		Housing & Communities		R Davidson		11/4/21		Permanent - taken on from agency

		Stephen Webb		5/17/21		Gavin Simpson				5/17/21						Trades Person		Housing & Communities		M Barter		5/17/22		Temp/agency

		Gavin Yarnold		5/24/21		Left		Left		6/7/21						Stock Condition Surveyor		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Darren Roberts		5/24/21		Rebecca Miller				6/7/21						Planning		Development & Place		M Barter

		Michael Croft		6/1/21												Civica On Demand								Third Party Not Available on Outlook

		Philip Levigne		6/8/21		Ben Parker				6/29/21						Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter

		Sally Parry		6/9/21		Scott Weetch				6/21/21						Engagement Lead		Community resilience team, Deane House		M Barter				Agency

		Cara Strom		6/14/21		Jeremy Davis				6/21/21						RSI No First Night Out Officer		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Fixed Term

		Tony Higton		6/14/21		Kate Lusty				6/15/21						H&S Partner		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Paul Fife		6/14/21		Julie Sabey				6/21/21						Senior Housing Case Manager		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Deborah Kirk		6/14/21		Left		Left		6/28/21						Case Manager - Estates and Tenancy		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Laurence Watkins		6/15/21		Jeremy Davis				6/21/21						RSI Tenancy Sustainment Officer		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Fixed Term

		Pamela Rowe-Jones		6/16/21		James Barrah				6/21/21						Open Contractor Project Lead		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Graham Miller		6/16/21		Ben Parker				6/16/21						Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter				agency

		Elizebeth Baines		6/16/21		Ben Parker				6/16/21						Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter				agency

		Christopher (Billy) Baxter		6/18/21		Julie Sabey				6/28/21						Case Manager - ASB		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Julie Renshaw		6/21/21		Michaela Richards				6/28/21						Case Manager - Arrears		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		John Dyson		6/21/21		Paul Fitzgerald				6/28/21						Corporate Finance Manager		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Sian Hedger		6/21/21		Paul Fitzgerald				6/28/21						Strategic Finance Advisor		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Ian Denton		6/21/21						6/28/21						Senior Business Analyst		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Becky Dugdale		6/28/21						6/28/21						Estates & Tenancy		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Alzbeta Peterkova		6/28/21						7/12/21						Housing Compliance		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Paul Turner		6/29/21						6/29/21						Electrician		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Andy Morton		6/29/21						6/29/21						Electrician		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Partick Free		7/1/21						7/1/21						Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Laurence Hughes		7/5/21						7/19/21						Interim Capital Programme Manager		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Alan Murray		7/5/21						7/26/21						Private Sector Housing		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Adrian Davies		7/6/21						7/19/21						Case Manager, Rent Recovery		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Alex Greaves		7/12/21						12/07/202`1						Open Spaces - Grass		External Operations		M Barter

		John Hicks		7/12/21						7/26/21						Business Analyst		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Frank Holmes		7/13/21						7/19/21						Firmstep Developer		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Sarah Phillips		7/19/21						7/29/21						Case manager Homelessness		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Toby Strong		7/26/21						7/27/21						Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Boris Todorov		7/26/21						7/27/21						Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Daniel Lingard		12/07/202`1						12/07/202`1						Open Spaces - Grass		External Operations		M Barter

		Hazel McGrouther		TBC						4/26/21						Case Manager - Housing		Housing & Communities		M Barter		4/26/22

		Steve Slocombe								5/26/21						Localities Champion 		External Operations		M Barter

		Deborah Ayres								8/23/21						sheltered Housing		Housing & Communities						D

		Kimberly Pickard								7/12/21						case manager		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Sarah Miles								7/29/21										M Barter

		Fiona Davies								7/26/21								Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Suzanne Harris								7/19/21						Beravement Services		External Operations		M Barter

		Kaylee Morris		3/4/21						5/24/21								Internal Operations		M Barter

		Richard Berryman		5/4/21		Left				16/08/2021 rebooked				DNA 10/05		Stock Condition Surveyor		Housing & Communities						Repeated no shows despite TM being involved.

		Neil Jenkins		5/5/21						16/08/2021 rebooked				DNA		Fraud Investigator		External Operations						employed by Powys CC not SWT

		Phoebe Patterson-Sweeney		5/24/21						16/08/2021 rebooked						Private Rented Officer		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Permanent

		Amina Shah		6/21/21						16/08/2021 rebooked				DNA 28/06		Housing Options		Housing & Communities						Agency

		Zabrina Hasan		7/9/21				DNA 19/07		16/08/2021 rebooked						Case Manager Housing Options		Housing & Communities						Agency

		Kevin Williams		7/13/21						8/23/21						Deputy MO & Lawyer		Internal Operations						Fixed Term

		Tanya Harvey		7/16/21						8/23/21						HR Case Management Lead		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Mark Fisher		7/19/21						9/21/21				DNA 29/07		Case management lead Homelessness		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Heidi Tucker		7/26/21						8/23/21						Environmental Protection Officer		External Operations		M Barter				Permanent

		Mark Shipley		7/26/21						8/23/21						Environmental Health Officer		External Operations		M Barter				Permanent

		Antony Pruvedenti		7/26/21						9/14/21						Customer Champion		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Jacob Kavanaugh		8/2/21						8/26/21								Internal Operations		M Barter

		John Adewole		8/2/21						9/1/21						Tenancy Case Manager		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Ramneet Kaur		8/3/21						8/26/21						Share Point Developer		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Samantha Nobbs		8/5/21						8/26/21						Home Finder Case Manager		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Emily Jobling		8/6/21						9/27/21						Case Manager		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Jonathan Spey		8/9/21						8/26/21						Estates and Tenancy		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Melody Allsebrook		8/9/21						9/21/21						Data Protection Officer		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Sarah Steel		8/10/21						9/21/21						Case manager - Private sector housing		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Alexander Gilbert		8/23/21						9/1/21						Senior Housing Case Manager		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Steve Wright				Left				10/12/21		DNA 26/07/2021				Environmental Health Officer		External Operations						Rebooked for 2nd time.

		Shell Dunn								1/19/22				sick 29/07				Housing & Communities		M Barter				Does Not Work Tuesdays

		Kevin Gibbs								8/19/21						Electrician		Housing and Communities		M Barter				Temp - Perm.

		Spencer With								11/3/21						Gas Engineer		Housing and Communities		M Barter				Temp - Perm.

		John McDiarmid								9/1/21						Stock Condition Surveyor		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Paul Howe		8/9/21						8/19/21						Carpenter		Housing and Communities		M Barter

		John Williams		8/16/21						9/21/21		DNA 		DNA		Community Governance Review		Internal Operations

		Dominic Rosenbaum		8/16/21				Apologies, rebook		9/20/21						Assets Specialist		External Operations		M Barter

		Mike Hutton		8/25/21						9/1/21						Stock Condition Surveyor		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Patrick Ruckert		9/6/21						9/13/21						Asset surveyor		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Katherine Church		10/26/21						10/26/21						Project Manager, Climate Change		External Operations		M Barter

		Susie Mercer		9/13/21						9/20/21						Grant Funding Bid Writer		Development & Place		M Barter

		Gemma Sims		9/13/21						9/21/21						Planning Business Support		Development & Place		M Barter

		Jacqui Ricketts		9/7/21						9/27/21						Rent Recovery		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Timothy Phillips		9/13/21						9/20/21						BI Specialist		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Jennifer Cole								9/13/21						Rent Recovery		Housing & Communities		m Barter

		Connor Ferguson		9/6/21						9/13/21						Admin		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Sarah Evans		9/14/21						9/21/21								Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Shannon Feagan		9/6/21						9/13/21						Customer Champion		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Sarah Woods		9/6/21						9/13/21						CS		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Jon Wright		9/13/21						9/20/21								Internal Operations		M Barter

		Stuart Archer		9/13/21						9/20/21						HR Case Manager		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Ben Perry		9/22/21						9/27/21						Planning Graduate (Apprentice)		Development & Place		M Barter

		Martin Doherty		9/2/21						9/20/21						Project Manager, Climate Change		External Operations		M Barter

		Omri Ben Chetit		10/7/21		Kate Murdoch				10/12/21						Green Infrastructure		Development & Place		M Barter

		Gareth Arndell		9/13/21		Alice Mercer				9/27/21						Customer Champion		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Kyle Wells		9/10/21		Jenny Collins										Civica On Demand		Internal Operations

		Thomas Hart		9/10/21		Jenny Collins										Civica On Demand		Internal Operations

		Olabisi Dolapo Tolrunlogo.		04/10/20201		R Burge				10/5/21		DNA 05/09		DNA 12/09		Customer Champion		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Miguel Goncalves		9/27/21		K Lusty				9/27/21						H&S Admin		Internal Operations		M Barter

		Sarah Thresher		10/4/21		Jerry Davis				10/5/21						RSI Team		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Simon Martin		10/1/21		A Sollis				10/12/21						SFS		External Operations		M Barter		LEFT		Depot based fleet mechanics/fitters

		Andrew Lawrence		10/1/21		A Sollis				10/12/21						SFS		External Operations		M Barter				Depot based fleet mechanics/fitters

		Jeff Bennett		10/1/21		A Sollis				10/12/21						SFS		External Operations		M Barter				Depot based fleet mechanics/fitters

		Timothy Sheasby		10/1/21		M Riches				10/5/21						Business Intelligence		Internal Operations		M Barter

		John Boon		10/11/21		Alice Mercer										Customer Champoin		Internal Operations						South Somerset Employee

		Tim Hill		10/11/21		Alice Mercer										Customer Champoin		Housing & Communities						South Somerset Employee

		Isisbor Ayere		10/4/21		Fisher, Mark				10/5/21						Housing Officer		Housing & Communities		M Barter				agency

		Steffan Taynton		10/4/21		Fisher, Mark				10/12/21		DNA 05/10				Housing Officer		Housing & Communities		M Barter				agency

		Vicky Lowmen		11/1/21		Stuart Noyce				12/14/21						Specialist (Parking and Enforcment)		External Operations		M Barter				Permanent

		Saida Kurmaully		10/11/21		Joanne Toogood,				10/26/21						Case Manager - Public Health		External Operations		M Barter

		Neil Padfield		11/1/21		G Simpson				11/1/21						Locality Champion		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Depot Based ~

		Jack Parsons		11/1/21		R Porter				11/3/21						Plumbing Apprentice		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Joe Salter		11/1/21		R Porter				11/3/21						Carpentry Apprentice		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Ashley Clark		10/15/21		S. Rea				10/26/21						HR Case Manager		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Cathryn Howell		10/26/21		J.Davis				11/9/21						RSI Housing Navigator		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Fixed term

		Andrew Griffiths		10/4/21		L. Hughes				10/26/21						Capital Works Surveyor (Interim)		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		ChelleLyne Amorsen		10/28/21		Nicky Rendell				1/19/22						ER Specialist		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Jonti Ogilive		11/3/21		David Davies				11/3/21						Trades Person		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Permanent

		Jennifer Clifford		11/8/21		Kate Murdoch				11/9/21						Garden Town Implementation Manager		Development & Place		M Barter

		Sophie Jones		11/8/21		Kate Murdoch				12/14/21						Policy Planner Graduate		Development & Place		M Barter

		Andrew Knutt		11/1/21		Lisa Tucker				1/26/22						Economic Development Specialist.		Development & Place		M Barter				Works Weds-Friday only.

		 Steve Coomber		11/8/21		Sharon Kelly				3/1/22		no show 01/03				Comms Specialist		Internal Operations

		Steffan Jones		11/8/21		Michaela Mullen				12/14/21						Rent Recovery		Housing & Communities

		David Heard		11/8/21		Michaela Mullen				12/14/21						Rent Recovery		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Emmeline Brooks		11/8/21		Rebecca Miller				3/1/22		Did not attend see notes.				Phosphate Planner		Development & Place						Works part time, date TBC

		Chris Toulcher		11/17/21		Darren Stone				12/14/21						Stock Condition Surveyor		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		James Holbrook		11/23/21		Kate Murdoch				12/15/21		Did not attend due to technical issues				Principle Policy Planning Officer		Development & Place		M Barter

		Jessica Picken		11/15/21		Kate Murdoch				12/15/21						Nutrient Neutrality Officer		Development & Place		M Barter				Fixed term

		Tony Bryant		11/29/21		Suzie Rea				12/15/21						Strategic People Lead		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Sarah( Lily) Brunsdon		11/26/21		Mark Fisher				3/1/22		No Show 11/01		no show 01/03		Housing Officer		Housing & Communities						Agency

		Samuel Norman		12/1/21		Ben Parker				12/17/22						Localities Champion		External Operations		M Barter				Permanent

		Taofeek Kareem		12/13/21		Mark Fisher				1/11/22						Case Manager		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Liaqat Ali		12/13/21		Mark Fisher				3/1/22		No Show 11/01				Case Manager		Housing & Communities		A Hardy				Agency

		Wish Mandava		12/13/21		Mark Fisher				1/11/22						Case Manager		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Pat Paterson		12/13/21		Rebecca Miller				1/11/22						Planning |Enforcement Officer		Development & Place		M Barter				Permanent

		Lindsay Megson		12/9/21		Simon Lewis				1/15/22		`  				Homeless Commissioning and Support Lead		Housing & Communities		M Barter

		Nick Argles		1/4/22		Sally Stark				1/19/22						Assets Specialist		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Jennifer Cole		1/4/22		Michaela Mullen				1/19/22						Case Manager - Rent Recovery		Housing & Communities		M Barter				Agency

		Kieran reeves		1/24/22		Rebecca Miller				1/26/22						Senior Planning Officer		Development & Place		M Barter				Permanent

		Adam Sanderson		1/17/22		Ben Parker				1/17/22						Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter

		Carlton Seldon		1/17/22		Ben Parker				1/17/22						Open Spaces		External Operations		M Barter

		Richard Boyt		1/5/21		Rebecca Miller				1/19/22						Planning Officer		Development & Place		M Barter				Agency

		Andrew Hardy		1/25/22		Kate Lusty				1/26/22						H&S Case Manager		Internal Operations		M Barter				Agency

		Matthew Chalker		2/9/22		Alex Lumby				2/22/22						Customer Champion		Internal Operations		A Hardy				Permanent

		Connor Ferguson		12/20/21		Heather Puddy				2/22/22						Case Manager		Housing & Communities						Permanent

		Abigail Munro		1/10/21		Sophie Throwbridge				3/1/22						Case Manager-Housing Performance		Housing & Communities		A Hardy				Permanent

		Jack Baldwin		1/31/22		Pete Death				2/22/22						Assets Case Manager		Housing & Communities		A Hardy

		Michael O'Halloran		2/2/22		Paul Sandison				3/9/22						Procurement Consultant		Internal Operations						Agency

		Kestra French		2/7/22		Shari Hallett				3/9/22						Case Manager -Executive Support		Internal Operations						Agency

		Joseph Brimbong		2/15/22		Louisa Hill				3/1/22						Specialist Accommodation and Support		Housing & Communities		A Hardy				Agency 

		Charlotte Baker		2/28/22		Sarah Richards				3/1/22						Rough Sleeper co-ordinator		Housing & communities		A Hardy				Agency 

		Spring Clean Gang x3 (Names  TBC)		07/02/2022???		Ben Parker/J Norton				07/02/2022???



























































































Induction Analysis 2021-2022

		H & S Inductions - Delivery Stats (1st April 2021 - 31st March 2022)







																												Directorate Totals
(YTD)

		Delivered H & S Inductions		Apr-21		May-21		Jun-21		Jul-21		Aug-21		Sep-21		Oct-21		Nov-21		Dec-21		Jan-22		Feb-22		Mar-22

		Housing & Communities		0		4		11		9		6		10		4		8		1		4						57

		External Operations		9		0		3		6		2		3		5		0		3		3						34

		Internal Operations		0		3		3		4		2		10		3		0		0		3						28

		Development, Place & Planning		0		0		2		0				2		1		5		1		5						16

				9		7		19		19		10		25		13		13		5		15		0		0		135



		Outstanding Inductions @ 		2/28/22

		Housing & Communities		6

		External Operations		0

		Internal Operations		4

		Development, Place & Planning		1

				11



		Mike - can you make sure that the outstanding figure includes 'not delivered but booked in' and 'not yet booked in' 





Housing 	&	 Communities	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	0	4	11	9	6	10	4	8	1	4	Internal Operations	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	0	3	3	4	2	10	3	0	0	3	External Operations	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	9	0	3	6	2	3	5	0	3	3	Development, Place 	&	 Planning	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	0	0	2	0	2	1	5	1	5	







Outstanding Inductions @ 28/01/2022





Housing 	&	 Communities	External Operations	Internal Operations	Development, Place 	&	 Planning	6	0	4	1	

Housing 	&	 Communities	External Operations	Internal Operations	Development, Place 	&	 Planning	





Executor RA 2021 - 2022

		Employee Name		Task Manager		Team		Directorate		Type		Date Identified		Date complete		HR Notified		Review Date & conditions		Follow-Up Actions		Notes/Comments

		Max Maximov		B Parker		Open Spaces		External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				7/5/21		7/5/21		Oct-21		Continued check ins with TM

		Adrian Betteridge		O Warcup		Voids		Housing & Communities		ERA - Medical Condition				6/24/21		6/24/21		9/24/21		Check in September to update medication and assess recovery.

		Ben Dawe		B Parker		Open Spaces		External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				6/16/21		6/16/21		9/16/21		Check in September to assess progress

		Chris Turner		B Parker		Open Spaces		External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				7/15/21		7/15/21		Oct-21		Check in with TM October

		Martin Collins		B Parker		Open Spaces		External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				6/23/21		6/23/21		Sep-21		Check in with TM October

		Phil Sloman		O Warcup		Stores		Housing & Communities		ERA - Medical Condition				8/20/21				Ongoing review based on changes in medication		Regular contact with Phil (both H&s and TM/PBP

		Richard Sawyer		B Parker		Open Spaces		External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				9/29/21								Angina. ERA to be reviewed. A Smith PBP, multiple attempts to call. BP 

		Jason Bowie		B Parker		Open Spaces		External Operations		ERA - Stress Management				TBC								Complicated case involving multiple factors.

		Sam Wells		R Porter		Housing R&M		Housing & Communities						No ERA in place								Returned to work 09/08/2021. 

		Jamie Budge		R Porter		Housing R&M		Housing & Communities		ERA - Medical Condition				8/24/21								Seconded to desk based role for 6 months.

		Matt Lay				Open Spaces		External Operations						TBC

		Paul Judd		B Parker		Crematorium		External Operations														No Action

		Stefan Hrisca		S Fletcher		Open Spaces		External Operations						No ERA in place								Back issue overcome. Currently off with Broken Ribs 

		James Hay				Open Spaces		External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				11/15/21								CTS, recently underwent anoperation. Due to RTW on 15/11/2021. Phased RTW increasing from 4 hr/d increasing hourly each week. ERA compiled ready for RTW intervgiew.

		Chris Boobier		Chris Poole		Grass Open Spaces		External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				TBC								Still off work further OH referral after 15/09.

		Stuart Monnely		R Porter		Repairs and Maintenance		Housing & Communities		ERA - Medical Condition				8/24/21		8/24/21		11/24/21				RTW carried out on 16/08/2021 by OW. ERA form sent 17/08/2021 awaiting response.

		Neil Corfield		R Porter				External Operations		ERA - Stress Management				No ERA in place								Reactional Stress.

		Helen Westcott		S Papworth				Internal Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				TBC?ERA in place								Awaiting return fron AL. (2nd week sept.) ERA awaitingn review and sign

		Julie Baines		 Sarah Richards				Housing & Communities		ERA - Medical Condition				TBC								R Arthritis

		Steve Close								ERA - Stress Management				No ERA Required								No further action. Reactional stress.

		Sam Crowther												N/A left SWT								No Action - Left 30/07/2021

		Jess McVie				Customer services		Internal Operations		ERA - Stress Management				TBC

		Charlie Walters		E Kerr		Crematorium		External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition		ERA - Medical Condition		9/13/21				10/13/21				Currently undergoing cancer treatment, reduced immune system. 2.5 days/week office based role ERA to mitigate the risk of infection.

		Samantha Lardner				Customer services		Internal Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				8/23/21		8/24/21		8/24/21		Review in 12 months.		Facilities contacted to arrange food segregation 19/08/2021. Information on Jext Pen sent to facilities for sharing with the first aiders 23/08/2021

		Lee Jarret		G Fry				Housing & Communities		ERA - Medical Condition				No ERA in place								Referred for HAVS test

		Toby Strong		B Parker		Open Spaces		External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				8/25/21								ERA in place SEND TO HR cc lynne

		Ashley Dell		G Fry				Housing & Communities						TBC

		Kate Attree		B Parker		Open Spaces		External Operations						No ERA in place								MH issues. BP is managing with Wellbeing Plan

		Robert Decsei				Compliance		Housing & Communities						TBC								LTS. Signed off untill 24/09

		David Atkinson				Landlord and Compliance		Housing & Communities		ERA - Medical Condition				9/20/21		10/4/21						2/2/22mary Dosson advises David visited cardiologist and advises cand drive until after successful surgery pre op surgery to detrmine what consistes of Davis on light duties mary Dosson to keep updsating  

		Becky Howatt		S Papworth				Internal Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				TBC								Shoulder pain, Review DSE

		Ella Carter				Open Spaces		External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition				11/1/21		11/8/21		Ongoing Review.				Shoulder and upper limb pain. ERA in place.

		Andy Jones		Chris Poole				External Operations		ERA - Medical Condition

		Lucy Hawkins		Michaela Mullen 		Rent recovery 		Housing & Communities		ERA - Medical Condition		ERA - Medical Condition								DSE assessment booked 8/2/22 from 10-1030 am 		orig DSE identified a special keyboard this needs replacing and has been requested 18/1/2022 to be paid by DSE budget DSE assessment to be undertaken at her home

		Hana Drozak		Alice Mercer				Internal Operations						TBC								ERA request sent to Task Manager 15/2/22

		Anna Derrrick 		Kat Jones				Internal Operations						TBC								ERA request sent to Task Manager 15/2/22

		Toby Eveleigh		Alan Keates				Internal Operations						TBC								Alan Keates advised that TE is off sick and expecting his return and once RTW is completed wil advise 































ERA Analisys 2021-2022

		EXECUTOR RISK ASSESSMENTS BY DIRECTORATE (1st APRIL 2021- 31st MARCH 2022)





																												Directorate Totals
(YTD)

		Executor risk assessments by Directorate 2021/2022		Apr-21		May-21		Jun-21		Jul-21		Aug-21		Sep-21		Oct-21		Nov-21		Dec-21		Jan-22		Feb-22		Mar-22

		Housing & Communities		0		0		1		0		3		0		0		0		0		2						6

		External Operations		0		0		2		2		1		2		0		0		0		0						7

		Internal Operations		0		0		0		0		1		0		0		0		0		0		1				2

		Development, Place & Planning		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0						0

		Total		0		0		3		2		5		2		0		0		0		2						15

























		Observations:













		Recomendations:

















OH Analysis 2021-2022

		OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH (1st APRIL 2021 - 31st MARCH 2022)



																												Directorate Totals
(YTD)

		Occupational Health 2021/2022		Apr-21		May-21		Jun-21		Jul-21		Aug-21		Sep-21		Oct-21		Nov-21		Dec-21		Jan-22		Feb-22		Mar-22

		Housing & Communities		0		1		1		0		0		3		2		0		0								7

		External Operations		0		0		0		0		0		3		5		0		0								8

		Internal Operations		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0								0

		Development, Place & Planning		0		0		0		0		0		1		0		0		0								1

		Total		0		1		1		0		0		7		7		0		0								16

























		Observations:  Internal ops - Nicola Pailing OH assessment via HR  - review with TM (Sean Papworth) to agree Reasonable adjustments from OH assessment 21 Dec 21













		Recomendations:

















Safety Notices 2021 2022

		Safety Notices Issued (Internal) - April 2021 - March 2022

		SAN Ref		Recipient Person/Team		Directorate		Type of Notice		Date Issued		Reason for Issue		Issued By		Actions Required		Owner		Conclusion		Date Notice Removed

				Housing Repairs and Maintenance and Open spaces.		Housing & Communities		Enforcement - Red		4/22/21		No evidence of training for use of abrasive wheels available.		MB/KL		Obtain and record any previous certification. Arrange training for all that need it and no evidence can be found.		JW/JS

				Repairs and Maintenance		Housing & Communities		Improvement - Yellow		5/4/22								 		 		 

		PRO/KL/060521/01		Repairs and Maintenance		Housing & Communities		Enforcement - Red		5/6/21		No Evidence of training for use of chainsaw		KL		Arrange relevant Chainsaw training for operational requirement (call upon assistance from Open Spaces Team until red card has been lifted)		JW (assistance from JS)		James White confirmed that no chainsaw activity is required within this operation; if there was an ad-hoc requirement then a request for support would be made to the Open Spaces Team		5/7/21

		PRO/KL/060521/02		Repairs and Maintenance		Housing & Communities		Enforcement - Red		5/6/21		No evidence of training for use of High Power Jet Washer Trailer		KL		Arrange relevant High Power Wash training for operational requirement

•Note 07/05/21 - Andrew Sollis has been charged with arranging training - RED CARD will remain until training has been delivered.				James White and Jonathan 

		SAME AS ABOVE		Open Spaces/Street Scene		External Operations		Enforcement - Red		as above		as above		KL		as above		JW & JS

		IMP/KL/04052021/01 		Repairs and Maintenance		Housing & Communities		Enforcement - Red		5/4/21		Absence of adequate controls to ensure that details of risk assessments are communicated to all team members. Inadequate process for pre-requisite site checks to take place before work commences		KL		Create a written Safe System of Work for Roofing Operations, incorporating Span Deck equipment. 		JW/RP/NB				6/22/21

		PRO/MBJB/09062021/01 		Dodds Group		Housing & Communities		Enforcement - Red		6/9/21		Contractor allegedly left domestic supply socket in property in a hazardous condition, resulting in an electric shock to tenant's son.		MB/JB		Submit: H&S Policy, PLI Certificate, Training Records, and a programme for audit of completed inspections.						6/22/21

		IMP/MBJB/16062021/01		Dodds Group/Compliance Team		Housing & Communities		Improvement - Yellow		6/17/21		To replace previously issued Red Card and to maintain and monitor further improvements.		MB		SWT -  To hold contract review meeting by the end of WC 05/07/2021. Dodds - To ensure that sufficient time is spent on site and to ensure that all paperwork is legible and fully complete.				Review meetings have been set up monthly. Customer service calls to inspected properties after Dodds visit to monitor time spent as well as other potential issues. 		7/21/21

		PRO/MB/30072021/01 		Open Spaces/Street Scene		External Operations		Enforcement - Red		7/30/21		No risk assessments in place for sceptic tank/sewage work/inspections.		MB		To create Risk Assessments for sewer/sceptic tank activities.				Suitable and sufficient risk assessment created.		8/17/21

		IMP/MB/07102021/01		Responsive Repairs		Housing & Communities		Improvement - Yellow		10/7/21		Dry cutting concrete		MB		Use Dust Surpression- review and re-issue RA						10/14/21

		PRO/MB/12112021/01		Open Spaces		External Operations		Enforcement - Red		11/12/21		Stream/Waterway Clearance		MB		Implement safety measures for work beside water- Life jackets and rescue plan.

		PRO/MB/08122021/01		Asbestos Team		Housing & Communities		Enforcement - Red		12/8/21		Work on garage roofs.		MB		Implement fall mitigation measures for work on garage roofs and update RAMS				air deck use added to the RA. New bags ordered solely for the Asb. Team. Cleansing protocol included also.		12/9/21

		PRO/MBTH/16122021/01		Earthys Metal Works		External Operations		Enforcement - Red		12/16/21		Guttering works on Deane House causing a hazard to staff and pedestrians.		MB		Implement fall protection and safety netting at work site. Update RAMS and gain signatures from site operatives.						12/16/21

		PRO/MB/17122021/01		Yew Tree Facias		Housing & Communities		Enforcement - Red		12/17/21		Contractors witnessed standing on van roof with no fall protectrion. No evidence of ladder inspections. No evidenceof having read and understood RAMS.		MB

		IMP/MB/04012022/01 		Yew Tree Facias		Housing & Communities		Improvement - Yellow		1/4/21		Evidence training and inspection of Easi Deck system. Ensure that all YTF staff have read and understood RAMS for the tasks they are undertaking.		MB

		IMP/MB/14/01/2022		M D Group		Housing & Communities		Improvement - Yellow		1/14/22		Provide evidence of steps taken to prevent recurrence of an electrical socket left in a dangerous condition.		MB

		PRO/MB/09022022/01 		SWT Roofing Team		Housing & Communities		Enforcement - Red		2/9/22		Roofing Team witnessed stood on roof of block of flats with no WAH controls.		MB		Disciplinary -Gross Misconduct.				Staff on site suspended pending investigation.

		imp/AH/09/02/2022/01		Davis McColough		Housing & Communities		Improvement - Yellow		2/9/22		D Mccullough failed to adhere to safe pracrice lifting a bath into a skip single handed		AH		ERA oh review rtw meeting MH refesher tng activity ERisk assessmnet awarenes		Roy porter		to be concluded by end Feb 22		Yellow card evidence received from Roy Porter and closed off 17 Feb 22 AH

		imp/AH/09/02/2022/02		R&R Scheduling team		Housing & Communities		Improvement - Yellow		2/9/22		R&R scheduler did not report accident as unaware of procedure		AH		SWT accident/incident near miss refresher tng awareness of reporting accidents RIDDOR requirements		Roy porter		to be concluded by end Feb 22		Yelo card evidence received from Roy Porter and closed 17 Feb 22 AH









































S.A.N. Analisys 2021-2022

		SAFETY ACTION NOTICES ISSUED (INTERNAL) APRIL 2021- - MARCH 2022





																												Directorate Totals
(YTD)

		S.A.N. issued 2021/2022		Apr-21		May-21		Jun-21		Jul-21		Aug-21		Sep-21		Oct-21		Nov-21		Dec-21		Jan-22		Feb-22		Mar-22

		Housing & Communities		1		4		2		0		0		0		1		0		2		2		3				15

		External Operations		0		1		0		1		0		0		0		1		1		0						4

		Internal Operations		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0						0

		Development, Place & Planning		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0						0

		Total		1		5		2		1		0		0		1		1		3		2		3				19







		as @ 21/10/21



				RED				YELLOW

				open 		closed		open 		closed		Totals

		Housing & Communities		1		7		2		5		15

		External Operations		0		4		0		0		4

		Internal Operations		0		0		0		0		0

		Development, Place & Planning		0		0		0		0		0

		Total		1		11		2		5		19















		Observations:













		Recomendations:

















HSE Interventions 2021 2022

		HSE Interventions - April 2021 - March 2022)

		Recipient Person/Team		Directorate		Type of Notice		Date Issued		Reason for Issue		Issued By		Actions Required		Owner		Conclusion/Actions		Date Notice Removed/Quesry Concluded















































































HSE Analisys 2021-2022

		HSE INTERVENTIONS 2021/2022





																												Directorate Totals
(YTD)

		HSE interventions 2021/2022		Apr-21		May-21		Jun-21		Jul-21		Aug-21		Sep-21		Oct-21		Nov-21		Dec-21		Jan-22		Feb-22		Mar-22

		Housing & Communities		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0								0

		External Operations		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0								0

		Internal Operations		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0								0

		Development, Place & Planning		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0								0

		Total																										0

























		Observations:













		Recomendations:

















SC - Housing

		SCORECARD - HOUSING & COMMUNITIES (2021/2022)

		Accidents		Totals

		April

		May

		June

		July

		August

		September

		October

		November

		December

		January

		February

		March

				0





COVID - Wellbeing Escalation

		COVID Wellbeing Issues 

		Employee Name		Date Raised		Team		Directorate		Vulnerable Employee/Shielding		Allocated Pool Car		DSE		OH Referal		Building Access - OH referral recommendation		Building Access Exceptional Circumstance - Wellbeing 		Other		Active Date

		Patrick Weeks		5/27/21		Business Support				NO		NO		NO		NO		NO		YES

		Natalie Kirbyshire		6/7/21						NO		NO		NO		NO		NO		YES

		Olivia Clydesdale (Jane Windebank to accompany Olivia one day per week)		6/16/21		Project Officer		Housing & Communities		No										Yes		DH Access for 2 days per week please, JW would like to attend for 1 of these days for support and training.

		Angela Bolitho		6/15/21		Engagement Lead (North Taunton) & North Taunton One Team coordinator				No		No		NO		NO		NO		YES		Room booking to avoid travelling home from DH to chair meetings.

		Hayley Kneif		6/16/21		Auditor				No		No		NO		NO		NO		YES		Desk booking at DH for Thurdays during school holidays.  Nor prectical to WFH with 3 children in the house.

		Paula Rigby		6/15/21						No		No		NO		NO		NO		YES		Paula has previously been assessed and approved.  She requires access to Deane House on Tuesdays and Thursdays.

		Kimberley Lewington		6/25/21		Private Sector Housing & Environment Manager				No		No		NO		NO		NO		YES		Kim requires access to WSH on Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday due to child support issues.

		Hannah Cook		7/6/21		Homelessness & Accommodation Specialist				No		No		YES		NO		NO		YES		Hannah requires access to WSH for an unspecified amount of days per week due to working conditions at home.  Hannah has just returned from maternity leave. 

		Kerri Newell		7/7/21		Housing Officer				No

		Adam Williams		7/15/21		Internal Auditor SWAP)				No		No		NO		NO		NO		YES		Adam requires access to Deane House twice per week during the school holidays.























































OH 2021 - 2022

		Occupational Health Monitoring - April  2021 - March 2022										REDS - AWAITING OH REPORTS

		Employee Name		Referral Dates		Task Manager		Role		Team		Directorate		Review Type		Frequency		Last Review Date		Next Review		Referral Date		Result		Actions/Comments

		Craig Rossiter		Sep-21		James White		Sceduler		Building Services - Scheduler		Housing & Communities		DSE - referral		By OH Advice										Request made to OH 20/08/21 for referral forms to be sent to Craig. Signed concent returned 6/09/21 - LH to arrange referral (@ 7/09/21)

		Lee Jarrett		Sep-21		Glenn Fry		Electrician		Electricals		Housing & Communities		HAVS												currently waiting for HAVS medical report - @ 3/09/21

		Chris Boobier		Sep-21		C Poole						External Operations		Reactive Referral - other		By OH Advice										OH Referral on return to work (15/09??) Signed off until December 2021. Musculoskeletal.

		James Hay		Sep-21		B Parker		Localities Champion		Grass Cutting		External Operations		Reactive Referral - other		Ad-hoc										Undergone surgery for CTS, referred for HAVS assessment on RTW. RTW 15/11, phased return 4 hrs/5hrs

		Julie Baines		TBC

		R Sawyer		Oct-21		B Parker		Locality Champion		Open Spaces		External Operations														Angina - OH Referral. ERA updated

		Adrian Betteridge		Jun-21		Ollie Warcup		Builder		Voids		Housing & Communities		Reactive Referral - other		Ad-hoc		6/24/21				6/15/21		Fit for work.		 2 events of hernia complications in early 2021. Underwent operation in summer - Referred to OH as aprecaution prior to RTW.

		Jonathan Caddy				Alex Watson		Electrician		Electricals		Housing & Communities		HAVS												Some potential symptoms of HAVS. Tier 4 referral recommended.

		Mark Holloway		Sep-21		Dan Mancini		Arborist		Tree Team		External Operations		HAVS												Some potential symptoms of HAVS. Tier 4 referral recommended. Needs to be rebooked for HAVS test.

		Matthew Mills		Oct-21		Ben Parker		Gardener		Open Spaces		External Operations		HAVS												Some potential symptoms of HAVS. Tier 4 referral recommended. May also require a hearing test. Needs to be rebooked for HAVS test

		Eric Morris		Mar-20		Roy Porter		Multi-trade		Building Services 		Housing & Communities														Previous referrel for ongoing health issues - currently stable (Ongoing health issues. Last seen by OH March 2020. Some recommendations still likely to be relevant).

		Shawn Sturgess		Oct-21		Roy Porter		Multi-trade		Building Services 		Housing & Communities		HAVS												Some potential symptoms of HAVS. Tier 4 referral recommended.

		Paul Wyatt		Sep-21		Roy Porter		Multi-trade - Painter and Decorator		Building Services 		Housing & Communities		HAVS												Some potential symptoms of HAVS. Tier 4 referral recommended.

		Ella Carter		Oct-21		Ben Parker		Gardener		Open Spaces		External Operations		Musculoskeletal		Ad-hoc		11/1/21		As required		Oct-21		Fit for work. Recommended physiotherapy, to use lighter equipment and job rotation.		Referred due shoulder/upper limb pain. Executor RA put in place and identified lighter duties.

		Michael Symes		TBC		Martyn Dalzell		Asbestos Operative		Compliance		Housing & Communities		HAVS

		Martin Collins		Oct-21		C Poole		Open Spaces				External Operations														OH Review Due 23/09/2021. Continuing pain spoke to LHJ on 04/10, re-referred to OH.

		Kim Glanville		TBC		Sarah Richards		RSI				Housing & Communities														??? Unknown Condition???

		PaulinePorter		TBC		Gilly Allgood		DHL				Internal Operations														Currently off sick (Infection)

		Mary Pike		Sep-21		Julie Harcombe				Planning		Development & Place		Reactive Referral - other		Ad-hoc		10/5/21		N/A				Recommended a new screen  to reduce flicker.		OH referral due to cataracts. New screen sourced, MP picked up from facilities on04/11/2021. ERA drafted but not issued as not currently required. MP asked to update on any further issues.

		Jennifer Clifford		Oct-21				Garden Town Manager																		has a history of back surgery. Needs to be booked for HAVS test. Speaking to Mike about booking riser desks

		Matt Reading		Oct-21		Glenn Fry		Electrician		Compliance		Housing & Communities		HAVS												has declared multiple HAVS symptoms. Needs to be booked in for a HAVS test.









































































H & S Audits 2021 - 2022

		H & S Audits  - April 2021 - March 2022

		Audit Area/Objective		Area/Team		Directorate		Auditor Name		Date Completed		Actions/Comments		H & S System Update Required (Y/N)











































































RA Reviews 2021 - 2022

		RA Review - April 2021 - March 2022

		RA Name		Owner		Area/Team		Directorate		Auditor Name		Date Completed		Actions/Comments		H & S System Update Required (Y/N)











































































Policy Reviews 2021 2022

		Policy Review - April 2021 - March 2022

		Policy Name		Owner		Area/Team		Directorate		Auditor Name		Date Completed		Actions/Comments		H & S System Update Required (Y/N)











































































Ins Claims Received 2021 2022

		Insurance Claims - April 2021 - March 2022

		Name Of Claimant		Claimant Type		Event Date		Event History (summary)		Directorate Responsibility		Insurance Assessor		Date info issued		Outcome		Date Settled		Final Cost of Claim		Actions/Comments

		N Hirst		Ex-Employee		2/12/20		IP allegedly fell from a garage roof, fracturing his wrist.		Housing & Communities				6/1/21

		D Steel		Employee		6/21/21		Reversed an SWT pool car (Reg: WR17 AEB) into a MOP car		External Operations		Zurich		6/22/22								Pool car WR17 AEB Citreon Dispatch

		D Newberry		Employee		6/28/21		IP was driving an SWT vehicle (reg WK63 FRF) in foggy conditions.  IP applied his brakes and was hit by a MOP vehicle (reg WP07 VFH). MOP negligence.		External Operations		Zurich		6/30/21								SWT vehicle WK63 FRF Ford Transit

		Sam  Wells		Employee		Mar-21		IP fell through garage roof fracturing his shoulder		Housing & Communities				12/21/21

		Mike Symes		Employee		Aug-21		Damage to SWT vehicle whilst outside staff property		Housing & Communities

		Jamie Budge		Employee		Mar-21		IP was using a telescopic ladder to access scaffold for P&D purposes.  The Telescopic ladder collapsed. The IP was diaognised with with a sprained shoulder 6 weeks off work.  The ladder was 6 weeks out of inspection date		Housing & Communities		Zurich		2/4/21



































































Workplace Inspections 2021 2022

		Workplace Inspections - April 2021 - March 2022

		Location		Frequency of Review		Date Completed		Completed By		Date Next Due		Actions/Comments

		Wellington Depot				6/2/21		J Bradley/M Barter				Asbestos team visited at Milton Road, Taunton. Adequate controls in place. Visited before removal works commenced.

		Wellington Depot				10/7/21		M Barter				Responsive Repairs team carrying out remedial work at tenanted property in milverton. Use of petrol powered cut off saw to cut concrete with no dust supression. Yellow Card issued.











































































Lists

		OH

		DSE - referral										Locations						SAN Issued						Treatment								RIDDOR										Accidents - RIDDOR Reasons

		Reactive Referral - other										Deane House						Yes						First Aid								Yes - Employee										Death

		HAVS										West Somerset House						No						Hospital								No - Employee										Amputation

		Lung Test (Dust)										Wellington Depot												Doctor								Yes - Contractor										Fracture (other than fingers/thumbs/toes)

		Lung Test (Asbestos)										Moorland House												None								No - Contractor										Crush (Head/Torse - effecting brain/organs)

		Blood Test (Lead)										Brunel Depot																				Yes - Member of Public										Serious Burn/Scald

		Dermatitis										Market Place (TVC)																				No - Member of Public										Scalping

		Musculoskeletal										Wellington Community Office																														Loss of consciousness (head injury/asphyzia)

		Hearing Test										Kilkenny Court - ERT												Root Cause																		Enclosed Space Injury (lypothermia/heat induced)

		Urine Test										SW&T Nursery												Risk Assessment Failure								Incidents/Near Miss - RIDDOR Reasons										Over 7 day incapacity to work

		Directorates										27 Rochester Road (site office)												SSOW Failure								Structural Collapse										Non-fatal accident to Non-worker (MOP) requiring hospital treatment

		Housing & Communities										Minehead Harbour Office												Negligence								Explosion or Fire										Carpal Tunnel

		External Operations										Broomfield House Wellsprings Road, Taunton TA2 7NJ												Connivance								Release of Flammable liquid/gas										Severe Cramp of hand/forearm

		Internal Operations										Bulford Wellington, TA21 8DH												Environment								Hazardous Escape of substance										Occupational Dermititis

		Development & Place										Creedwell Orchard Milverton, Taunton TA4 1JZ												Other																		HAVS

												Darby Way Bishops Lydeard, Taunton TA4 3BG																														Occupational Asthma

		Training										Heathfield Drive, Monkton Heathfield, Taunton TA2 8PG												RIDDOR (Incidents)																		Tendonitis/Tenosynovitis

		Employee Responsibilities										Hope Corner Lane Taunton TA2 7NU												Yes																		Occupational Cancer

		General H & S										Kilkenny Court Taunton TA2 7QL												No																		Occupational exposure to biologocal agent

		Task Manager Training										Langham Gdns Taunton																														Asbestos Exposure

		Risk Assessment										Lodge Close Wellington TA21 8JN																				Directorates

		Director's H & S Responsibilities										Middleway (Churchill) Taunton TA1 3QW																				Housing & Communities

		H & S Policy writing										Moorland Place Taunton TA1 2DF												Safety Notices								External Operations

		First Aid										Monmouth Road Taunton TA1 2AZ												Enforcement - Red								Internal Operations

		Fire Warden										Newton Road Taunton TA1 2XQ												Improvement - Yellow								Development & Place

		TBT										Northfield Gardens Taunton TA1 1XN

		Accreditation										Robin Close Bishops Hull, Taunton TA1 5EU

		Professional 										Roland Close Roland Close, Taunton TA1 4TT

												Tauntfield Close Taunton TA1 3DQ

		YES										Wellesley Street Taunton TA2 7DT

		NO

												Accident Type				Service Unit								IP Status								HSE Interventions

		Insurance Claims										Slip/Trip/Fall				SWT								Employee								Enforcement

		Employee										Manual Handling				Depot								Contractor								Improvement

		Ex-Employee										Fall from Height				Crematorium								Member of Public								Query

		Agency										Struck by moving object				MOP								Tenant

		Contractor										Struck by stationary object				Tenant								Other

		Member of Public										Crush

		Tenant										Laceration/Cut

		Other										Burn/Scald												Incident Type

												Assault/attack												Vehicle Incident

		Workplace Inspections										Insect bite/Sting												Violent/Conflict

		Weekly										Attacked by animal/bite												Verbal Abuse

		Monthly										Needlestick/sharps												Physical Abuse

		Bi-annually										Machinery 												Needles/Sharps

		Annually										Asbestos exposure												Other

												Road Traffic Accident												Other (Public Concern)

												Other												Asbestos Incident

		ERA/OH

		ERA - Medical Condition										OH - Frequency

		ERA - Disability										Annual

		ERA - Medication										Ad-hoc

		ERA - Expectant/New/Nursing										By OH Advice

		ERA - Young Person

		ERA - Stress Management









Annex B - Workstreams Summary
Key Work-stream overview Key activity to date Next steps

Governance / Leadership & Culture
• 23 actions (12 not yet started)
• 8/23 Green/complete
• 3/23 Amber

• All 3 tiers of H & S cttee running since Nov, and 
Lead Cllr for H & S agreed (addressed key SWAP 
audit actions)

• Circa 18 H&S meetings per quarter
• Comms plan developed

• Member awareness / training
• H & S cttee recruitment (comms campaign)
• Engagement in LGR programme?
• Audit / assess 'culture' (starting with H & S cttees)
• Refine & enhance reporting / scorecard data

Policy
• 8 actions (4 not yet started)

• Review / refresh of overall H & S Policy • Approve revised policy (Tier 2)
• Revised sub-policies / arrangements – awareness

BAU Systems • Software solutions researched (2 external, and 
other LA partners) / Project team established

• Extensive list of 'BaU' systems in action plan 
for Tier 3 (eg COSHH, Lone working etc)

• H & S intranet / sharepoint sites (addressed 
key SWAP audit action)

• Tender decision on new software
• Implement from April (depending on decision)
• Implementation of Tier 3 actions (50+ actions)

People
• 10 actions

• Progress with HR data (sickness & training)
• People input to be continually reviewed vs LGR 

workload and value add

• Approach to / resourcing for workstream action 
delivery needs agreeing (ie H & S training needs 
analysis / L & D & qualifications audits)

Contractor / CDM management
• 9 actions
• 8/9 Amber + 1 Red

• Draft policy and CDM template docs created
• Contractor Database – proformas sent to 276 

(highest risk contractors), 

• Address 'Red' action re H & S vetting process -
continue focus on high-risk contractors – report 

progress (responses / vetting outcome)

P
age 19





Report Number: SWT 49/22 

Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
Audit and Governance Committee – 22 March 2022 

 
Local Code of Corporate Governance for 2022/2023 

 
This matter is the responsibility of the Leader of the Council, Cllr Smith-Roberts 
 
Report Author:  Amy Tregellas, Governance Manager and Monitoring Officer  
 
 
1 Executive Summary / Purpose of the Report  

To present the Committee with the updated Local Code of Corporate Governance for 
the 2022/2023 financial year. 

2 Recommendations 

 That the Committee approves the Local Code of Corporate Governance for 2022/23. 

3 Risk Assessment  

3.1 Failure to have an up to date Local Code of Corporate Governance could impact on the 
quality of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and could ultimately impact on 
the external auditors Annual Governance Report. 

4 Background and Full details of the Report 

4.1 Corporate Governance is the system by which Somerset West and Taunton Council 
directs / controls its functions and relates to its community.  

 
4.2 Good Corporate Governance is required to ensure that the public services provided by 

the Council are delivered with both confidence and credibility.  
 
4.3 The Council is committed to the principles of effective corporate governance and has 

therefore adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which follows the latest guidance 
issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the 
Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE), entitled ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government (2016)’.  

 
4.4 The guidance defines the seven core principles, each supported by sub-principles that 

should underpin the governance framework of a local authority.  
 
4.5 7 core principles at the heart of the CIPFA/SOLACE governance framework are:  
 

A) Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and 
respecting the rule of law.  

 
B) Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.  Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 
C) Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental 
benefits.  
 
D) Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 
intended outcomes.  
 
E) Developing the entity’s capacity including the capability of its leadership and the 
individuals within it.  
 
F) Managing risk and performance through robust internal control and strong public 
financial management.  
 
G) Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective 
accountability.  

 
4.6 The amendments to Appendix A have been highlighted in bold italics for ease of 

reference. 

5 Links to Corporate Aims / Priorities 

5.1 Having effective and efficient governance arrangements is a fundamental element of 
being a ‘well managed’ council 

6 Finance / Resource Implications 

6.1 None arising from this report 

7 Legal  Implications  

7.1 None arising from this report 

8 Environmental Impact Implications  

8.1 None arising from this report 

9 Safeguarding and/or Community Safety Implications  

9.1 None arising from this report 

10 Equality and Diversity Implications 

10.1 None arising from this report 

11 Social Value Implications  

11.1 None arising from this report 

12 Partnership Implications  

12.1 None arising from this report 

13 Health and Wellbeing Implications  

13.1 None arising from this report Page 22



14 Asset Management Implications  

14.1 None arising from this report 

15       Data Protection Implications  

15.1 None arising from this report 

16 Consultation Implications  

16.1 None arising from this report 

 
Democratic Path:   
 

 Audit and Governance Committee – Yes  
 

 Cabinet/Executive  – No  
 

 Full Council –  No  
 
 
Reporting Frequency:    Annually 
 
List of Appendices (delete if not applicable) 
 

Appendix A Local Code of Corporate Governance 

 
Contact Officers 
 

Name Amy Tregellas, Governance Manager 

Direct Dial 01823 785034 

Email a.tregellas@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

Page 23

mailto:a.tregellas@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk


 

P
age 24



     Appendix A 

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and respecting the rule of law 
 
Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend, but also for how they use the resources under their 
stewardship. This includes accountability for outputs, both positive and negative, and for the outcomes they have achieved. In addition, they 
have an overarching responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of legislation and government policies. It is 
essential that, as a whole, they can demonstrate the appropriateness of all their actions and have mechanisms in place to encourage and 
enforce adherence to ethical values and to respect the rule of law 
Sub-principle SWT Council is committed to achieving 

good governance and will: 
(wording taken from the guidance) 

The Council’s commitment to achieving good 
governance in practice is demonstrated by the 
following: 

Behaving with Integrity  Ensure members and officers behave with 
integrity and lead a culture where acting in 
the public interest is visibly and 
consistently demonstrated thereby 
protecting the reputation of the 
organisation  

 Ensure members take the lead in 
establishing specific standard operating 
principles or values for the organisation 
and its staff and that they are 
communicated and understood.  These 
should be built on the Seven Principles of 
Public Life (The Nolan Principles) 

 Lead by example and use the above 
standard operating principles or values as 
a framework for decision making and other 
actions  

 Demonstrate, communicate and embed 
the standard operating principles or values 
through appropriate policies and processes 
which are reviewed on a regular basis to 
ensure that they are operating effectively 

 Members Code of Conduct 

 Officers Code of Conduct 

 Register of Interests/ declarations of interests 

 Procedure for dealing with complaints about Councillors 

 Declarations of interest made at meetings 

 Policy & procedure for declaration of Gifts & Hospitality 

 Constitution 

 Public access to meetings and minutes 

 Role of Audit & Governance & Standards Committees 

 Member Training & Development policy 

 Government guidelines for politically restricted posts 

 Financial Regulations 

 Contract Procedure Rules 

 Behaviours framework 

 Whistleblowing policy/procedure published on the 
website 

 Anti-Bribery Policy 

 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy 

 Complaints Policy 

 Complaints system on Firmstep 

 Grievance Policy 

 Decisions published on the website 

P
age 25



     Appendix A 

Demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical values 

 Seek to establish, monitor and maintain 
the organisation’s ethical standards and 
performance  

 Underpin personal behaviour with ethical 
values and ensure they permeate all 
aspects of the organisation’s culture and 
operation  

 Develop and maintain robust policies and 
procedures which place emphasis on 
agreed ethical values  

 Ensure that external providers of services 
on behalf of the organisation are required 
to act with integrity and in compliance with 
ethical standards expected by the 
organisation 

 Members code of conduct 

 Officers code of conduct 

 Audit & Governance & Standards Committees 

 Constitution 

 Scheme of delegation 

 Member training and development Policy 

 Zero tolerance of fraud, corruption and bribery 

 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy 

 Anti-Bribery Policy 

 Procurement Strategy 
 

Respecting the rule of law  Ensure members and staff demonstrate a 
strong commitment to the rule of the law as 
well as adhering to relevant laws and 
regulations  

 Create the conditions to ensure that the 
statutory officers, other key post holders, 
and members, are able to fulfil their 
responsibilities in accordance with 
legislative and regulatory requirements 

 Strive to optimise the use of the full powers 
available for the benefit of citizens, 
communities and other stakeholders  

 Deal with breaches of legal and regulatory 
provisions effectively  

 Ensure corruption and misuse of power are 
dealt with effectively 

 Statutory provisions  

 Statutory guidance is followed 

 Constitution 

 Committee Terms of Reference 

 Role of the Monitoring Officer 

 SHAPE Legal advice 

 Scheme of Delegation 

 Recruitment and selection procedures 

 Job descriptions and person specifications 

 Learning and Development Plans 

 Members code of conduct 

 Officers code of conduct 

 Financial and Legal implications considered on 
Committee Reports 

 Audit & Governance Committee 

 Standards Committee 

 Process for Gifts & Hospitality  

 One Team online training courses 

P
age 26



     Appendix A 

 Monitoring Officer provisions and record of legal advice 
provided by officers 

 Compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the 
Chief Financial Officer in Local Government 

 Compliance with CIPFA’s Financial Management 
Code 2019 

 Effective anti-fraud and corruption policies and 
procedures 

 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy 

 Anti-Bribery Policy 

 Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

 Whistleblowing Policy 

 Regular updates to Audit & Governance Committee 
on anti-fraud work  

 Local test of assurance  

 
 
 

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
Local government is run for the public good; organisations therefore should ensure openness in their activities. Clear, trusted channels of 
communication and consultation should be used to engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as individual citizens and service 
users, as well as institutional stakeholders 

 
Sub-principle SWT Council is committed to achieving good 

governance and will: 
(wording taken from the guidance) 

The Council’s commitment to achieving 
good governance in practice is 
demonstrated by the following: 

Openness  Ensure an open culture through demonstrating, 
documenting and communicating the organisation’s 
commitment to openness  

 Make decisions that are open about actions, plans, 
resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The 
presumption is for openness. If that is not the case, a 
justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision 
confidential should be provided  

 Corporate Plan 

 Annual report on the Corporate Plan 

 Directorate Plans 

 Record of public consultations 

 Constitution 

 Committee meetings held in public 
unless good reasons for 
confidentiality 

P
age 27



     Appendix A 

 Provide clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in 
both public records and explanations to stakeholders 
and being explicit about the criteria, rationale and 
considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the 
impact and consequences of those decisions are clear  

 Use formal and informal consultation and engagement 
to determine the most appropriate and effective 
interventions/ courses of action 

 Committee meetings live streamed and 
videos available on the website 

 Minutes and reports of Council 
Committees on website 

 Records of decision making and 
supporting materials 

 Standard format for Committee reports 

 Committee work programmes 

 Portfolio Holder reports 

 Statement of Accounts 

 Whistleblowing policy 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Local Government Transparency Code 

 Publication of data in line with open 
data requirements 

 Access to information regime 

 Freedom of Information publication 
scheme 

 Report pro-formas 

 Calendar of dates for submitting, 
publishing and distributing timely reports 
is adhered to 

Engaging comprehensively 
with institutional stakeholders 

 Effectively engage with institutional stakeholders to 
ensure that the purpose, objectives and intended 
outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear so 
that outcomes are achieved successfully and 
sustainably  

 Develop formal and informal partnerships to allow for 
resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes 
achieved more effectively  

 Ensure that partnerships are based on trust, a shared 
commitment to change, a culture that promotes and 
accepts challenge among partners and that the added 
value of partnership working is explicit 

 Corporate Plan 

 Annual report on the Corporate Plan 

 Directorate Plans 

 Work programme of the Strategy Officers 

 Contract Compliance Manager role for 
managing contracts 
 

P
age 28



     Appendix A 

  

Engaging with individual 
citizens and service users 
effectively 
 

 Establish a clear policy on the type of issues that the 
organisation will meaningfully consult with or involve 
communities, individual citizens, service users and 
other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) 
provision is contributing towards the achievement of 
intended outcomes  

 Ensure that communication methods are effective and 
that members and officers are clear about their roles 
with regard to community engagement  

 Encourage, collect and evaluate the views and 
experiences of communities, citizens, service users and 
organisations of different backgrounds including 
reference to future needs  

 Implement effective feedback mechanisms in order to 
demonstrate how views have been taken into account  

 Balance feedback from more active stakeholder groups 
with other stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity  

 Take account of the impact of decisions on future 
generations of tax payers and service users 

 Corporate Plan 

 Annual report on the Corporate Plan 

 Directorate Plans 

 Work programme of the Strategy Officers 

 Scrutiny Committees work programme 

 Constitution 

 Committee Reporting Template 
 

 
 
 

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 
The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities mean that it should define and plan outcomes and that these 
should be sustainable. Decisions should further the authority’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits and outcomes, and remain within the 
limits of authority and resources. Input from all groups of stakeholders, including citizens, service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital 
to the success of this process and in balancing competing demands when determining priorities for the finite resources available 

 
Sub-principle SWT Council is committed to achieving good governance 

and will: 
(wording taken from the guidance) 

The Council’s commitment to achieving 
good governance in practice is 
demonstrated by the following: 

Defining outcomes 
 

 Have a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of 
the organisation’s purpose and intended outcomes 

 Corporate Plan 

 Annual report on the Corporate Plan 

P
age 29



     Appendix A 

containing appropriate performance indicators, which 
provide the basis for the organisation’s overall strategy, 
planning and other decisions  

 Specify the intended impact on, or changes for, 
stakeholders including citizens and service users. It could 
be immediately or over the course of a year or longer 

 Deliver defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the 
resources that will be available  

 Identify and manage risks to the achievement of outcomes  

 Manage service users’ expectations effectively with regard 
to determining priorities and making the best use of the 
resources available 

 Directorate Plans 

 Work programme of the Strategy Officers 

 Risk & Opportunity Management Strategy 

 Performance & Risk reporting 

 

Sustainable economic, 
social and environmental 
benefits 
 

 Consider and balance the combined economic, social and 
environmental impact of policies and plans when taking 
decisions about service provision  

 Take a longer-term view with regard to decision making, 
taking account of risk and acting transparently where there 
are potential conflicts between the organisation’s intended 
outcomes and short-term factors such as the political cycle 
or financial constraints  

 Determine the wider public interest associated with 
balancing conflicting interests between achieving the 
various economic, social and environmental benefits, 
through consultation where possible, in order to ensure 
appropriate trade-offs  

 Ensure fair access to services 

 Corporate Plan 

 Annual report on the Corporate Plan 

 Directorate Plans 

 Work programme of the Strategy Officers 

 Budget Monitoring reports 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Record of public consultations 

 Climate and sustainability issues 
considered as part of every committee 
report 

 Reports and minutes available on the 
website 

 Financial Strategy 

 Commercial Investment Strategy 

 Capital, Investment and Treasury 
Management Strategies 

 Capital Programme 

 Monthly Performance Board meetings 

 
 
 
 

P
age 30



     Appendix A 

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes 
Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal, regulatory, and practical interventions. Determining the 
right mix of these courses of action is a critically important strategic choice that local government has to make to ensure intended outcomes 
are achieved They need robust decision-making mechanisms to ensure that their defined outcomes can be achieved in a way that provides 
the best trade-off between the various types of resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions made need to 
be reviewed continually to ensure that achievement of outcomes is optimised 

 
Sub-principle SWT Council is committed to achieving good governance 

and will: 
(wording taken from the guidance) 

The Council’s commitment to achieving 
good governance in practice is 
demonstrated by the following: 

Determining interventions  Ensure decision makers receive objective and rigorous 
analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended 
outcomes would be achieved and associated risks. 
Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however 
services are provided  

 Consider feedback from citizens and service users when 
making decisions about service improvements or where 
services are no longer required in order to prioritise 
competing demands within limited resources available 
including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in 
mind future impacts 

 Constitution 

 Council reports, and underlying Business 
Case where appropriate, required to 
outline options considered and inherent 
risks 

 Financial Strategy 
 
 

Planning interventions  Establish and implementing robust planning and control 
cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, priorities 
and targets  

 Engage with internal and external stakeholders in 
determining how services and other courses of action 
should be planned and delivered  

 Consider and monitor risks facing each partner when 
working collaboratively, including shared risks  

 Ensure arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 
mechanisms for delivering goods and services can be 
adapted to changing circumstances  

 Corporate Plan 

 Annual report on the Corporate Plan 

 Directorate Plans 

 Forward Plan 

 Risk & Opportunity Management Strategy 

 Constitution 

 Schedule of meetings 

 Budget and Policy Framework within the 
Constitution 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Financial Regulations 

 Contract Procedure Rules 

 Planning protocols in the Constitution 

P
age 31



     Appendix A 

 Establish appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as 
part of the planning process in order to identify how the 
performance of services and projects is to be measured  

 Ensure capacity exists to generate the information required 
to review service quality regularly  

 Prepare budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies 
and the medium term financial plan  

 Inform medium and long term resource planning by 
drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital 
expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding 
strategy 

 Quarterly Performance and Risk Reports 

 Budget Monitoring Reports 
 
 

Optimising achievement of 
intended outcomes 

 Ensure the medium term financial strategy integrates and 
balances service priorities, affordability and other resource 
constraints  

 Ensure the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into 
account the full cost of operations over the medium and 
longer term  

 Ensure the medium term financial strategy sets the context 
for ongoing decisions on significant delivery issues or 
responses to changes in the external environment that 
may arise during the budgetary period in order for 
outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage 

 Ensure the achievement of ‘social value’ through service 
planning and commissioning. 

 Financial Strategy 

 Corporate Plan 

 Directorate Plans 

 Monthly Performance Board meetings 

 Work programme of the Strategy Officers 

 Constitution 

 Budget and Policy Framework 

 Financial Regulations 

 Contract Standing Orders 

 Role of the Project Management Office 

 Contract Compliance Manager role for 
managing contracts 

 Social Value implications are included in 
the Committee report template 
 

P
age 32



     Appendix A 

 

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 
Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with the right skills, appropriate qualifications and mindset, 
to operate efficiently and effectively and achieve their intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local government organisation must 
ensure that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own mandate and to make certain that there are policies in place to guarantee that its 
management has the operational capacity for the organisation as a whole. Because both individuals and the environment in which an 
authority operates will change over time, there will be a continuous need to develop its capacity as well as the skills and experience of the 
leadership of individual staff members. Leadership in local government entities is strengthened by the participation of people with many 
different types of backgrounds, reflecting the structure and diversity of communities 

 
Sub-principle SWT Council is committed to achieving good 

governance and will: 
(wording taken from the guidance) 

The Council’s commitment to achieving 
good governance in practice is 
demonstrated by the following: 

Developing the entity’s 
capacity 

 Review operations, performance and use of assets on a 
regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness  

 Improve resource use through appropriate application of 
techniques such as benchmarking and other options in 
order to determine how resources are allocated so that 
defined outcomes are achieved effectively and efficiently  

 Recognise the benefits of partnerships and collaborative 
working where added value can be achieved  

 Develop and maintain an effective workforce plan to 
enhance the strategic allocation of resources. 

 Corporate Plan 

 Directorate Plan 

 Monthly Performance Board meetings 

 Work programme of the Strategy Officers 

 Role of the Project Management Office 

 Contract Compliance Manager role for 
managing contracts 

 Role of the HR Business Partners 
 

Developing the capability of 
the entity’s leadership and 
other individuals 

 Develop protocols to ensure that elected and appointed 
leaders negotiate with each other regarding their 
respective roles early on in the relationship and that a 
shared understanding of roles and objectives is 
maintained  

 Publish a statement that specifies the types of decisions 
that are delegated and those reserved for the collective 
decision making of the governing body  

 Ensure the leader and the chief executive have clearly 
defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure 
whereby the chief executive leads in implementing 
strategy and managing the delivery of services and other 
outputs set by members and each provides a check and 
a balance for each other’s authority 

 Elected Member Training and 
Development Policy 

 Corporate Plan 

 Directorate Plans 

 Monthly Performance Board meetings 

 Audit, Governance and Standards 
Committee 

 Induction programme 

 One Team online learning 

 Internal Audit Reports 

 External Audit Reports 

 Role of HR Business Partners Managers 

 Constitution 

P
age 33



     Appendix A 

 Develop the capabilities of members and senior 
management to achieve effective leadership and to 
enable the organisation to respond successfully to 
changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, 
political and environmental changes and risks by: 
ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate 
induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training 
and development matching individual and organisational 
requirements is available and encouraged  

 Ensure members and officers have the appropriate skills, 
knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their roles and 
responsibilities and ensure that they are able to update 
their knowledge on a continuing basis  

 Ensure personal, organisational and system-wide 
development through shared learning, including lessons 
learnt from governance weaknesses both internal and 
external  

 Ensure that there are structures in place to encourage 
public participation  

 Take steps to consider the leadership’s own 
effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to 
constructive feedback from peer review and inspection.  

 Hold staff to account through regular performance 
reviews which take account of training or development 
needs  

 Ensure arrangements are in place to maintain the health 
and wellbeing of the workforce and support individuals in 
maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing 

 Scheme of Delegation reviewed at least 
annually 

 Financial Regulations 

 Job Descriptions 

 Member Champion’s Protocol 

 Top team development 

 Joint sessions of the Executive and 
Senior Management Team 

 Public Question Time as standing item on 
each Committee agenda 

 Every Committee meeting live streamed 
and video available on the website 

 Record of decisions published on the 
website 

 Strategic Tenants Board 

 Operational Tenants Board 

 Local Plan Consultation process 

 Human Resources Policies 

 Wellbeing Champions 

 Member Champion’s Protocol 

 Performance Management framework 

 Role of the Health & Safety Team 

 Wellbeing Intranet Pages 
 
 

 

P
age 34



     Appendix A 

 
 

Principle F: Managing risk and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management 
Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures that it oversees have implemented, and can sustain, an 
effective performance management system that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned services. Risk management and internal 
control are important and integral parts of a performance management system and crucial to the achievement of outcomes. Risk should be 
considered and addressed as part of all decision making activities. A strong system of financial management is essential for the 
implementation of policies and the achievement of intended outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline, strategic allocation of resources, 
efficient service delivery, and accountability. It is also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny is in place as a key part of 
accountable decision making, policy making and review. A positive working culture that accepts, promotes and encourages constructive 
challenge is critical to successful scrutiny and successful delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen automatically, it requires 
repeated public commitment from those in authority. 

 
Sub-principle SWT Council is committed to achieving good governance 

and will: 
(wording taken from the guidance) 

The Council’s commitment to achieving 
good governance in practice is 
demonstrated by the following: 

Managing Risk  Recognise that risk management is an integral part of all 
activities and must be considered in all aspects of decision 
making  

 Implement robust and integrated risk management 
arrangements and ensure that they are working effectively  

 Ensure that responsibilities for managing individual risks 
are clearly allocated 

 Risk & Opportunity Management Strategy 

 Corporate Risk Register 

 Quarterly Performance and Risk 
Reporting 

 Monthly Performance Board meetings 

 Mod.gov system 

 Members Code of Conduct 

 Register and declaration of Interests 

 Officer Code of Conduct 

 Role of the Audit & Governance 
Committee  

 One team online learning 

Managing Performance  Monitor service delivery effectively including planning, 
specification, execution and independent post 
implementation review  

 Make decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis 
and advice pointing out the implications and risks inherent 
in the organisation’s financial, social and environmental 
position and outlook  

 Ensure an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in 
place which provides constructive challenge and debate on 
policies and objectives before, during and after decisions 

 Corporate Plan 

 Directorate Plans 

 Monthly Performance Board meetings 

 Quarterly performance and risk reports to 
Scrutiny Committees and Executive 

 Complaints Policy 

 Committee work programmes 

 Scrutiny Committees Terms of Reference 

 Scrutiny Committees work programme 

P
age 35



     Appendix A 

are made thereby enhancing the organisation’s 
performance and that of any organisation for which it is 
responsible  

 Provide members and senior management with regular 
reports on service delivery plans and on progress towards 
outcome achievement  

 Ensure there is consistency between specification stages 
(such as budgets) and post implementation reporting (e.g. 
financial statements). 

 Public access to meetings and minutes 

 Publication of agenda and accompanying 
papers 

 Committee reports 

 Training and Development for Members 

 Self Assessment of the Audit & 
Governance Committee 

 Budget Monitoring Reports 

 Constitution 

 Role of the Project Management Office 

 Contract Compliance Manager role for 
managing contracts 

 Role of the HR Business Partners 

 Risk & Opportunity Management Strategy 

 Budget and Policy Framework 

 Financial Strategy 

 Scheme of delegation 

 Financial Regulations 

 Contract Standing Orders 
 

Robust Internal Control  Align the risk management strategy and policies on 
internal control with achieving objectives  

 Evaluate and monitor risk management and internal 
control on a regular basis  

 Ensure effective counter fraud and anti-corruption 
arrangements are in place  

 Ensure additional assurance on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk 
management and control is provided by the internal auditor  

 Ensure an audit committee which is independent of the 
executive and accountable to the governing body provides 
a further source of effective assurance regarding 
arrangements for managing risk and maintaining an 
effective control environment and that its 
recommendations are listened to and acted upon 

 Local Code of Corporate Governance 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Effective Internal Audit service is 
resourced and maintained 

 Internal Audit Plan 

 Internal Audit reports 

 Internal Audit progress reports to Audit & 
Governance Committee 

 Terms of Reference for Audit & 
Governance Committee 

 Training for Audit & Governance 
Committee members 

 Chief Internal Auditors Annual Report and 
opinion 

 Risk & Opportunity Management Strategy 

 Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy 

 Anti-Bribery Policy 

P
age 36



     Appendix A 

 Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

 Whistleblowing Policy 

 Fraud updates to the Audit & 
Governance Committee 

 Self Assessment of the Audit & 
Governance Committee 

 Compliance with the Code of Practice on 
Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption 
 

Managing data  Ensure effective arrangements are in place for the safe 
collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including 
processes to safeguard personal data  

 Ensure effective arrangements are in place and operating 
effectively when sharing data with other bodies  

 Review and audit regularly the quality and accuracy of 
data used in decision making and performance monitoring 

 General Data Protection Regulations 
training for officers and Members 

 Data Protection Policy 

 Designated Data Protection Officer 

 Information Governance Policies 

 Data sharing agreements 

 Data processing agreements 

 Data Breach Policy 

 Register of Data Breaches 

 New Corporate file plan includes 
safeguards for personal data 
 

Strong public financial 
management 

 Ensure financial management supports both long term 
achievement of outcomes and short-term financial and 
operational performance  

 Ensure well-developed financial management is integrated 
at all levels of planning and control, including management 
of financial risks and controls 
 

 Financial Strategy 

 Budget and Policy Framework 

 Budget Monitoring 

 Financial Regulations 

 Contract Standing Orders 

 Compliance with CIPFA’s Statement 
on the Role of the Chief Financial 
Officer in Local Government 

 Compliance with CIPFA’s Financial 
Management Code 2019 

 Role of the Finance Business Partners 

 Commercial Investment Strategy 

 Capital, Investment and Treasury 
Management Strategies 

 Capital Programme 

P
age 37



  
  

 Appendix A 
 

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and 
audit to deliver effective accountability 
Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services are 
answerable for them. Effective accountability is concerned not only with reporting on 
actions completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to understand and 
respond as the organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent manner. 
Both external and internal audit contribute to effective accountability 

 
Sub-principle SWT Council is committed to 

achieving good governance and 
will: 
(wording taken from the guidance) 

The Council’s commitment 
to achieving good 
governance in practice is 
demonstrated by the 
following: 

Implementing 
good practice in 
transparency 
 

 Write and communicate reports 
for the public and other 
stakeholders in a fair, balanced 
and understandable style 
appropriate to the intended 
audience and ensuring that they 
are easy to access and 
interrogate  

 Strike a balance between 
providing the right amount of 
information to satisfy 
transparency demands and 
enhance public scrutiny while not 
being too onerous to provide and 
for users to understand. 

 Website 

 Corporate Plan 

 Members Code of 
Conduct 

 Officers Code of Conduct 

 Register of Interests 

 Declarations of Interest 
recorded in Committee 
Minutes 

 Role of the Scrutiny 
Committee 

 Role of the Audit & 
Governance Committee 

 Committee meetings live 
streamed and videos 
available on the website 

 Public access to meetings 
and minutes 

 Public access to agendas 
and reports 

 Complaints Procedure 

 Local Government 
Transparency Code 

 Publication Scheme 
 

Implementing 
good practices in 
reporting 
 

 Report at least annually on 
performance, value for money 
and the stewardship of resources 
to stakeholders in a timely and 
understandable way  

 Ensure members and senior 
management own the results 
reported  

 Ensure robust arrangements for 
assessing the extent to which the 
principles contained in this 
Framework have been applied 
and publish the results on this 
assessment, including an action 

 Corporate Plan 

 Annual report on the 
Corporate Plan 

 Monthly Performance 
Board meetings 

 Quarterly Performance & 
Risk Reports to Scrutiny 
Committees and 
Executive 

 Statement of Accounts 

 Quarterly budget 
monitoring reports 

Page 38



  
  

 Appendix A 
plan for improvement and 
evidence to demonstrate good 
governance (the annual 
governance statement)  

 Ensure that this Framework is 
applied to jointly managed or 
shared service organisations as 
appropriate  

 Ensure the performance 
information that accompanies the 
financial statements is prepared 
on a consistent and timely basis 
and the statements allow for 
comparison with other, similar 
organisations 

 Annual Governance 
Statement and review 
process including the 
Local Code of Corporate 
Governance 

 Mod.gov system 

 Delegated Portfolio 
decision making template 

Assurance and 
effective 
accountability 
 

 Ensure that recommendations 
for corrective action made by 
external audit are acted upon  

 Ensure an effective internal audit 
service with direct access to 
members is in place, providing 
assurance with regard to 
governance arrangements and 
that recommendations are acted 
upon  

 Welcome peer challenge, 
reviews and inspections from 
regulatory bodies and implement 
recommendations  

 Gain assurance on risks 
associated with delivering 
services through third parties 
and that this is evidenced in the 
annual governance statement  

 Ensure that when working in 
partnership, arrangements for 
accountability are clear and the 
need for wider public 
accountability has been 
recognised and met. 

 Internal Audit Annual Plan 

 Internal Audit Reports 

 Internal Audit Annual 
Report 

 Internal Audit progress 
reports to the Audit 
Governance and 
Standards Committee 

 Compliance with the 
Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 

 External Auditor Reports 

 Annual Governance 
Statement 

 Monthly Performance 
Board meetings 

 Compliance with 
CIPFA’s Statement on 
the role of the Head of 
Internal Audit (2010) 

 Audit recommendation 
tracker and update 
reports to the Audit & 
Governance Committee  

 
 
 

Page 39





Report Number: SWT 50/22 

Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
Audit and Governance Committee – 22 March 2022 

 
Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Update 

 
This matter is the responsibility of the Leader of the Council, Cllr Federica 
Smith-Roberts 
 
Report Author:  Amy Tregellas, Governance Manager  
 
 
1 Executive Summary / Purpose of the Report  
 
1.1 To present the Committee with an update of progress against the Annual 

Governance Statement Action Plan for 2020/21 (Appendix A). 
 
2 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Committee notes the progress against the Annual Governance 

Statement Action Plan for 2020/21. 
 

3 Risk Assessment  
 
3.1 Failure to have robust governance arrangements in place could impact on the 

Council’s control environment and ability to operate in an economic, efficient 
and effective manner.  This could lead to recommendations being made by 
Internal and External Audit. 

 
4 Background and Full details of the Report 
 
4.1 The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is a statutory document which 

provides assurance on the governance arrangements and control 
environment within the Council. 

 
4.2 The Statement is prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of 

Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)/Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives (SOLACE) guidance and a review of the Council’s governance 
arrangements.  

 
4.3 The Annual Governance Statement includes an Action Plan to address any 

governance issues identified during the review of the Council’s governance 
arrangements.   

 
4.4 In order to ensure that the actions are being delivered it is important that the 

Committee review progress against the Action Plan, hence this report.     

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



 
4.5 The Committee are asked to note this report.  

 
5 Links to Corporate Strategy 

 
5.1 Having a robust, effective and efficient governance framework in place is a 

fundamental element of being a ‘well managed’ council and avoiding 
recommendations from Internal and External Auditors. 
 

6 Finance / Resource Implications 
 

6.1 None arising from this report 
 

7 Legal  Implications 
 

7.1 None arising from this report 
 

8 Climate and Sustainability Implications  
 

8.1 None arising from this report 
 

9 Safeguarding and/or Community Safety Implications  
 

9.1 None arising from this report 
 

10 Equality and Diversity Implications  
 

10.1 None arising from this report 
 

11 Social Value Implications  
 

11.1 None arising from this report 
 

12 Partnership Implications  
 

12.1 None arising from this report 
 

13 Health and Wellbeing Implications  
 

13.1 None arising from this report 
 

14 Asset Management Implications  
 

14.1 None arising from this report 
 

15 Data Protection Implications  
 

15.1 None arising from this report 
 
16 Consultation Implications  

Page 42



 
16.1 None arising from this report 
  
 
Democratic Path:   
 

 Audit and Governance Committee – Yes   
 

 Cabinet/Executive  – No 
 

 Full Council – No 
 
 
Reporting Frequency:    adhoc 
                                       
List of Appendices (delete if not applicable) 
 

Appendix A Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Progress Report 

 
Contact Officers 
 

Name Amy Tregellas 

Direct Dial 01823 785034 

Email a.tregellas@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

 
 

 

Page 43

mailto:a.tregellas@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk




Appendix A – Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Update 
 

Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

& Deadline 

Update 

Corporate Governance 

The Constitution should be 
reviewed and amended to 
make it more user friendly and 
clearer to use 

The Monitoring Officer to 
review the various sections of 
the Constitution and then to 
take reports forward to the 
Constitution Working Group 
for consideration. 
 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
31/12/21 

Amendments to the Constitution have 
been made as and when appropriate 
and come before Council.  This will 
continue whilst SWT is still in existence.  
More detailed work on the Constitution 
has been superseded by the Unitary 
Council and the Governance work 
stream is drafting the new Constitution 
for the Unitary Authority. 
 

The procedure for dealing with 
complaints about Councillors 
needs to be reviewed and 
updated 
 

Review and update the 
procedure for dealing with 
complaints about Councillors 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
31/10/21 

The procedure for dealing with 
complaints has been amended and the 
Monitoring Officer will convene a 
meeting of the Standards Committee.  
This will then go to the Annual Meeting 
of Full Council for sign off. 
The Governance workstream for the 
Unitary Council has drafted a new 
complaints process for the Unitary 
Council.   

The information on the Council 
website relating to complaints 
about Councillors needs to be 
reviewed and updated 
 

Review and update the 
information on the Council 
website in respect of 
complaints about Councillors 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
31/10/21 

Completed 

P
age 45



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

& Deadline 

Update 

The Officer Scheme of 
Delegation needs to be 
reviewed following the revision 
to the directorate structure 

The Monitoring Officer to send 
each Assistant Director the 
Officer Scheme of Delegation 
to review for their area and to 
ensure that the legislation is 
still current and relevant 
 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
31/10/21 

Each Assistant Director was sent the 
Scheme of Delegation 05/10/21 and 
provided updates.  This is being 
amended again following the decision 
not to fill the Director of External 
Operations role at the current time.   

Performance Management 

The Council doesn’t currently 
have a Data Quality Policy 

Draft a Data Quality Policy Business Intelligence & 
Performance Manager 
31/12/21 

It is proposed that this action is picked 
up by the Corporate Policy workstream 
for the Unitary Council. 
 

Risk Management 

Whilst Performance and 
Finance reports have been 
going before the Scrutiny 
Committee and Executive on a 
quarterly basis, this now 
needs to happen with the Key 
Business Risk Register 
 

Ensure that there is quarterly 
reporting to the Scrutiny 
Committee(s) and Executive 
on the key business risks 

Business Intelligence & 
Performance Manager 
Quarterly from June 
2021 

Completed – quarterly reports have 
been going to the Scrutiny Committees 
and Executive during the 2021/22 
financial year as part of the Corporate 
Performance Report 

P
age 46



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

& Deadline 

Update 

The level and detail of risks 
captured at service level is 
weak.  Some services are 
piloting the use of service risk 
registers which feed into the 
directorate register 
 

Once the pilot has been 
completed ensure that the 
process for service risk 
registers is rolled out across 
the whole organisation. 
 
Any service risks scoring 15 or 
more should be included as 
part of the key business risk 
register 
 

Business Intelligence & 
Performance Manager 
31/12/21 

Work to develop service risk registers is 
still ongoing and is being included as 
part of the transition arrangements to 
the new unitary authority. The councils 
risk registers are being migrated from 
Excel documents to SharePoint lists and 
the new format will make it easier to 
facilitate the further development of 
service risk registers, and will enable 
risks to more easily be escalated to the 
Directorate or Corporate risk register 
when necessary. 

Staff have not received risk 
management training recently 

Run a number of training 
sessions for officers on Risk 
Management, ensuring it 
aligns to the Risk and 
Opportunity Management 
Strategy.   
 

Business Intelligence & 
Performance Manager 
30/11/21 

Further training for officers is still in 
development and we are looking at e-
learning modules for risk management 
training within SWT. 

Openness and Transparency 

Currently we do not publish 
the feedback from complaints 
on the website 
 

‘You said, we did’ on the 
website to demonstrate what 
we have changed as a result 
of complaints and feedback  
 

Assistant Director – 
Customer 
30/09/21 

Completed – this is now available on the 
website 

P
age 47



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

& Deadline 

Update 

Currently going into 
confidential session in a 
meeting is confusing for 
members of the public and we 
need to change our approach 
in favour of transparency 

Give a better explanation re 
public interest test v 
confidential session.  Use 
better wording on agendas 
and at Committees.  Give 
more information on the 
website (this is part of the 
work in the Constitution) 
 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
31/12/21 

Completed – additional wording has 
been added to agendas that include 
confidential items.  Where part of an 
item of business is confidential wording 
has also been added to agendas to 
make it as clear as possible as to what 
will be considered in the public domain 
and what will require going into 
confidential session. 
 

Information relating to 
accessing information is 
currently not in one place on 
the website or easy to find 
 

Set up a page on the website 
called ‘Access to Information’.  
This is to include Data 
Protection information 
including Privacy Statements, 
Freedom of Information 
including disclosure log, 
Publication Scheme and 
Transparency Code 
requirements  
 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
31/12/21 

Work in progress – new target date 
31/03/22 

We do not currently publish 
our responses to FOI requests  

Publish a Freedom of 
Information Disclosure log on 
the website 

Assistant Director – 
Customer 
30/09/21 

We now publish FOI statistics on the 
website but not a disclosure log.  
However, individuals submitting an FOI 
request are able to search the Firmstep 
log for previous similar requests before 
submitting their request. 
 
 

P
age 48



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

& Deadline 

Update 

Member Training and Development 

Ethical awareness needs to be 
improved 

Ethical awareness training for 
Councillors at least twice a 
year 
 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
31/03/22 

Ethical items have been covered in the 
March 2022 ethical newsletter and 
further awareness training will be 
arranged following the May 2022 
elections 
  

Work with the Member 
Training and Development 
Group to produce a Members’ 
training plan 
 

Feed the information from the 
Members’ training and 
development requirements 
into a Member training plan 
and use this information to 
source future training 
 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
31/10/21 

Feedback from Member one to ones 
has been used to inform Member 
Briefings for 2022/23.   
Work on Member Training and 
Development is being picked up as a 
workstream under the Unitary Council 
Governance work, to ensure that there 
is appropriate induction training for the 
new Unitary Councillors 
 

Ethical Standards 

Ethical awareness needs to be 
improved 
 

Monitoring Officer to send 
quarterly updates to Officers 
and Members reminding them 
to declare any interests, and 
gifts & hospitality 
 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
Quarterly from 30/09/21 

Ethical newsletter sent to Members in 
March 2022.  Next edition to be sent to 
Members in June 2022. 
 
Electronic registers now in place for 
Officer declarations of interests and gifts 
& hospitality.  Update sent to officers 
and quarterly reminders now scheduled. 
 

P
age 49



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

& Deadline 

Update 

Ethical awareness needs to be 
improved 

Quarterly ethical newsletter for 
Councillors 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
Quarterly from 30/09/21 
 

Ethical newsletter sent to Members in 
March 2022.  Next edition to be sent to 
Members in June 2022 
 
 

Member Communications 

Members are not currently 
getting feedback from outside 
reps on outside bodies 
 

Gaining information about 
what the outside bodies are all 
about is Member Training and 
Development.  Investigate with 
the Member Training and 
Development Group how best 
to ensure that information from 
reps on outside bodies is 
captured and disseminated to 
wider membership 
 

Governance Manager & 
Monitoring Officer 
31/10/21 

Expand and change the focus on the 
SWT newsletter 

Policies and Procedures 

We do not currently have an 
up to date Communications 
Strategy 

Communications Strategy to 
be drawn up 

Service Lead - 
Communications 
Operations 
31/12/21 
 

The Communications Strategy is in 
draft.  Next steps are to finalise and 
publish.  This piece of work will be 
superseded by the Unitary Council 
workstream on communications  

Contracts  

The Contracts Register is out 
of date 

Ensure that the Contract 
Register is reviewed and 
updated 
 

Strategic Procurement 
Specialist 
 

Complete 

P
age 50



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

& Deadline 

Update 

Officers need to have training 
on the procurement process 
 

Training for officers on the 
procurement process. E-
learning courses set up to be 
instigated for service 
contract/project managers and 
service procurement users 

Strategic Procurement 
Specialist 

Further training for officers is in 
development and is being picked up 
through the LGR Procurement 
workstream 

People Management 

The Council doesn’t currently 
have a People/Workforce 
Strategy that aligns with the 
Corporate Strategy and MTFP 
 

Once the Unitary decision is 
known, work with colleagues 
to align a People/Workforce 
Strategy 

HR Business Partner 
Target date to be 
confirmed in line with 
Unitary 

This action is being picked up as part of 
the People (Staff) workstream for the 
Unitary Authority  

HR Policies and procedures 
are out of date 
 

Ensure that all HR policies 
and procedures have been 
updated to be relevant for 
SWT.   

HR Business Partner 
30/11/21 

Policies have been re-written.  A 
number of them are currently with 
Unison for comment.  Next steps will be 
to finalise the policies and publish on the 
staff Intranet. 
 

Job descriptions are generic Job descriptions to be updated 
to include job related person 
specifications and wording to 
make it clear that all staff are 
responsible for Health & 
Safety, FOI and complaints 
 

HR Business Partner 
Target date to be 
confirmed in line with 
Unitary 

This action is being picked up as part of 
the People (Staff) workstream for the 
Unitary Authority 

P
age 51



Issue Identified Action to be taken Lead Responsible 
Officer 

& Deadline 

Update 

The induction process needs 
to be improved 

Review and update the 
Induction process for officers 
and focus on basic things that 
all officers need to know as 
well as a tailored induction for 
items that are more job 
specific 
 

HR Business Partner 
31/10/21 

Completed – The corporate induction 
process has been reviewed and is 
available on the Learning and 
Development pages on the Intranet.  
There is a separate induction process 
for Health & Safety.  Job specific 
induction is handed over to the 
employees Line Manager 
 
 

Community Engagement Strategy 

We don’t currently have an up 
to date Community 
Engagement Strategy 
 

Draft a Community 
Engagement Strategy to 
include the type of issues that 
we will meaningfully consult 
on or involve communities, 
individual citizens and service 
users 
 

Director for Housing and 
Communities 
31/03/22 

Housing have confirmed that the 
Engagement Policy is in draft and being 
reviewed by the Housing Quality 
Network before being finalised. 

IT Policies and Procedures 

IT Policies and procedures 
need to be reviewed in light of 
the change to working 
arrangements 
 

To carry out a review of IT 
Policies and Procedures 

IT Manager 
31/10/21 

Complete - IT Usage Policy reflects 
current working arrangements. Other 
policies are being picked up through the 
LGR IT workstream. 

 

P
age 52



 
Report Number: SWT 51/22 

Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 
Audit and Governance Committee – 22 March 2022 

 
Updated Risk & Opportunity Management Strategy for 2022/2023 

 
This matter is the responsibility of Executive Councillor Member for Corporate 
Resources, Cllr Ross Henley 
 
Report Author:  Amy Tregellas, Governance Manager  
 
 
1 Executive Summary / Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To present the Committee with the updated Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy 
for approval. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 The Committee approve the updated Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy 
(Appendix A) for the 2022/23 financial year. 

3 Risk Assessment  

3.1 Failure to take advantage of opportunities and mitigate business risks is a major risk to 
the Council and could impact on the Council’s ability to deliver its strategic objectives. 
Failure to regularly review and update the Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy 
could have an adverse impact on the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 

4 Background and Full details of the Report 

4.1 The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee last approved the Council’s Risk and 
Opportunity Management Strategy on 1 February 2021. 
 

4.2 The purpose of this report is to present the Audit and Governance Committee with the 
Council’s updated Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy (attached as Appendix 
A) for consideration and approval. 
 

4.3 Risk Management forms an integral part of the Annual Governance Statement which is 
concerned with demonstrating that the Council has adequate and effective internal 
control arrangements in place for dealing with key business risks.  

4.4 Risk and Opportunity Management is not a separate initiative, but is the demonstration 
of good management practice. The Council has an obligation to provide assurance to 
Members and the Community that the principles of good governance, including Risk and 
Opportunity Management, are reflected in the activities of the Council. The Council also 
has a legal obligation to comply with the requirements placed upon it by the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations and the publication of an Annual Governance Statement.  Page 53

Agenda Item 8



4.5 Approval of the Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy will assist with the Council 
embedding Risk and Opportunity Management and demonstrating good Governance 
principles, and this Strategy will come before the Committee on an annual basis.  

4.6 The amendments to the Strategy are highlighted in bold italics for ease of reference. 

5 Links to Corporate Strategy 

5.1 Having effective Risk and Opportunity Management arrangements in place is crucial for 
identifying risks and opportunities associated with delivering the Council’s Corporate 
Strategy.  It also forms a fundamental element of being a well-managed Council. 

6 Finance / Resource Implications 

6.1 Failure to mitigate risks or take advantage of opportunities could result in financial loss 
to the Council. 

7 Legal  Implications  

7.1 Failure to mitigate risks could result in a number of legal implications for the Council 

8 Climate and Sustainability Implications  

8.1 None arising from this report 

9 Safeguarding and/or Community Safety Implications  

9.1 None arising from this report 

10 Equality and Diversity Implications  

10.1 None arising from this report 

11 Social Value Implications  

11.1 None arising from this report 

12 Partnership Implications  

12.1 None arising from this report 

13 Health and Wellbeing Implications  

13.1 None arising from this report 

14 Asset Management Implications  

14.1 None arising from this report 

15       Data Protection Implications  

15.1 None arising from this report 

16 Consultation Implications  

16.1 None arising from this report Page 54



 
Democratic Path:   
 

 Scrutiny / Corporate Governance or Audit Committees – Yes  
 

 Cabinet/Executive  – No  
 

 Full Council – No  
 
 
Reporting Frequency: Annually 
 
List of Appendices (delete if not applicable) 
 

Appendix A Risk Management Strategy 

 
Contact Officers 
 

Name Amy Tregellas 

Direct Dial 01823 785034 

Email a.tregellas@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

 
 

 

 

Page 55

mailto:a.tregellas@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk




Appendix A 

Somerset West and Taunton Council 
Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy 
 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 This combined Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy details the 

Council’s framework for managing business risk and opportunity. The Risk 
and Opportunity Management framework is the culture, processes and 
structures that are directed towards effective management of potential risks 
and opportunities that the council faces in delivering its objectives.  

 
1.2  The definition or risk and risk management varies. ALARM (the Association of 

Local Authority Risk Managers) and the IIA (Institute of Internal Auditors) 
define Risk Management as follows: 

 
ALARM  
“Risk Management is the culture, processes and structures that are directed 
towards effective management of potential opportunities and threats to the 
organisation achieving its objectives”.  

 
IIA 
“Risk is the possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact on the 
achievement of objectives. Risk Management is concerned with positive and 
negative aspects of risk. So as well as managing things that could have an 
adverse impact (downside risk) it also looks at potential benefits (upside risk).”  

 
1.3 In organisations, Risk Management is central to good governance. Enterprise 

risk management (ERM) describes what happens when organisations put in 
place a structured, continuous process to identify, manage and respond to 
risk. 

 
1.4  The purpose of risk management is the creation and protection of value. It 

improves performance, encourages innovation and supports the achievement 
of objectives. The factors underpinning ISO31000 2018 is that Risk 
Management should be:  

 Integrated  

 Structured and comprehensive  

 Customised  

 Inclusive  

 Dynamic  

 Based on the best available information  

 Inclusive of human and cultural factors  

 Continual improvement 
 

1.5 Developing and improving public services in the current challenging climate 
requires opportunities to be taken whilst managing the risks involved. 
Therefore Somerset West and Taunton Council’s definition of Risk and 
Opportunity Management is:  

 

Page 57



Appendix A 

“The planned and systematic approach to identify, evaluate and manage the 
risks to, and opportunities for, to achievement of objectives”  

 
1.6 The overall process of managing risk and opportunity can be divided into:  

 The identification and analysis of risks and opportunities  

 Risk and opportunity management, which encompasses the planning, 
controlling and monitoring of the information derived from the risk and 
opportunity analysis. 

 
2.0  Purpose, Aims and Objectives  
 
2.1  The purpose of the strategy is to embed risk and opportunity management in 

the Authority by establishing a risk management framework, which provides:  
 

 An efficient control environment  

 The overt allocation of accountability for risk and opportunity management 
throughout the organisation  

 A culture where officers and Members are able to be more creative and 
innovative in taking opportunities that benefit the Council and the District 
provided that there is clear analysis of the risks and a robust justification 
for the decision  

 A well-established risk and opportunity assessment process which 
ensures that risks and opportunities are considered and managed as part 
of the decision making process 

 Performance monitoring of risk and opportunity management activity  

 Communications process to support risk and opportunity management  

 A robust opinion for the Annual Governance Statement which comments 
of the adequacy of the Council’s risk and opportunity management 
arrangements  

 
2.2  The aim of the Somerset West and Taunton Council Risk and Opportunity 

Management Strategy is to adopt best practices in the identification and 
evaluation of risks and opportunities and the cost-effective control of risks to 
ensure that they are reduced to an acceptable level.  

 
2.3  It is acknowledged that some risks will always exist and will never be 

eliminated. All employees must understand the nature of risk and accept 
responsibility for risks associated with their area of authority. The necessary 
support, assistance and commitment of senior management will be provided.  

 
2.4 The risk and opportunity management objectives of the Council are to:  

 Embed risk and opportunity management into the culture of the Council  

 Fully incorporate risk and opportunity management as an integral part of 
corporate planning, business planning, project management and 
performance management  

 Manage risk and opportunity in accordance with best practice and in 
particular in accordance with the requirements of the Annual Governance 
Statement  

 Consider legal compliance as a minimum 

Page 58



Appendix A 

 Prevent injury and damage and reduce the cost of risk 

 Prevent the risk of fraud and corruption  

 Raise awareness of the need for risk and opportunity management  
 
2.5  These objectives will be achieved by:  

 Establishing a clear risk and opportunity management process that is 
communicated to all officers and Members  

 Clearly define roles and responsibilities for risk and opportunity 
management  

 Developing an action plan for embedding risk and opportunity 
management with tasks and milestones for monitoring progress against 
targets  

 Providing risk and opportunity management training to officers and 
members  

 Completing corporate and operational risk and opportunity management 
workshops to identify risks  

 Conducting risk and opportunity management workshops to identify the 
risks and opportunities of any major projects  

 Maintaining and reviewing a register of corporate, operational and project 
risks and opportunities and assigning ownership for each risk  

 Ensuring that reports to the Executive, Scrutiny Committee, Audit and 
Governance Committee, Standards Committee and Regulatory 
Committees (Planning and Licensing) include a risk and opportunity 
assessment  

 Identifying risks and opportunities in relation to working in partnerships  

 Ensuring that the Executive and Scrutiny Committee receive quarterly 
reports on the key business risks and opportunities and takes action to 
ensure that business risks and opportunities are being actively managed 
  

2.6  The following sections consider how the Council will implement the above 
objectives. 

 
3.0  Roles and Responsibilities  
 
3.1  In order to ensure that risk management is adopted throughout the Council to 

facilitate the enterprising approach that the Council wishes to take, there 
needs to be a strong risk management culture from the top to the bottom to 
drive this change.  The following groups and individuals have the following 
roles and responsibilities for risk and opportunity management within the 
Council.  

 
3.2  The Audit and Governance Committee will approve this risk and opportunity 

management strategy and any subsequent revisions. They will also monitor 
the effective development and operation of risk and opportunity management 
within the Council and will consider the adequacy of the Council’s risk and 
opportunity management arrangements as part of the Annual Governance 
Statement.  

 

Page 59



Appendix A 

3.3  The Senior Management Team (SMT) is primarily responsible for setting the 
organisations risk appetite, identifying corporate strategic risks and 
opportunities, as well as being responsible for determining action on these 
risks and opportunities and delegating responsibility for the control of the risks 
and opportunities. SMT will also be responsible for monitoring the progress of 
managing risks and opportunities and will review quarterly reports which go to 
the Executive and Scrutiny Committee.  

 
3.4  The Executive will also monitor the effective development and operation of 

risk and opportunity management within the Council by receiving quarterly 
progress reports on the Council’s key business risks and opportunities 
through the performance and risk report.  

 
3.5  The Scrutiny Committees will also receive quarterly progress reports on the 

risks and opportunities through the performance and risk report. Any concerns 
or issues will be reported to the Executive and/or the Audit and Governance 
Committee.  

 
3.6 The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Resources will:  

 Communicate the importance of risk and opportunity management to other 
Members  

 Act as a sounding board and provide a critical friend challenge to the risk 
and opportunity management process  

 
3.7 Directors/Assistant Directors/Service Managers will be responsible for:  

 Leading the risk and opportunity management process within their 
services and ensuring that business plans include an annual assessment 
of key risks and opportunities  

 Identifying and managing significant operational risks by carrying out risk 
assessments with their teams as and when this becomes appropriate i.e. if 
making a significant change to service or undertaking a project 

 Developing actions to mitigate the risks identified, assigning responsibility 
for implementing controls and set realistic target dates for implementation 

 Ensure that there are robust controls in place within their service areas to 
prevent the risk of fraud and corruption  

 Ensuring that all risks are on the corporate risk register  

 Regularly reviewing risks associated with their service area(s) ensuring 
that the agreed actions and deadlines have been met  

 Ensuring that any briefing papers/ reports that they produce to make 
changes to their services will consider the associated risks and 
opportunities of any proposed course of action  

 
3.8  The Director for Internal Operations (or her nominated deputy) is 

responsible for providing assurance to the Council through monitoring the 
implementation and effectiveness of this risk and opportunity management 
strategy and for reviewing compliance with mitigating controls introduced by 
the Service Managers. The Director for Internal Operations (or her nominated 
deputy) will comment upon the effectiveness of the risk and opportunity 
management process in work undertaken to support the Annual Governance 
Statement. The Director for Internal Operations (or her nominated deputy) will 

Page 60



Appendix A 

also chair the Council’s Health & Safety Committee to ensure that any risks 
arising from the work of this group will be incorporated into the Corporate Risk 
Register.  

 
3.9 The Health and Safety Committee is responsible for reviewing the measures 

taken to ensure the health and safety of all those who work in and visit the 
Council or may be affected by its activities - ensuring that people are not 
exposed to risks and that the risks are mitigated effectively. Where concerns 
are raised these will be escalated to the Health and Safety Officer and SMT 
for action.  

 
3.10  All employees need to have an awareness of risk and opportunity 

management and are responsible for ensuring that they manage risk 
effectively in their jobs and report hazards, potential fraud and risks to their 
Director/Assistant Director/Service Manager.  

 
3.11 Anything relating to commercial investments will go to the Commercial 

Investment Board 
 
4.0  Strategic, Operational and Project Risks  
 
4.1  Broadly speaking risks can be divided into three categories:  

 Strategic – risks which need to be taken into account in judgements about 
the medium to long term goals and objectives of the Council whilst at the 
same time considering the opportunities; and  

 Operational – risks and opportunities which managers will encounter in the 
daily course of their work.  

 Project - risks and opportunities which will be encountered during specific 
tasks/projects being undertaken  

 
4.2  Strategic Risks  
 
4.2.1  The management of strategic risks and opportunities is a core responsibility of 

the Leadership Team. Strategic risk and opportunity assessments should be 
factored in to corporate and service planning. 

 
4.2.2  The major categories of strategic risk are:  
 

 Political – associated with failure to deliver either local or central 
government policy. The Council could also potentially be at risk from the 
actions of other agencies, other Councils, partner organisations, etc.  
 

 Economic – affecting the ability of the council to meet its financial 
commitments. These include internal budgetary pressures as well as 
external factors affecting the economy as a whole.  For 2022/23 this 
could include increases in inflation, interest rates and energy bills, as 
well as supply chain disruption and people shortages. 

 

 Social – relating to the effects of changes in demographic, residential or 
socioeconomic trends on the council’s ability to deliver its objectives.  

Page 61



Appendix A 

 

 Technological – associated with the capacity of the council to deal with the 
pace/scale of technological change, or its ability to use technology to 
address changing demands.  This could include cyber threats. 

 

 Pandemics – such as Coronavirus, which have the potential to 
fundamentally change the way the Council operates and delivers services 
to the local community.  Also Council would need to be agile in delivering 
local or central government policy. 

 

 Unitary Council for Somerset – this becomes a strategic risk in 
2022/23 as the 4 Districts and County now have 12 months until the 
vesting day for the new Council.  This is a risk to SWT due to the 
resources that will need to be invested in setting up the new Council 
and the impact it will have on SWT to carry on with delivering its 
objectives and business as usual 

 

 Data Protection/Information Security – this includes the consequences of 
data/information transfer between the Council and other Bodies i.e. 
Government Connect, Partnership working, data collection, processing of 
data and data storage, etc.  

 

 Legislative – associated with current or potential changes in national or 
European Law, e.g. Bexit.  

 

 Health and Safety – This includes all aspects of Health & Safety as well as 
the Corporate Manslaughter legislation  

 

 Human Resource – For 2022/23 this could include people shortages 
due to the ongoing Covid pandemic and the recruitment and 
retention of staff due to the move to a Unitary Council for Somerset 
and the number of jobs available across the UK economy. 

 

 Environmental – relating to the environmental consequences of 
progressing the council’s strategic objectives (e.g. in terms of climate 
change including energy efficiency, ecology, pollution, recycling, landfill 
requirements, emissions, phosphates, etc). 

 

 Climate Change - affecting the ability of the council to meet its 
commitments in respect of climate change and meeting climate change 
targets 

 

 Competitive – affecting the competitiveness of the service (in terms of cost 
or quality) and/or its ability to deliver Value for Money.  

 

 Customer/Citizen – associated with failure to meet the current and 
changing needs and expectations of customers and citizens.  

 

Page 62



Appendix A 

 Partnership – associated with working in partnership or sharing services 
with another local authority or partner 

 

 Reputation – associated with the potential for negative publicity, public 
perception or uncontrollable events which have an adverse impact on the 
Council’s reputation  

 

 Fraud and Corruption – associated with misappropriation of Council 
assets, corruption, bribery, financial and procurement fraud, theft of 
physical assets or intellectual property, cyber fraud and customer 
fraud.  Has the potential to affect the Council’s finances and ability to 
deliver services to customers, and ultimately impact on the 
reputation of the Council 

 
4.3  Operational Risks  
 
4.3.1  Risks which managers and staff will encounter in the daily course of their 

work. These may be:  
 

 Professional – associated with the particular nature of each profession 
(e.g. housing service concerns as to the welfare of tenants).  

 

 Financial – associated with financial planning and control and the 
adequacy of insurance cover.  

 

 Legal – related to possible breaches of legislation.  
 

 People – problems recruiting and retaining staff particularly in specialist 
areas such as Planning and Finance, etc 

 

 Personal Safety – related to lone working and the potential to encounter 
aggressive or confrontational people whilst carrying out their duties.  

 

 Physical – related to fire, security, accident prevention and health and 
safety (e.g. hazards/risk associated with buildings, vehicles, plant and 
equipment, etc). 

 

 Contractual – associated with the failure of contractors to deliver services 
or products to the agreed cost and specification.  

 

 Technological – relating to reliance on operational equipment and the 
potential for technological failure (e.g. IT systems or equipment and 
machinery)  

 

 Fraud and Corruption – associated with misappropriation of assets, 
corruption, bribery, financial and procurement fraud, theft of physical 
assets or intellectual property, cyber fraud and customer fraud.  Has 
the potential to affect the services ability to deliver services to 
customers 

Page 63



Appendix A 

 
 
 
4.4  Project Risks  
 
4.4.1  Risks which will be encountered during specific tasks/projects being 

undertaken. These may be:  
 

 People – associated with whether we have the right people with the right 
skills involved in the task/project. This also concerns getting buy in from 
staff at all levels of the organisation, Members and potentially external 
stakeholders  

 

 Technical – associated with the Councils reliance on the software provider 
to deliver what has been agreed in the contract and that they provide 
support for dealing with any systems problems or issues  

 

 Cost – associated with the potential for the project to go over budget if the 
people and technical matters are not delivered as per the Business Case 
and PID  

 

 Time – ensure that the right amount of time is allocated to the project as 
well as sufficient contingency as slippage can cause to project 
delay/failure and this can also have an impact on cost and quality  

 

 Quality – depending on what goes into the project will determine the 
quality of the output  

 
4.5  Opportunities  
 
4.5.1  Opportunities are to be considered at the same time as the risks. Examples 

may include:  
 

 Spend to save projects where the Council will benefit from reduced 
expenditure or increased income in the future  

 Transformational change which will generate cost savings or an income 
stream  

 Opportunities for great partnership working with our stakeholders or other 
local authorities  

 Opportunities to streamline working processes  

 Opportunities to boost the local economy  

 Opportunities to deliver and improve housing within the District  

 Opportunities to protect and enhance our environment and to reduce the 
impact of climate change 

 Opportunities to make a difference to our communities and to empower 
them  

 Delivery of the objectives in the Corporate Plan and Service Business 
Plans  

 

Page 64



Appendix A 

4.6  The categories are neither prescriptive nor exhaustive. However, they should 
provide a framework for identifying and categorising a broad range of risks 
and opportunities for the Council as a whole, as well as service areas. 

 
5.0  Risk Identification 
 
There are numerous ways to identify risks. The Council will use a combination of 
these techniques.  
 
Information Gathering Techniques 
The standard practice to identify risks is reviewing relevant information such as: 

 Corporate Strategy 

 Directorate Plans 

 Service Plans 

 Project Plans 

 Risk, Action, Issues and Decision (RAID) logs 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Committee Reports 

 Briefing papers 

 Government and/or other guidance 

 Legislation 

 Internal/External Audit reports 

 Health and Safety Committee 

 Accident and incident reports 

 Lessons learned from projects or tasks 

 Best practice articles 

 Reviews of organisational process 
 
Interviews  
An interview is conducted with task or project participants, stakeholders, experts, etc 
to identify risks.  Document the results of the interview. 
 
Workshops/Sessions 
There are a number of models or tools that can be used to assist with the 
identification of risks, which can include: 
 

 Checklist Analysis 
Use the list of strategic, operational and project risks listed in section 4 of the 
Strategy as a checklist. Use this as a starting point but tailor to the service, task 
or project being considered.     
After each task/project, conduct a post review where you capture the most 
significant risks. This list may be used for subsequent projects.  

 

 Brainstorming 
Brainstorming is done with a group of people who focus on identification of risk 
for the task or project.  This could include the use of an affinity diagram where 
each participants writes each risk on a sticky note. Then participants sort the 
risks into groups or categories. Lastly, each group is given a title.  The output 
from the session is then fed into the Risk Assessment Process 

Page 65



Appendix A 

 

 Assumption Analysis 
The Project Management Body of Knowledge (PMBOK) defines an assumption 
as “factors that are considered to be true, real, or certain without proof or 
demonstration.” Assumptions are sources of risks. Project managers should ask 
stakeholders, “What assumptions do you have concerning this project?” 
Furthermore, document these assumptions and associated risks. 

 

 Cause and Effect Diagrams (Root Cause Analysis) 
This simple method can be used to help identify potential problems or causes 
that give rise to risks and the effect they may have.  If we address the causes, we 
can reduce or eliminate the risks. 

 

 
 

 Nominal Group Technique (NGT)  
NGT is a structured variation of a small-group discussion to reach consensus. 
NGT gathers information by asking individuals to respond to questions posed 
by a moderator, and then asking participants to prioritize the ideas or 
suggestions of all group members. 

 
Step 1: Preparation – logistics and focus 

Step 2: Silent idea generation 

Step 3: Round-robin recording of ideas 

Step 4: Serial discussion of ideas 

Step 5: Preliminary voting 

Step 6: Discussion of preliminary voting 

Step 7: Final voting 

 

 Delphi Technique 
The Delphi Technique is a method used to estimate the likelihood and 
outcome of future events. A group of individuals exchange views, and each 

Page 66



Appendix A 

independently gives estimates and assumptions to a facilitator who reviews 
the data and issues a summary report. 

 
The group members discuss and review the summary report, and give 
updated forecasts to the facilitator, who again reviews the material and issues 
a second report. This process continues until all participants reach a 
consensus. 

 

 SWOT Analysis (Strength, Weakness, Opportunities And Threats) 
Weaknesses and Threats are highlighted as risks and Strengths and 
Opportunities are identified as opportunities for the service, task or project and 
thus, risks are determined. 

 
6.0 Risk Appetite Statement 
 
6.1 This statement details the level of risk related to our corporate objectives and 

pledges that we are willing to accept within our capacity. We are a risk 
embracing Council which understands the importance of risk taking and 
accepts that there is an element of risk in most of the activities we undertake.  

 
6.2 The level of risk we are willing to take is intrinsically linked to each of our 

Council priorities and, for this reason, it has been accepted that our risk 
appetite should not be highly prescriptive.  

 
6.3 Our risk appetite should depend on which of our corporate objectives would 

be affected by the risk and the impact the risk would have on that objective 
should it materialise.  

 
6.4 This flexible approach is seen as the best way to allow us to make informed 

decisions in respect of each risk situation.  
 
6.5 To assist in the decision making process, and to help with prioritisation, we 

have agreed to apply a general level of risk retention (see below). However, 
this does not mean that in every case, risks falling below the line of retention 
require no action and vice versa. 

 
Risk Retention Threshold  

 
6.6 The following information details how we will apply our risk appetite in 

practice.  
 
6.7 Below is the risk scoring matrix SWT will use to determine the risk score from 

strategic, operational and project risks once the Impact and Likelihood have 
been scored (covered in section 7 – Risk Management Process) 

 

Page 67



Appendix A 

 
 
6.8 Identifying and ranking risks is important but the key element thereafter is to 

determine the strategy for managing them. The following table provides 
guidance on the level of management intervention that is likely to be 
necessary or appropriate. 

 

Colour Score Action Risk Control 

Green Low Review periodically Tolerate/Accept or 
Treat and Control 

Yellow Medium Mitigate, Control and Review 
Frequently 

Tolerate/Accept or 
Treat and Control 

Amber High Seek cost effective management 
action, control, evaluation or 
improvements with continued 
proactive monitoring 

Treat, Tolerate or 
Transfer 

Red Extreme 
(key 
business 
risks) 

Significant management action, 
control, evaluation or 
improvements with continued 
proactive monitoring 

All options can 
and should be 
considered 

 
 
7.0 Risk Management Process  
 
7.1  The 6-step process below will cover all areas of risk and opportunity 

management including making strategic decisions, managing strategic, 
operational and project risks and opportunities. 

 

Page 68



Appendix A 

 
 

Step 1 – Event Identification Risks and Opportunities  
 
7.2 This is the identification of risks and opportunities and these include strategic, 

operational and project risks (with examples given in section 4).  
 

Step 2 – Risk Assessment  
 
7.3 Once the risks and opportunities have been identified they then need to be 

assessed to consider the impact/severity and likelihood or any risks occurring 
and the potential benefits of any opportunities.  

 
Risk Impact 

 
7.4 The Risk Impact measures the severity of the impact should the risk be 

realised.  The following guide is neither prescriptive nor exhaustive but should 

Page 69



Appendix A 

provide a framework for the range of impacts a risk could have and how to 
score such impacts.   

 
Score of 1 - Very Low Impact 

 Localised minor injury or health impact to one person (no time off work 
required) 

 
Score of 2 – Low Impact 

 Localised minor injury or health impact to one person (small time off work 
required e.g. less than 1 week) 

 Small financial loss or service cost increase (less than £5,000) 

 Some loss of confidence and trust in the Council felt by a certain group or 
within a small geographical area 

 
Score of 3 – Medium Impact 

 Minor injury or health impact to multiple persons (small time off work 
required e.g. less than 1 week) 

 Injury or health impact to one person (substantial time off work required 
e.g. more than 1 week) 

 Contract, resource, data or equipment failure resulting in short-term 
inability to maintain service 

 Capacity of technology unable to meet changing demands of service 
needs 

 Incorrect information being published / use of incorrect information  in 
financial calculations, financial transactions are incorrectly processed 
resulting in incorrect payments 

 Lax service delivery and/or inability to meet non-statutory service 
objectives / targets 

 Financial loss or service cost increase (e.g. over £5,000) 

 Theft of Council property, assets, resources (less than £5,000) 

 General loss of confidence and trust in the Council within the local 
community 

 
Score of 4 – High Impact 

 Serious injury or health impact to one person 

 Loss of contract, resource, data or equipment resulting in long-term 
inability to maintain service or short-term inability to maintain several 
services 

 Localised damage to Council property / premises 

 Localised environmental impact 

 Breaches of, or damning external audit report for failure to comply with, 
legislation / accepted standards e.g. CIPFA, Data Protection, TUPE, 
Equality Act 

 Substantial financial loss or service cost increase (e.g. over £50,000) 

 Inability to meet Council objectives, customer requirements or financial 
commitments 

 Inefficient use of resources, services offering poor value for money, 
officers at risk of false accusations of fraud, corruption or misappropriation 

 Theft of Council property, assets, resources (e.g. over £5,000) 

Page 70



Appendix A 

 Poor / incorrect political and managerial decision-making could take place 

 Inability to account for all income received, expenditure made and other 
financial information 

 Major loss of confidence and trust in the Council within the District 
 

Score of 5 - Very High Impact 

 Serious injury or health impact to several or death of a person 

 Loss of contract, resource, data or equipment resulting in long-term 
inability to maintain several services 

 Serious damage / destruction of Council property / premises 

 Prosecution for failing to comply with / serious breach in, or non-
application of legislation / accepted standards 

 Serious, District-wide environmental impact 

 Serious financial loss or service cost increase (e.g. over £100,000) 

 Failure to deliver either local or central Government policy, statutory 
timescales are not met 

 Theft of Council property, assets, resources (e.g. over £50,000) 

 Failure of internal control systems, leading to the possibility of fraud, 
corruption, loss, extravagance, waste or embarrassment to the Council 

 Disastrous loss of confidence and trust in the Council both locally and 
nationally 

 
Likelihood Ratings 

 
7.5 The likelihood rating needs to be based on existing precautionary measures in 

place, at the time of the Risk Assessment.  When measuring the likelihood, 
we will consider the level of internal controls or mitigating actions in place as 
well as frequency of contact with hazardous situation.  For example: 

 
Score of 1 - Very Low Likelihood 

 Substantive, effective, tested and verifiable internal controls / mitigating 
actions in place 

 Previous experience at this and other similar organisations makes this 
outcome highly unlikely to occur 

 
Score of 2 – Low Likelihood 

 Effective internal controls / mitigating actions in place 

 Previous experience discounts this risk as being likely to occur but other 
organisations have experienced problems in this area 

 
Score of 3 – Medium Likelihood 

 Some internal controls / mitigating actions in place, but in need of review / 
improvement 

 Existing controls generally work but there have been occasions when they 
have failed and problems have arisen 

 The Council has in the past experienced problems in this area but not in 
the last 12 months 

 
 

Page 71



Appendix A 

Score of 4 – High Likelihood 

 Poor or ineffective internal controls / mitigating actions in place, or existing 
controls are generally ignored 

 The Council has experienced problems in this area within the last 12 
months 

 
Score of 5 - Very High Likelihood 

 No internal controls / mitigating actions in place 

 The Council is experiencing problems in this area or expects to within the 
next 12 months 

 
7.6 Once analysed the risks need to be assessed and prioritised according to 

their Impact (severity) and likelihood using the 5x5 scoring matrix (see section 
6.7 above).  Risks then need to be ranked i.e. those scoring 25 will be at the 
top of the list and those scoring 1 will be at the bottom of the list.  Risks 
scoring between 15 and 25 are classed as key business risks (red), as set out 
in the table in section 6.8, and will be reported to the Executive and Scrutiny 
Committee on a quarterly basis. 

  
7.7 The risks will then need to be considered in conjunction with any opportunities 

when making decisions.  
 

Benefits of Opportunities  
 
7.8 The assessment methods for determining the potential benefits of 

opportunities can include:  
 

 Assessing the increased income/reduced expenditure from the innovation  

 Quantifying the number of potential new customers  

 Calculating the potential sales growth that could stem from capturing the 
opportunity  

 Calculating the return on investment for a particular project and whether 
that is the level of return that the Council is looking for  

 Considering the value added as a result of capitalising on the innovation 
e.g. the benefit to the community 

 
Step 3 – Risk Response  

 
7.9 This involves taking action to minimise the likelihood of a risk occurring and/or 

reducing the severity of the consequences should the risk occur. Actions need 
to be allocated to responsible officers along with a realistic target date for 
implementation. 

 
7.10 Determine the best course of action for the Council. There are 5 key action 

strategies to managing risk:  
 

Page 72



Appendix A 

 
 

Step 4 – Control Activities 
 
7.11 Risk and Opportunity Management is dynamic and so the identification phase 

needs to be done continuously. It is also important to consider whether the 
nature of the risk or opportunity has changed over time – thereby completing 
the cycle.  

 
Step 5 – Information and Communication   

 
7.12 For the benefits of Risk and Opportunity Management to be realised, it is 

necessary for the process to be embedded in the culture and operations of 
the organisation.  

 
7.13 Once the Strategy has been agreed it will be communicated to officers and 

Members. 
 
7.14 Risk Management Training will also be provided to appropriate officers to 

ensure that they have the tools to enable them to identify risks using the 
techniques set out in Section 5. 

 
7.15 The Director of Internal Operations (or her nominated deputy) will regularly 

raise awareness of Risk and Opportunity Management through the Officer 
and Member communications and through briefing sessions. 

 
Step 6 - Monitoring  

 
7.16 Progress in managing risks and opportunities will be monitored and reported 

so that losses are minimised and intended actions and opportunities are 
achieved.  

 
7.17 Risk and Opportunity Management is an on-going process that should be 

constantly revisited and reviewed to ensure that new and emerging risks and 
opportunities are picked up and acted upon.  

 
7.18 This Strategy will be reviewed and updated on an annual basis. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73





Report Number: SWT 52/22 

Somerset West and Taunton Council 
 

Audit and Governance Committee – 22 March 2022 
 

Fraud Update  
 
This matter is the responsibility of Executive Councillor Member for Corporate 
Resources, Cllr Ross Henley 
 
Report Author:  Amy Tregellas, Governance Manager  
 
1 Executive Summary / Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To present the Committee with an update on progress following the SWAP baseline 
maturity assessment in relation to Fraud which came before the Committee in 
September 2021. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 The Committee note the Fraud Update. 

3 Risk Assessment  

3.1 Failure to have a robust Anti-Fraud framework in place to reduce the risk of fraud and 
corruption could result in the Council suffering financial loss, impacting on the services 
delivered by the Council and ultimately its reputation.   

4 Background and Full details of the Report 

4.1 The SWAP Internal Audit – baseline assessment of maturity in relation to fraud dated 
March 2021, was presented to the Committee in September 2021 (attached as Appendix 
A).  The purpose of this report is to provide an update on actions that have been taken 
since September 2021, particularly in relation to the Action Plan listed as Appendix 2 in 
the SWAP report. 

4.2 The action plan update is, as follows: 

Action Priority Update 

Present the baseline 
assessment of maturity in 
relation to fraud to key 
stakeholders and assign 
responsibility for 
management of actions 

Now The report was presented to the 
SMT and then the Audit & 
Governance Committee in 
September 2021.  This has been 
published on the Council website 
along with the Anti-Fraud policies. 

Monitoring of actions assigned to 
the Governance Manager and 
Monitoring Officer. 

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



Action Priority Update 

Present to the Audit & 
Governance Committee an 
annual report which 
assesses the effectiveness 
of fraud prevention and 
detection 

Now A report was brought to the Audit, 
Governance and Standards 
Committee on 12 April 2021, which 
included an update on the 
provision of Counter Fraud and 
Error Services from Powys. 

The Governance Manager and 
Monitoring Officer is working with 
colleagues from SWAP to ensure 
that the report reviewing the 
2021/22 financial year covers what 
they are looking for.  This will come 
to the Audit & Governance 
Committee on 13 June 2022 

Present to the Audit & 
Governance Committee an 
annual fraud plan for 
agreement 

Now The Governance Manager and 
Monitoring Officer is working with 
colleagues from SWAP to design 
an appropriate annual fraud plan 
for 2022/23 and this will come 
forward to the Audit & Governance 
Committee meeting on 13 June 
2022. 

Present to the Audit & 
Governance Committee 
reviewed Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy/Strategy 

Now Complete - The Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Strategy was reviewed 
by the Audit, Governance & 
Standards Committee on 12 April 
2021 and then approved by the 
Executive on 27 April 2021. 

Present to the Audit & 
Governance Committee 
reviewed whistleblowing 
policy 

Now Complete - The Whistleblowing 
Policy was reviewed by the Audit, 
Governance & Standards 
Committee on 12 April 2021 and 
then approved by the Executive on 
27 April 2021. 

Present to the Audit & 
Governance Committee 
reviewed Anti-Bribery Policy  

Now Complete - The Anti-Bribery Policy 
was reviewed by the Audit, 
Governance & Standards 
Committee on 12 April 2021 and 
then approved by the Executive on 
27 April 2021. 

Page 76



Action Priority Update 

Present to the Audit & 
Governance Committee 
reviewed Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy 

Now Complete - The Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy was reviewed by 
the Audit, Governance & 
Standards Committee on 12 April 
2021 and then approved by the 
Executive on 27 April 2021. 

Complete risk assessment 
process with SWAP and 
assign responsibility for 
ongoing management of the 
process 

Immediate 
Future 

Responsibility assigned to the 
Governance Manager and 
Monitoring Officer and she is 
working with colleagues from 
SWAP on the risk assessment.  
Meetings are quarterly to pick up 
any new or emerging risks. 

Publish the following and 
make available to key 
stakeholders: 

The approved: 

1. Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Strategy 

2. Whistleblowing Policy 

3. Anti-Bribery Policy 

4. Anti-Money Laundering 
Policy 

Immediate 
Future 

Completed – the approved policies 
have been published on the 
website 

Ensure contractors sign up 
to the Council’s 
Whistleblowing Policy 

Immediate 
future 

Governance Manager and 
Monitoring Officer liaising with 
colleagues to ensure that any 
agency staff and contractors are 
signposted to the Policy. 

Agree and implement a 
training plan for staff and 
Members in relation to fraud 
and ethics 

Shorter-Term Staff have been asked to complete 
the e-learning modules of Fraud 
Prevention, Anti-Fraud Policy and 
Whistleblowing by 31 August 2022.  
The Governance Manager and 
Monitoring Officer is liaising with 
SWAP to plan in a training session 
for Members.     

Page 77



Action Priority Update 

Ensure that fraud and 
corruption risk is referenced 
in the Risk and Opportunity 
Management Strategy and 
the strategic risk register 

Shorter-Term The Risk and Opportunity 
Management Strategy for 2022/23 
has been amended to include 
reference to Fraud and Corruption 
risks and is going before the Audit 
& Governance Committee for 
approval on 22 March 2022. 

Consider fraud risk in the 
Directorate Risk Registers 

Medium-Term SWAP carried out a fraud risk 
assessment and this is now being 
reviewed by the Governance 
Manager and Monitoring Officer.   

This action is to be fed into the 
transition work for the Unitary 
Council 

Update staff and Member 
code of conduct documents 
to direct fraud reference 

Medium-Term The LGR Governance workstream 
have drafted the Code of Conduct 
for the Unitary Authority.  They are 
recommending that all 5 Councils 
adopt it by end September 2022.  
This will go to Standards 
Committee and then on to Full 
Council for approval. 

Ensure relevant strategies 
and policies are subject to 
ongoing scrutiny and review 
by trained counter-fraud 
resource 

Longer-Term This action is to be fed into the 
transition work for the Unitary 
Council 

 
5 Links to Corporate Strategy 

5.1 Having an effective Anti-Fraud framework in place is crucial for identifying risks 
associated with fraud and corruption and ensuring that the delivery of the Council’s 
Corporate Strategy is not impacted.  It also forms a fundamental element of being a well-
managed Council. 

6 Finance / Resource Implications 

6.1 Failure to mitigate fraud and corruption risks could result in financial loss to the Council. 

7 Legal  Implications  

7.1 Failure to mitigate fraud and corruption risks could result in a number of legal implications 
for the Council 

8 Climate and Sustainability Implications  

8.1 None arising from this report Page 78



9 Safeguarding and/or Community Safety Implications  

9.1 None arising from this report 

10 Equality and Diversity Implications  

10.1 None arising from this report 

11 Social Value Implications  

11.1 None arising from this report 

12 Partnership Implications  

12.1 None arising from this report 

13 Health and Wellbeing Implications  

13.1 None arising from this report 

14 Asset Management Implications  

14.1 None arising from this report 

15       Data Protection Implications  

15.1 None arising from this report 

16 Consultation Implications  

16.1 None arising from this report 

Democratic Path:   
 

 Audit and Governance Committee – Yes  
 

 Executive  – No  
 

 Full Council – No  
 
Reporting Frequency: Annually 
 
List of Appendices (delete if not applicable) 
 

Appendix A SWAP baseline fraud maturity in relation to Fraud 

 
Contact Officers 
 

Name Amy Tregellas 

Direct Dial 01823 785034 

Email a.tregellas@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 79

mailto:a.tregellas@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk




 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 81



 

P
age 82



 

Unrestricted 

 

 

  

Cross-Partner Report 
Baseline Assessment of maturity in relation to Fraud 

April 2021 

 

Page 83



11 PARTNERS 

7 COUNTIES 

across 

IN RELATION 

TO COUNTER 

FRAUD 

MATURITY 

THIS REPORT 

SUMMARISES 

ASSESSMENTS 

COMPLETED AT 

Assessed not to be in place/ operating ineffectively – requires significant improvement. 
 

Assessed to be partially in place – requires improvement.  
 

Assessed as in place/ operating effectively. 
 

3

11

7

7

11

1

7

11

16

6

5

22

13

19

18

15

25

17

16

10

16

20

2

3

1

2

1

1

3

1

5

2

County/Unitary 1

County/Unitary 2

County/Unitary 3

County/Unitary 4

County/Unitary 5

County/Unitary 6

District 1

District 2

District 3

District 4

District 5

Total number of requirement assessment conclusions per Authority: 

RISK ASSESSMENTS have not been completed 

to inform planning and fraud and corruption 

are not considered in the corporate risk 

management process. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PORTFOLIO ROLES 

do not refer to any responsibilities in respect 

of fraud.  

There is no PROGRAMME OF TRAINING for 

staff and members in relation to ethics and 

anti-fraud. 

There is no LIVE COUNTER-FRAUD PLAN 

which aligns fraud risks to available and 

coordinated resources. 

COUNTER-FRAUD ACTIVITY AND OUTCOMES 

are not recorded and reported to Members 

and senior management. 

 

       

      
 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

    

   

  

  

  

 
 

Each Council overall assessment per theme: 

1 2 3 

4 5 6 

1: Resource and Coordination 
2. Risk Management 
3. Policy related 
4. Committee roles 
5. Culture and Awareness 
6. Reporting, Investigation and Monitoring 

The common findings identified: 

3

6

Page 84



As CEO of SWAP, I am pleased to see reports of this 

nature, which provide shared and prolonged benefit to 

several of our partners. 

Following the approval of SWAP’s Business Plan in 

November 2019, a fraud and investigations portfolio 

was created. We saw this as a real opportunity to 

provide a valuable difference to our Partners, many of 

which have little or no counter fraud resource available 

to them. 

Our Counter Fraud and Investigations Team have been 

tasked with providing a proactive counter fraud service 

for our Partners, to compliment the historical reactive 

work offering. 

This piece of work assesses each Partner against a 

reputable framework, the Fighting Fraud and 

Corruption Locally Strategy 2020 and gives partners a 

corporate view of maturity in relation to fraud risk.  

The results of the assessments will be used together 

with more detailed service level risk assessments to 

underpin our proactive counter fraud work for 2021-22 

and beyond. 

I wanted to also take this opportunity to promote the 

work of the Counter Fraud Team, which now gives our 

Partners direct access to a dedicated, trained, and 

professional counter fraud and investigation resource. 

____ 

 

 

David Hill 

CEO of SWAP Internal Audit Services 

 
Foreword 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Fraud has not disappeared: it is ever 

present, evolving and affects the 

funding that is needed for frontline 

services. In many public sector bodies, 

it is still an area where there is 

significant underinvestment, because 

they are not recognising the extent of 

the epidemic and seeing other 

priorities, particularly around service 

delivery, as more important. As 

fraudsters evolve, we must too. To 

these ends, through collaboration and 

intelligence sharing with a fraud 

prevention specialist service, we are 

ensuring that cases of fraud are not 

replicated across our partnership, 

mitigating controls are put in place and 

offenders are dealt with appropriately. 

Through our proactive intelligence-led 

approach we are taking steps to ensure 

the public purse is protected from all 

fraudulent activity.” 

2 

Page 85



 

 

Key Findings: Resource and Communication 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Every pound siphoned off by a fraudster is a pound 

that cannot be spent on services where they are 

needed. Councils need to be vigilant.” 
 

 

Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Strategy 2020 

 

 

“Local authorities should pursue opportunities to 

invest in counter fraud and corruption activity in 

order to generate savings by preventing and 

recovering losses.” 
 

Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Strategy 2020 

3 

Despite a predominantly amber picture across this theme, there are differing approaches to resource and 

communication across the SWAP partnership. Some Councils have a designated and funded counter-fraud 

resource, including in-house and outsourced provisions, some have no counter fraud resource whatsoever. It is 

understood that many Councils have shuffled their resources in response to the pandemic, so the following graphic 

details the resource position across the eleven partners under their ‘normal’ operating ability: 
 

 
 

Typically, Councils are not aligning their fraud risks to available resources and there is a lack of reporting on 

detection and prevention measures to key stakeholders. 
 

Partners can increase their maturity in this area by establishing what resource is available to them within the 

authority and via SWAP, as part of their internal audit services provision.  This will allow Councils to properly 

develop and approve a fraud plan which focuses on delivery within the available resource. Proactive fraud work 

should also be considered as part of this planning, with a focus on the prevention of fraud. 
 

We would urge Councils to revisit this area during the ongoing pandemic, when resources across the authorities 

are more thinly spread to allow for a prioritised response to the crisis. There is direct fraud risk exposure linked to 

the re-deployment of staff and the extra pressure they are under, which is often enhanced by internal controls 

being misunderstood, suspended, or relaxed. The ongoing pandemic increases the opportunity and rationalisation 

for fraudulent activity for many. 

2
4

3
2

Utilised In-house Counter-
Fraud Resources

Utilised external (incl. SWAP)
Counter-fraud resource

Blended In-house and
External resource utilised

No Counter-fraud resource
available or utilised

We also highlighted at these authorities that the scope and capacity of the counter-fraud resource is 

understood and agreed and that there is a blend of reactive and proactive activity that is reported to 

key stakeholders. Furthermore, these counter-fraud resources are actively working work with colleagues 

across the sector and with enforcement agencies to reduce the risk and impact of fraud and corruption. 

 

The examples of good practice in this theme, mostly came from authorities that had a dedicated 

counter-fraud resource. These authorities had a choice of counter-fraud experts which enabled them to 

select the best option for each investigation.  

Page 86



 

 

Key Findings: Risk Management 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 

An amber wheel indicates that every authority included within the exercise was assessed similarly. We have found 
that most Councils have not performed a full assessment of fraud risks and this links into the resources section 
above on page 4. For many Partners there is an acknowledgement that fraud risks are assessed as part of Internal 
and External audits and that there is some overlap with legislative and local requirements in this area. 
 

A scan of the corporate risk registers across the SWAP Partners revealed that less than a quarter of registers 
included any reference to fraud or corruption risks.  
 

Furthermore, the corporate risk management guidance documents across the Councils were lacking any 
reference to fraud and corruption.  
 

Generally, fraud and corruption risks are not considered as part of service/ directorate level risk assessments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“To avoid the risk that responsibility falls between 

managers, the organisation should have a clear 

fraud risk champion, who is known to all 

employees.” 
 

Public Sector Fraud – Identifying the risk areas (Deloitte) 

 

“Fraud risk identification is essential to understand 

specific exposures to risk, changing patterns in fraud 

and corruption threats and the potential consequences 

to the organisation and its service users.” 
 

Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA) 
 

 

One Authority had fraud and corruption risk directly referenced in their corporate Risk Management 

Policy and had considered fraud risk as part of their strategic risk register, which was reviewed regularly 

by Members and senior management.   

What next? 
 
Following on from this work, SWAP is facilitating the completion of a fraud risk assessment. Where Partners 
have an in-house Counter Fraud provision, we recommend that they lead on this work. 
 

It is essential that the risk assessment is kept live, the process is owned by the Council and risks are 
reported to stakeholders.  
 

The fraud risk assessment document will form the backbone of resource allocation for counter-fraud activity, 
including internal audit planning and assurance mapping.  
 

At this stage Councils should be thinking about the resource internally to own and manage the fraud risk 
assessment. The SWAP Counter Fraud and in-house Counter Fraud Teams are on hand to facilitate this and 
should be actively involved in the process as a ‘critical friend’ and in relation to the changing risk landscape. 
 

Page 87



 

 

Key Findings: Policy Related 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5 

Councils generally have approved policies in place in relation to anti-fraud, whistleblowing, codes of conduct and 
registering interests. Many of those reviewed though, lack a fraud and corruption thread, had fallen out of date 
with for example, changes to key personnel and/ or were not available to stakeholders as required.  
 

One area to pick out from this theme was the lack of evidence to support that contractors and third parties are 
required to sign up to the Councils Whistleblowing Policy. This is something that promotes good governance and 
a recent report from the Association for Certified Fraud Examiners (www.acfe.com/report-to-the-nations/2020) 
found that around a third of occupational fraud tips came from customers and vendors combined. 
 

Most staff and Member code of conducts did reference the behaviours expected in order not to commit fraud; 
however, these did not typically give explicit reference to fraud, anti-bribery, and corruption. 
 

We found a variety of approaches to anti-fraud policy and strategy, some had incorporated both into the same 
document, some had standalone documents. To assist with this area, we have noted the following components for 
inclusion in an effective policy and strategy: 
 

•  Actions that are deemed to be fraudulent, including definition. 
•  Allocation of responsibilities for the overall management of fraud. 
•  A statement that all appropriate measures to deter fraud will be taken. 
•  The Council has a zero-tolerance to fraud. 
•  The formal procedures which employees should follow if a fraud is suspected and a Fraud Response Plan. 
•  Notification that all instances of suspected fraud will be investigated and reported to the appropriate authorities. 
•  A statement that fraudsters will be prosecuted and that the Police will be assisting in investigations as required. 
•  A statement that all efforts will be made to recover wrongfully obtained assets from fraudsters. 
•  Encouragement to employees to report any suspicion of fraud. 
•  Explicit links to other key policies, including whistleblowing and code of conducts. 
•  Prosecution, Sanctions and Redress Protocol. 
•  How success will be measured, how the strategy will be delivered and the timescales and responsibility for this. 
•  How and what training will be provided to key stakeholders. 
•  The steps to be taken in the event a fraud is discovered and who is responsible for taking any action.  
•  Consistent with the Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally 2020 Strategy: Govern, Acknowledge, Prevent, Pursue, Protect. 

 
 

 
 

 

Some authorities had bought in Counter-Fraud resource to proof-read key policies, and this was 

replicated at service level, in relation to areas where fraud presents an inherently high risk. 

 

One Authority presents regular reports to their Audit Committee to demonstrate how well the policies 

around the code of conduct, for example declaration of personal interests, are being adhered to. This 

allows Members to monitor the take up of policies and spot any declining trends. 

 

“The organisation should put in place the policies and procedures to support the counter fraud and corruption 

strategy and take action to prevent, detect and investigate fraud.” 
 

Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA) 

Page 88

http://www.acfe.com/report-to-the-nations/2020


 

 

 

Key Findings: Committee Roles 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 

Councils typically have no assigned Member representative for fraud and there is a lack of counter-fraud activity 
reported to Audit Committees, or equivalent. This means that Councils are unable to demonstrate appropriate 
oversight, awareness, and support for counter-fraud activity. 
 

We have found at several Councils that Committee responsibilities state that the Audit Committee should take an 
“active role in the prevention and deterrence of fraud”, and that anti-fraud policies and strategies are taken to 
Members for approval. However, little, or no ongoing information is reported to Members and therefore the 
effectiveness their role in relation to prevention and deterrence cannot be substantiated.   
 

SWAP has an important role to play here, and this is recognised by recommendation at every Council that the 
results of the Baseline Assessment be taken to the Audit Committee. Committees need to ensure that the 
responsibility for managing the actions from the baseline assessment is assigned.  
 
 

This should be the start of an ongoing relationship between Members and Counter-Fraud related activity. 
 
 

We also found that there is a real lack of regular training for Members, meaning they are less effective in 
challenging counter-fraud activity. We would recommend that Councils look at specialist Member training and 
awareness sessions. A standard level of training should be applied to all Members, with more specific in-depth 
training given to those Members with agreed responsibility for counter-fraud. 

Some examples were found where counter-fraud activity is shared with Members, including proactive 

and reactive works. Other examples were found in relation to Audit Committees having recorded 

responsibility in relation to oversight of counter fraud activity. 

“Councillors should have and maintain an understanding of fraud risks and consider fraud in relation to the 

decision-making process.” 
 

A Councillor’s Workbook on Bribery and Fraud Prevention (LGA) 

Page 89



 

 

Key Findings: Culture and Awareness 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 

This area has found that there is a lack of training provided to employees and that where some level of training is 
provided, this does not link to any assessment of risk. Again, we would urge Councils to make this a priority due to 
the direct fraud risk exposure linked to the re-deployment of staff and the increased opportunity and rationalisation 
for fraudulent activity. There are things that Councils can do to compliment effective training, such as sharing of 
relevant awareness materials and case studies where fraud or corruption has occurred.  
 

We also found that there is generally a real reluctance to publicise successful outcomes relating to cases of 
fraudulent activity at Councils, even where there is a statement in the Council’s policy which states this will happen. 
Publishing successful outcomes is a proven deterrent for fraud and corruption and helps to enforce a strong tone 
throughout the organisation. 
 

Some Councils had no vetting process in respect of fraud risk for new employees. This is mightily important as the 
insider threat continues to be prevalent in the workplace. Councils should take a risk-based approach to this and 
consider here the use of specific vetting services and include the vetting of existing employees. 

 

Several authorities were able to demonstrate that key staff were kept up to date with fraud trends via 

professional bodies, newsletters, and networking groups. 

There is a general feeling that Council staff are becoming more aware of fraud risk, as a result of the 

pandemic and the administering of Covid grants. We have seen examples of fraud risk training being 

provided to staff who are responsible for processing and checking of grant claims. 

Some Councils were publishing internal fraud alerts to staff and one Council has been sharing its fraud 

alerts externally via social media. This helps in promoting good culture and awareness to stakeholders 

and acts as a deterrent for committing fraud. 

“The foundation to anyone countering the threat 

and risk of fraud, in any context, is the development 

of a strong counter fraud culture.” 
 
 

A Guide to Managing Fraud for Public Bodies (International Public 

Sector Fraud Forum) 

“Publicise your success, sharing the outcome of a 

successful investigation or how an anti-fraud 

measure has worked is a positive way to advertise 

the message that fraud doesn’t pay.” 
 

A councillor's workbook on bribery and fraud prevention (local.gov.uk) 

Page 90

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/11_42_Cllr_Workbook_02_web.pdf


 

  

Key Findings: Reporting, Investigating, Monitoring  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Did you know that SWAP has a confidential reporting hotline? 

Call 020 8142 8462 or email confidential@swapaudit.co.uk 

8 

9 

The most common findings in relation to this theme were that Councils had no mechanism for recording or 
reporting on fraudulent activity. Statistics should be maintained which will allow appropriate scrutiny and 
monitoring by senior management and Members. We are referring here to the work completed outside of the 
National Fraud Initiative programme, which by its nature captures and records positive matches for Councils to 
investigate. 
 

Many Councils had no process for risk assessing allegations of fraud and corruption and were typically looking at 
‘everything’ or ‘nothing’. This area overlaps with theme 1 on resources and theme 2 on risk management. Councils 
need a process for risk assessing allegations to ensure they are targeting resource to the correct places in line with 
a risk approach. 
 

Councils mostly had response plans in place for fraud and corruption, although it was commonly identified that 
some had no reference to sanctions and redress. 
 

Data analytics is one area that Councils can use to their advantage in the fight against fraud. There is little evidence 
that data analytics is being widely used across our Partners in this manner, although some have recently joined 
Cifas and are awaiting the benefits of this. Others have used data sporadically to review specific areas, for example 
discount award and in relation to Covid grants. 
 

 

Some Councils had developed proactive data analytical reviews and were making use of national and 

internal databases to assist in the prevention and detection of fraud, such as Cifas.  

 

 

There were some good examples of Councils with dedicated whistleblowing lines, with optional 

anonymisation. These were linked into key policies and available to stakeholders internally and 

externally. 

 

 

Some excellent Fraud Response Plans were provided during this review, which had been approved by 

senior management and Members. These included prevention, detection, investigation, sanctions, and 

redress. 

 

 

 

Where authorities have utilised their designated resource, fraud incidents were investigated promptly 

with unfettered access to documentation. 

 

Page 91



Ambition and Journey 
  

 

The objective for us and all our Partners should be to reduce the risk of fraud and corruption and to 
protect the public purse. We appreciate that each Partner has differing available resources and a 
differing risk appetite. We also have Partners with their own in-house dedicated Counter Fraud Team. 
We understand our Partners and aim to provide support to them in line with these factors. 

 

Each Partner included in this report has recently received an individual report for their organisation, 
including an appendix of findings against the 27 requirements and a roadmap of actions to improve 
the assessment. 
 

Please do not hesitate to contact us, should you require more information about any of the areas in 
the report, or if you feel you would benefit from further discussion or indeed a deeper dive into some 
of the areas covered above.  

 

We intend to revisit the baseline assessments in twelve months’ time and would expect to see an 
improving picture of maturity across the Partnership. Our role is to support our partners on the 
journey to improvement.  

 

Following the baseline assessment, our Counter Fraud and Investigations Team are facilitating the 
completion of service-level risk assessments, against areas known to carry significant inherent risk of 
fraud. This will provide each partner with a live view of fraud risk and in conjunction with the baseline 
assessment, enabling resources to be better aligned to prevent and detect fraud.  
 

The SWAP Counter Fraud and Investigations Team will also be producing annual reports for relevant 
Partners in relation to counter fraud activity from 2021-22 onwards. This will include progress on fraud 
risk maturity and any proactive and reactive works undertaken during the period.  
 

To gain maximum benefit from our Counter Fraud services, it is essential that these reports are taken 
to the ‘top table’ for consideration and that a strong tone is set by senior management and Members 
at each organisation.  
  
We look forward to your continued support in the future. 
  

SWAP Counter Fraud and Investigations Team 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10 

Jacqui Gooding, CMIIA, QIAL, CIA, CFE 
Assistant Director 
t: 07872500675 
e: Jacqui.gooding@swapaudit.co.uk 
 
David Warren, CFE 
Counter Fraud Officer 
t: 07720312461 
e: David.warren@swapaudit.co.uk 
 
Amy Probert 
Counter Fraud Officer 
t: 07801672647 
e: Amy.probert@swapaudit.co.uk 
 

Page 92



 

 

Appendix 1: The Twenty-Seven Assessment Requirements 
Resource and Communication 

 

▪ The organisation has internal audit and external audit 
planning aligned to fraud risks. Fraud resources are assessed 
proportionately to the risk the local authority faces and are 
adequately resourced. 

 

▪ The organisation has access to a trained counter fraud 
resource. 

 

▪ The local authority has put in place arrangements to prevent 
and detect fraud and corruption and a mechanism for 
ensuring that this is effective and is reported to committee. 

 

▪ There is a programme of counter fraud work to ensure a 
strong counter fraud culture across all departments and 
delivery agents led by counter fraud experts. There is an 
annual fraud plan which is agreed by Audit Committee and 
reflects resources mapped to risks and arrangements for 
reporting outcomes. 

 

▪ The counter fraud team works jointly with other 
enforcement agencies and encourages a corporate 
approach and co-location of enforcement activity. 

Fraud Risk Management 
 

▪ The local authority has made a proper assessment of its 
fraud and corruption risks, has an action plan to deal with 
them and regularly reports to its senior Board and its 
members. Horizon scanning is completed to look for 
future fraud and corruption risks. 
 

▪ The risks of fraud and corruption are specifically 
considered in the local authority’s overall risk 
management process. 
 

Policy Related 
 

▪ The local authority has put in place arrangements for 
monitoring compliance with standards of conduct across 
the local authority covering:  
 

- codes of conduct including behaviour for counter fraud, 
anti-bribery, and corruption 
 

- register of interests 
 

- register of gifts and hospitality.  
 

Members and staff are aware of the need to make 
appropriate disclosures of gifts, hospitality, and business.  
 

This is checked independently. 
 

▪ There are employee and member Code of Conducts in 
place, which include reference to fraud. 

 

▪ The organisation has an appropriate and approved Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Policy available to stakeholders. 

 

▪ There is a counter fraud and corruption strategy applying 
to all aspects of the local authority’s business which has 
been communicated throughout the local authority and 
acknowledged by those charged with governance. 

 

Is there a zero-tolerance approach to fraud? 
 

▪ The organisation has an appropriate and approved money 
laundering policy available to stakeholders. 

 

▪ There is an independent and up-to-date whistleblowing 
policy which is monitored for take-up and can show that 
suspicions have been acted upon without internal 
pressure. 

 

▪ Contractors and third parties sign up to the whistle-
blowing policy and there is evidence of this.  
 

There should be no discrimination against whistle-
blowers. 

 

▪ Counter fraud staff are consulted to fraudproof new 
policies, strategies, and initiatives across departments 
and this is reported upon to committee. 

Committee Related 
 

▪ The Audit Committees and Portfolio Lead roles in relation 
to fraud management are agreed and understood, 
including: 
 

- awareness and support counter fraud activity (including 
proactive and reactive) and receive training to support 
them 
 

- receiving of regular reports on the work of those leading 
on fraud 
 

- supporting counter fraud work and challenges the level 
of activity to ensure it is appropriate in terms of fraud risk 
and resources. 

Culture and Awareness 
 

▪ The local authority has arrangements in place that are 
designed to promote and ensure probity and propriety in 
the conduct of its business. 
 

▪ The organisation educates and trains employees regarding 
the importance of ethics and anti-fraud programs and 
senior management exhibit and encourage ethical 
behaviour. 

 

▪ The local authority undertakes recruitment vetting of staff 
prior to employment by risk assessing posts and 
undertaking the relevant checks. 

 

▪ The organisation routinely publicises successful cases of 
proven fraud and corruption to raise awareness, and this is 
endorsed by the communications/ media team. 

 

▪ Relevant staff and members are up to date with latest anti-
fraud practice and trends in fraud. 

Reporting, Investigating and Monitoring 

 

▪ Fraud incidents are promptly and thoroughly investigated 
by a designated and qualified resource, with unfettered 
access to premises and documents for the purposes of 
counter fraud investigation. 

 

▪ All allegations of fraud and corruption are risk assessed. 
 

▪ Prevention measures and projects are undertaken using 
data analytics where possible and sharing of data across 
internal departments and between other enforcement 
agencies. 
 

▪ The organisation provides an anonymous way to report 
suspected violations of the ethics and anti-fraud 
programmes. 
 

▪ Statistics are kept and reported which cover all areas of 
activity and outcomes. The number of investigations and 
outcomes are recorded. 
 

▪ There is a fraud and corruption response plan which covers 
all areas of counter fraud work: – prevention – detection – 
investigation – sanctions – redress. 

Page 93




	Agenda
	4 Audit and Governance Committee Forward Plan
	5 Health and Safety Management System – Performance framework and Improvement Programme
	Appendix A Health and Safety Scorecard High Level Summary (with observations & recommendations)
	Annex A - H & S Performance

	Appendix B HSMS Improvement Programme – progress update summary
	Annex B - Workstreams Summary


	6 Local Code of Corporate Governance
	Appendix A Local Code of Corporate Governance

	7 Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Update
	Appendix A Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Progress Report

	8 Updated Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy for 2022-2023
	Appendix A Risk Management Strategy

	9 Fraud Update
	Appendix A SWAP baseline fraud maturity in relation to Fraud


